
31\epublic of tbe ~bilippine1' 

~uprtmt ~ourt 
jffilanila 

EN BANC 

RE: CONTRACTS WITH ARTES A.M. No. 12-6-18-SC 
INTERNATIONAL, INC. 

Present: 

CARPIO, Acting C.J., 
VELASCO, JR., 
LEONARDO-DE CASTRO, 
PERALTA, 
BERSAMIN, 
DEL CASTILLO, 
PERLAS-BERNABE, 
LEONEN, 
JARDELEZA, 

*cAGUIOA, 
TIJAM, 
REYES, and 
GESMUNDO, JJ.: 

Promulgated: 

x-----------------------------------------------------~~-~~~------x 
RESOLUTION 

BERSAMIN, J.: 

We hereby consider and resolve the issues pertaining to the matters 
covered by the Report of the Office of the Chief Attorney dated June 20, 
2012 (Report) on the Court's several contracts with Artes International, Inc. 
(Artes) that Ms. Evelyn Toledo-Dumdum (Ms. Dumdum) entered into as the 
Administrator of the Court's Program Management Office (PMO) relative to 
the following events and activities, namely: 

1. National Forum on Liberty and Prosperity (National Forum) 
held on August 24-25, 2006 at the Manila Hotel; 

* On official leave. 
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Resolution 2 A.M. No. 12-6-18-SC 

2. Global Forum on Liberty and Prosperity (Global Forum) 
undertaken on October 18-20, 2006 at the Makati Shangri­
La Hotel, Makati City; and 

3. Other activities relative to the retirement of Chief Justice 
Artemio V. Panganiban (Chief Justice Panganiban) 
consisting of: (a) Musical Interlude at the Cultural Center of 
the Philippines on November 30, 2006; (b) Commemorative 
Program on December 6, 2006 at the Fiesta Pavillon, Manila 
Hotel; ( c) Retirement ceremonies on December 6, 2006 at 
the Supreme Court Hall; and ( d) the Celebration of the Life, 
Love & Achievements of Chief Justice Panganiban Event at 
the Pan Pacific Hotel on December 7, 2006. 

The Office of the Chief Attorney submitted the Report in compliance 
with the instruction of the Court's Management Committee for the Judicial 
Reform Support Project (JRSP) at its April 24, 2012 meeting in Baguio City 
to "summarize [the] facts on the circumstances with Artes International, Inc. 
(Artes)." 1 The Report was based on the files submitted by the PMO to the 
Management Committee in said meeting, as well as on the twin studies the 
OCAt had previously conducted on the Artes matter.2 

Antecedents 

On December 21, 2005, or shortly after his assumption of office, 
Chief Justice Panganiban announced his "judicial philosophy of 
safeguarding the liberty and nurturing the prosperity of the people under the 
rule of law."3 Conformably with his philosophy, the National Forum and the 
Global Forum were conceptualized and launched. 

In planning for the National Forum and the Global Forum, Ad Hoc 
Committees whose memberships consisted of officers and employees of the 
Court's various offices were created. It appears, however, that the PMO 
further engaged an event organizer to assist the Ad Hoc Committees. Ms. 
Dumdum expressly confinned so Memorandum PMO JRPAO 09-14-2007: 

2.2. To assist the Ad Hoc Committees, specifically by addressing 
the creative, logistical, physical and technical requirements of 
the Forum, the services of an event specialists (sic), namely, Artes 
International, Inc. was engaged based on the lowest responsive 
canvass made by this Office. Artes was the same events specialist 

Rollo, Vol. I, p. 2 (Report on Contracts with Art es !nternatiunal, Inc., .lune 20, 2012). 
Id. (see footnote 1 of the Report). 
Id. 
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engaged during the conduct of the International Conference and 
Showcase on Judicial Reforms (ICSJR) held last November 2005.4 

The following matters were further spelled out in the certification 
dated November 23, 2006 issued by the PMO, signed by Dennis Russel D. 
Baldago, Chief Judicial Staff Officer of the PMO and Vice-Chairperson of 
the Forum Secretariat; and Dennis T. Velasco, Logistics Management 
Officer V of the PMO; and noted by Ms. Dumdum, as follows: 

This is in relation to the services rendered by Artes International, 
Inc. for the Global Forum on Liberty and Prosperity held last October 18-
20, 2006 at the Makati Shangri-La Hotel, Philippines. 

The evolving requirements for the creative, physical and 
technical aspects of the Global Forum were finalized only after the 
conduct of the Academic and National Forum on Liberty and Prosperity 
last July 20 and August 24-25, 2006 respectively, barely eight (8) weeks 
or two (2) months to prepare for an international conference which will be 
participated (sic) by Chief Justices and Judges from ninety five (95) 
countries, delegates from the executive and the legislative departments of 
government, international development agencies, members of the 
diplomatic corps, judicial institutes, leaders of the foreign academe, 
international bar associations, foreign business chambers and civil society. 

Thereafter, the PMO solicited three (3) canvasses, requested 
authorization from the Chief Justice to fund various activities during the 
Global Forum, and prepared the necessmy Job Order to address the 
abovementioned requirements. The service provider with the lowest 
responsive proposal was also the same service provider during the 
International Conference and Showcase on Judicial Reforms held last 
November 28-30, 2005 at the Makati Shangri-La Hotel. 

This is to further certify that there are limited providers for the 
abovementioned requirements of the Global Forum. 

This Certification is issued at the request of Mrs. Adoracion Yulo, 
SC Chief Judicial Staff Officer, Finance Division and Ms. Lilianne E. 
Ulgado, Chief Accountant, Accounting Division. 5 

The services of Artes were extended to other activities related to the 
retirement of Chief Justice Panganiban on December 6, 2007. 

1. 
The National Forum and the Global Forum 

The PMO first engaged the services of Artes for the International 
Conference and Showcase for Judicial Refonn (ICSJR) in 2005. Based on 

4 Id. 
Id. at 13. 
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the records, the OCAt found that Ms. Dumdum as the Administrator of the 
PMO entered into the following contracts with Artes, represented by its 
Executive Producer Helen R. Dabao (Ms. Dabao ), and directly took part in 
authorizing several disbursements, as follows: 

(1) The letter-contract signed on July 18, 2006 by Ms. Dumdum 
and Ms. Dabao for two logo designs at the total cost of :P53,200.00, inclusive 
of VAT of PS,700.00. The disbursement voucher showed that the VAT was 
increased to P9,500.00. Check No. 24690, which was eventually issued to 
Artes on September 25, 2006, indicated only the amount of P43,700.00, 
which was charged to the SC-JRSP WB LOAN. 

(2) The quotation offer dated August 1, 2006 signed by Ms. Dabao 
offering the services of Artes to undertake the video coverage of the 
National Forum for the total amount of P180,320.00, inclusive of VAT of 
P19,320.00. Ms. Dumdum affixed her signature beneath the word Conforme. 
The disbursement voucher for the total amount of P180,320.00 was prepared 
and the amount was charged to the SC-JRSP WB LOAN with the 
recommending approval of Ms. Dumdum. 

(3) The quotation offer dated August 1, 2006 signed by Ms. Dabao 
offering the services of Artes for the audio-visual presentation entitled 
Blueprint for Change, with 10 pieces of DVDs as deliverables, at the cost of 
P666,261.12, inclusive of VAT amounting to P71,385.00. Ms. Dumdum 
affixed her signature to the quotation offer beneath the word Conforme. 
Based on the disbursement voucher, the VAT was again increased to 
Pl 18,975.20, such that the amount of Check No. 24691 issued on September 
25, 2006 payable to Artes became only P547,285.92, which was paid to 
Artes on September 27, 2006. The disbursement voucher indicated that Ms. 
Dumdum recommended the expenditure to be charged to the SC-JRSP WB 
LOAN. 

(4) The letter-contract between Ms. Dumdum and Ms. Dabao (for 
Artes) entered into on August 1 O. 2006 for the Conference Proper of the 
National Forum. The letter-contract, written on the stationery of Artes, 
provided: 

10 August 2006 

EVELYN TOLEDO-DUMDUM 
Program Director 
Program Management Office 
6th Floor Centennial Bldg. 
P. Faura Street, Ermita 
Manila 

!.. 



Resolution 5 A.M. No. 12-6-18-SC 

Dear Ms. Dumdum, 

Thank you for considering us to be able to serve your event requirements 
for the following: 

Event Title: National Forum on August 24 & 25, 2006 
"Prosperity & Liberty: Goals of Judicial Reforms" 

Venue: Manila Hotel, Centennial Hall 

Particulars: Conference Proper Requirements 

I. Physical/Creativeffechnical Management of the National 
Forum at Manila Hotel on August 24 & 25, 2006. 

Please be assured that Artes International, Inc. shall render the same 
quality work as the past ICSJR conference if not even more efficiently and 
professionally. We look forward to working with you again in this 
conference. 

The following are areas that were discussed and agreed upon: 

1. That Artes shall provide script for your guidance; 

2. That your office shall provide all Emcees for the said events; 

3. That you are requiring video coverage of the event; and 

4. That Helen Dabao, Executive Director of Artes International, Inc. shall 
oversee the execution, coordination and supervision of the conference 
proper on August 24 & 25, 2006; 8am to 5pm. Our services include 
the following: 

1. Provision of creative, production and technical staff with HELEN 
R. DABAO as Over-All Director and Executive Producer; other 
areas of concern 

2. Provision of production staff to include Technical Director, Lights 
Director, Writers, Production Manager, Stage Managers, 
Production Assistants, technical crew and utility men; 

3. Provision of lights & sound system, the screen/projector at the 
Centennial Hall and Backdrop bearing the official logo. Artes shall 
manage all coordination & supervision of the venue needed for the 
conference except booking guests and participants at the hotel. 

For and in consideration of the above services ARTES 
INTERNATIONAL, INC. submits a package cost of all requirements in 
the Conference Proper amounting to NINE HUNDRED NINETY 
EIGHT THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED FIFTY FOUR & 78/100 
PESOS (PhP998,854.78) 

Please find attached the Budget Breakdown x x x of the total package 
cost of the project. 

TERMS: 

50% down payment to be paid upon signing of conforme. 

50% balance to be paid upon completion of the project. 

f2, 
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Termination of contract after signing is subject to 50% fee of the total 
project cost 

Additional requirements shall be charged accordingly. 

Quoted price is valid only until 18 August 2005. 

Note: Please make cheque payable to Artes International, Inc. 

We look forward to working with you. Should you have any questions and 
concerns, please do not hesitate to get in touch with us. 

Thank you very much for giving us the opportunity to offer our services. 

Again thank you and more power to you and your office. 

ARTES INTERNATIONAL, INC. SUPREME COURT OF THE 
PHILIPPINES 

By: 

(Sgd.) 
HELEN R. DABAO 
Managing & Creative Director 

By: 

(Sgd.) 
EVELYN TOLEDO-DUMDUM 
Program Director 

The disbursement voucher shows that Ms. Dumdum recommended 
approval of the payment in the amount of 1!998,854. 78 charged to the 
"SC-JRSP WB LOAN."6 

(5) About August 12, 2006, Ms. Dabao offered to supply 350 pieces 
of conference bags at P450.00/piece for a total of Pl 76,400.00, inclusive of 
the PlS,900.00 VAT, and 900 pieces of ID holder at P95.00/piece for the 
total price of P95,760.00, inclusive of the Pl0,260.00 VAT. The 
disbursement voucher disclosed that the total sum of P272,160.00 for the 
offered articles was charged to the SC-JRSP WB LOAN and the JRSP 
(WB)-GOP Counterpart Funds in the respective amounts of P243,160.00 
and P29,160.00. Artes issued a "Sales Invoice" dated August 12, 2006 for 
both articles. 7 

( 6) The letter-contract written on the stationery of Artes and signed 
on August 14, 2006 by Ms. Dumdum constituted the contract for services for 
the Closing Ceremonies of the National Forum held on August 24-25, 2006. 
The pertinent portions of the letter-contract stated: 

Id. at 46. 
At the joint meeting on August 4, 2006 of the Ad Hoc Committees for the two forums, four 

representatives of events specialist Artes, namely: Dabao, Pauline Galino, Maricris Calilung, and Anna L. 
Ventura, attended. Paragraph 3.1.4. of the Minutes of the meeting stated: 

BAGS AND SOUVENIR ITEMS - The Joint Ad Hoc Committee approved the design of the 
bags to be provided for the participants of the two fora. For the National Forum, the Joint 
Committee chose the 'back-with-banig' design combination. The Supplier undertook to bring the 
finished samples of the souvenirs and bags in the next meeting. 

As the only non-employees of the Court present at the meeting, the representatives of Artes 
could only be the "Supplier" referred to in the Minutes. 

9, 
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The following are areas that were discussed and agreed upon: 

1. That we will provide script for your guidance; 

2. That your office will provide all Emcees for the said events; 

3. That you are requiring video coverage of the event; and 

4. That Helen R. Dabao, Managing & Creative Director of .Artes 
International, Inc. shall oversee the execution, coordination and 
supervision of the said event. Our services include the following: 

a. Provision of production staff to include a Technical Director, 
Lights Director, Writers, Production Designer, Production 
Manager, Stage Managers, Production Assistants, technical crew; 

b. Provision of lights and sound system for the Closing Ceremony. 

For and in consideration of the above services ARTES 
INTERNATIONAL, INC. submits a package cost of all requirements in 
the CLOSING CEREMONY amounting to SIX HUNDRED NINETY 
ONE THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY NINE & 04/100 
(PhP691,189.04) 

TERMS: 

50% down payment to be paid upon signing of conforme. 

50% balance to be paid upon completion of project. 

Termination of contract after signing is. subject to 50% fee of the total 
project cost. 

Additional requirements shall be charged accordingly. 

Quote price is valid only until 18 August 2006. 

NOTE: Please make cheque payable to Artes International, Inc.8 

The OCAt noted that the disbursement voucher for the expenditure 
was not among the records turned over by the PMO. 

(7) The letter-contract for the "Welcome Dinner" was signed by 
Dabao and Ms. Dumdum on August 15, 2006. It had similar text as the 
letter-contract for the "Closing Ceremony," viz.: 

The following are areas that were discussed and agreed upon: 

1. That we will provide script for your guidance; 

2. That your office will provide all Emcees for the said events; 

3. That you are requiring video coverage of the event; 

4. That Helen R. Dabao, Managing & Creative Director of Artes 
International, Inc. shall oversee the e'::ecution, coordination and 
supervision of the said event. Our services include the following: 

a) Provision of production staff to include a Technical Director, 

Rollo, Vol. I, pp. 6-7. 
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Lights Director, Writers, Production Designer, Production 
Manager, Stage Managers, Production Assistants, technical crew 
and utility men; 

b) Provision of lights & sound system & Backdrop 

c) Provision of food for staff and production people; and 

d) Artes shall manage all coordination with the venue needed for the 
said event. 

For and in consideration of the above services ARTES 
INTERNATIONAL, INC. submits a package cost of all requirements in 
the WELCOME DINNER amounting to NINE HUNDRED SEVEN 
THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED SEVENTY SIX & 41/100 PESOS 
(Php907,776.41) 

TERMS: 

50% down payment to be paid upon signing of conforme. 

50% balance to be paid upon completion of the project. 

Termination of contract after signing is subject to 50% fee of the total 
project cost. 

Additional requirements shall be charged accordingly. 

Quoted price is valid only until 18 August 2006. 

NOTE: Please make cheque payable to Artes International, Inc. 

A disbursement voucher for the two letter-contracts in the total amount of 
Pl,598,965.46 chargeable to the "SC-JRSP WB LOAN" was thereafter 
prepared. Dumdum affixed her signature thereon to indicate her 
recommendation for said disbursement.9 

(8) Through an undated Abstract of Bids, the PMO conducted a 
canvass for other items intended for the National Forum, and Artes emerged 
as the "winning bidder" in that canvass. 

The Abstract of Bids is quoted below: 

SUPREME COURT 
PROGRAM MANAGEMENT OFFICE 

NATIONAL FORUM ON LIBERTY AND PROSPERITY 
ABSTRACT OF BIDS 

SOUVENIR ITEMS FOR SPEAKERS & PANELISTS; AND PENS DURING THE 
NATIONAL FORUM ON LIBERTY AND PROSPERITY 

Name of Bidders Price Proposal (in Compliance to REMARKS 
PHP) Minimum Terms of 

Reference 
AR TES 35,224.00 Comply Recommended for 

INTERNATIONAL Award 
OFFICEMAN 38,640.00 Comply 

CHATESU 39,480.00 Comply 
MANUFACTURING 

Id. at 7. 
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Resolution 9 A.M. No. 12-6-18-SC 

Canvassed by: Recommended by: Approved by: 
(Sgd.) (Sgd.) (Sgd.) 
MA. CRISTINA M. AGUILAR DENNIS RUSSEL D. BALDAGO EVELYN TOLEDO-DUMDUM 
Tec;hnical Assistant Chief Judicial Staff Officer Judicial Reform Program 

Administrator10 

As the winning and awarded bidder, Artes, through Ms. Dabao, 
entered into the "Quotation Contract" dated August 14, 2006 and written 
on its stationery. Ms. Dumdum affixed her signature above her printed name 
and beneath the word Conforme. 

The OCAt observed that "canvass # l" was handwritten instead of the 
date below the word Conforme. The "Quotation Contract" was for the 
supply of: (a) 25 pieces of jewelry boxes (tokens for the panelists) for 
Pl 7,500.00; and (b) 450 pieces of ball pens (for the conference kits) for 
P13,950.00, at the total contract price of P35,224.00, including the 12% 
VAT of P3,774.00. The copy of the corresponding disbursement voucher for 
the "Quotation Contract" indicated that the expenditure was charged to JR 
- ( ) - Counterpart Funds. Ms. Dumdum affixed her signature on the 
disbursement voucher to recommend her approval thereof. 

The OCAt further observed that it was only on August 18, 2006 that 
Ms. Dumdum recommended the approval of the budget of P7 ,500,000.00 for 
the National Forum to be charged "against the JRSP funds." The 
recommendation of Ms. Dumdum was received by the Office of Chief 
Justice Panganiban at 10:00 a.m. on August 22, 2006, and he affixed his 
signature on the same day to indicate the approval of the recommendation. 
After the National Forum, preparations were made for the Global Forum. 

(9) The letter-proposal for technical services and equipment rental 
for the Global Forum submitted on September 16, 2006 by Ms. Dabao. Ms. 
Dumdum affixed her signature under the word Conforme for the following 
items and corresponding costs, including the rentals: 

ITEM #1-2 PROFESSIONAL CONFERENCE SYSTEM 

BRAHLER DIGIMIC CONFERENCE MICROPHONES 11370,000.00 
with 40 units Microphones 

BRAHLER SIMULTANEOUS INTERPRETATION 
with Portable Interpreters' Booth+Console System 
for FOUR (4) LANGUAGE TRANSLATIONS 

10 Id. at 8. 

Oakage Price (sic) 

Management Fees (17.65%) 

Total Package Price 

380,000.00 

750,000.00 

132,375.00 

I!882,375.00 

~ 
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12% Value Added Tax 105,885.00 

TOTAL PACKAGE PRICE µ988~260.00 11 

(10) On September 21, 2006, Ms. Dabao sent Ms. Dumdum a 
quotation letter for Conference Proper Requirements expressing 
gratitude for considering Artes to serve the event, the Global Forum, on 
October 18-20, 2006 at the Shangri-La Makati Hotel. The pertinent portions 
of the quotation letter ran as follows: 

II 

I. Physical/Creative/Technical Management of the GLOBAL 
FORUM CONFERENCE PROPER. 

The following are areas that were discussed and agreed upon: 

1. That Artes shall provide script for your guidance 

2. That your office shall provide all Emcees for the said events; 

3. That you are requiring video coverage of the event; and 

4. THAT He1en R. Dabao, Executive Director of Artes 
International, Inc. shall oversee the execution, coordination and 
supervision of the conference proper on October 18-20; 8am to 
5pm. Our services include the following: 

A.) Provision of creative, production and technical staff with 
HELEN R. DABAO as Over-all Director and Executive 
Producer; other areas of concern such as the secretariat, 
logistics & security, protocol, registration & documentation 
and the like are under the management of PMO. 

B.) Provision of production staff to include Technical Director, 
Lights Director, Writers, Production Manager, Stage Managers, 
Production Assistants, technical crew and stage hands; 

C.) Provision of lights & sound system, the screens/projectors at 
the Rizal Ballroom and Backdrop bearing the official logo and 
other non-technical requirements needed in the conference 
proper. 

D.) Manage all coordination & supervision of all venue 
preparations needed for the conference except booking guests 
and participants at the hotel. 

E.) Over-all direct the proceedings of the conference according to 
the approved program. 

For and in consideration of the above services ARTES 
INTERNATIONAL, INC. submits a package cost of the above 
requirements at the Conference Proper amounting to NINE HUNDRED 
NINETY SEVEN THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED FIFTY ONE 
99/100 PESOS (PhP997,351.99). 

Id. at 9. 
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Please find attached the Budget Breakdown (See Attachment A) of the 
total package cost of the project. 

TERMS: 

50% downpayment to be paid upon signing of conforme. 

50% balance to be paid upon completion of the project. 

Termination of contract after signing is subject to 50% fee of the total 
project cost. 

Additional requirements shall be charged accordingly. 

Note: Please make cheque payable to Artes International, Inc. (emphasis 
supplied.) 12 

Ms. Dabao and Ms. Dumdum signed the quotation letter. 

( 11) The letter-contract written on the stationery of Artes for the 
opening ceremony and welcome lunch for the Global Forum was signed on 
September 26, 2006 by Ms. Dumdum and Ms. Dabao. Its pertinent portions 
said: 

The following are areas that were discussed and agreed upon: 

1. That Artes shall provide script for your guidance; 

2. That your office shall provide all Emcees for the said events; 

3. That you are requiring video coverage of the event; and 

4. That Helen R. Dabao, Executive Director of Artes International, Inc. 
shall oversee the execution, coordination and supervision of the 
OPENING CEREMONY & WELCOME LUNCH of the Global 
Forum on October 18, 2006 at Makati Shangri-la Hotel. 

I. Technical Requirements: 

1. Additional Sound & Lights for the Entrance of Color Php25,000.00 

2. Complete Lights & Sound System at Quezon Ballroom 45,000.00 

30,000.00 3. 10 sets 2-Way Radio (3 day conference) 

4. 2 Sets of Spot lights (frontal for Parade) 

5. Additional Camera w/ Camera man 

6. Backdrop for the Quezon Ballroom 

7. 2 sets LCD Projectors/Screens 

8. Raw materials (mini-dvd tapes) 

9. Gen Set 

II. Talents: 

a) 30 Cadets with Special Uniforms 

b) 20 pc. Marching Bands (sic) 

12 Id. at 9-10. 

6,000.00 

15,000.00 

30,000.00 

25,000.00 

12,000.00 

15,000.00 

PhP 80,000.00 

50,000.00 

th 
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c) 20 pc. Banda Kawayan 45,000.00 

100,000.00 

27,500.00 

d) 40 pc. Bayanihan Dancers 

e) Withholding Tax 10% 

III. Technical/Prod./Creative Staff PhP205,000.00 

IV. Other Requirements: 

Food & Drinks for 110 talents and participants 

Breakfast & Lunch (Php 175.00/pax) PhP 19,250.00 

15,000.00 Misc. & Contingencies 

TOTAL PACKAGE COST (I, II, Ill, IV.) 

Management Fees (17.65%) 

PhP744,750.00 

131,448.38 

105,143.81 12% VAT 

GRAND TOTAL OF PACKAGE COST-----PHP981,342.18 13 

( 12) The letter-contract printed on Artes' stationery signed on 
September 26, 2006 by Ms. Dabao and Ms. Dumdum to provide creative, 
technical and physical management for the closing ceremony of the Global 
Forum at the cost of P789,290.32. 

The OCAt noted, however, that it was only on October 9, 2006 when 
Ms. Dumdum requested authority to fund the Global Forum, as borne out by 
MEMORANDUM PMO JRP AO 10-09-2006, the relevant issuance, to wit: 

Your honor: 

1. The estimated budget for the conduct of the Global Forum on Liberty 
and Prosperity on October 18-20, 2006 at the Makati Shangri-La Hotel 
is Twenty Million Six Hundred Thousand Pesos 
(Php20,600,000.00). 

2. Of this Php20.6M estimated budget, funding support will come from 
our various development partners in the form of grant proceeds as 
follows: 

Amount of Funding Development Partner 
Support (in Php) --

17,000,000.00 JRP-FA Funds (Grant Proceeds). This 
represents the cumulative unused balance of 
previous years 

-
500,000.00 ABA-Asia (new/incremental funds) 

1,200,000.00 ADB (new/incremental funds) 
300,000.00 I CIDA (new/incremental funds) 
400,QOO.OO I TAF (new/incremental funds) 
400,000.00 ! WB (new/incremental funds) 

~-

D Id. at 10-11. 
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These new incremental funds will be administered (with the exemption 
of the World Bank) by our development par~ners. 

3. In case of the JRP-FA Funds, may we request for Your Honor's 
approval to disburse these funds for the various expenditures related to 
the Global Forum, subject to the usual accounting and auditing rules 
and regulations. 

4. We are pleased to report to your Honor that possible additional new 
funding support may come from AusAID, British Council, KAS and 
the UNDP. 

5. For your Honor's kind consideration and approval, please. 14 

On October 10, 2006, Chief Justice Panganiban affixed his signature 
to approve Ms. Dumdum's request. 

On October 13, 2006, Ms. Dumdum sought the authority from Chief 
Justice Panganiban "to process payment for services rendered of (sic) 
contractors" at the Global Forum. Her memorandum for that purpose was as 
follows: 

Your Honor: 

1. This is in relation to our Memorandum requesting authority to fund the 
Global Forum on Liberty and Prosperity on October 18-20, 2006 at the 
Makati Shangri-la Hotel which was approved by Your Honor. Copy of 
the approved Memorandum is attached for Your Honor's reference. 

2. In this connection, may we also request for Your Honor's approval for 
partial payment for the following contractors of the Forum: 

14 Id.atll-12. 

Makati Shangri-La Hotel Accommodation and 
Function Rooms 

Cultural Center of the Philippines 

Production and Artist 

Goldcraft and Fashion International 

Barong Tagalog for Foreign Delegate; 
Uniforms for Choir, Secretariat and Ushers 

Artes International, Inc. 

Physical, Creative and Technical Management 

Global Forum AVP and Book Launching AVP 

Simultaneous Interpretation System (SIS) 

Audiovisual Equipment Rental and Video 
Coverage 

Opening Ceremony 

Closing Ceremony 

5,331,143.50 

517,158.40 

698,320.00 

997,351.99 

997,483.76 

988,260.00 

997,483.76 

981,342.18 

789,290.32 

€. 
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Forum Collaterals (Kits, IDs, Pens, Souvenir 
and Shell Leis) 

A.M. No. 12-6-18-SC 

693,626.75 

3. For Your Honor's kind consideration and approval, please. 15 

Chief Justice Panganiban affixed his signature on October 16, 2006 at 
the lower left corner of the memorandum to signify approval of the request 
for authority to process partial payments for expenses incurred during the 
Global Forum. 

(13) Ms. Dumdum signed a disbursement voucher around October 
16, 2006 charging to the JRP(FA)-GOP COUNTERPART FUNDS the 
gross amount of F2,875,606.01, less the sum of F575,121.20 as taxes, 
leaving the net amount of F2,300,484.80 as partial payment to Artes in 
connection with the Global Forum. The gross amount of F2,875,606.01 was 
broken down thusly: 

* Physical, Creatives and Technical Management-------- }!498,676.00 

*Global Forum AVP and Book Launching AVP---------- 498,741.88 

* Simultaneous Interpretation System (SIS) --------------- 494, 130.00 

*Audiovisual Equipment Rental and Video Coverage--- 498,741.88 

* Opening Ceremony------------------------------------------ 490,671.09 

* Closing Ceremony ------------------------------------------- 394,645 .16 

TOT AL ------------------------------------------ P 2,875,606.01 16 

Check No. 29454 for the total net amount of 1!2,300,484.81 was 
issued to Artes on December 5, 2006 as final payment for the production of 
the Global Forum. Artes received the check on the following day. 

Subsequently, the OCAt noted then Chief Accountant Lilian Ulgado's 
Memorandum dated February 27, 2007 addressed to the PMO Finance 
Division about the claim by the Makati Shangri-la Hotel for the unpaid 
amount of F651,000.00. The pertinent portion of the Memorandum was as 
follows: 

Per our records, the total claim of Makati Shangri-La was already 
paid in full per voucher 06-11-33736. Please attach an explanation why 
there is still an (sic) remaining balance of P651,000.00. 

Also, it appears that there is no basis in paying the said remaining 
balance of 1!651,000.00. Please attach authority to pay the said amount 
and charging it to Fiscal Autonomy. 

1s Id. at 12. 
16 Id. at 13. 
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Further, in going over the supporting papers of the full payment to 
Makati Shangri-La per voucher 11-33736, we noted that the Court paid 
for the accommodation of Ms. Helen Dabao in Room Nos. 512 and 
516. In the Articles of Incorporation submitted to this office, Ms. Helen 
Dabao is listed as one of the incorporators of Artes International. Is Ms. 
Dabao a participant to the said event? Is (sic) so, please attach copy of 
memo circular of those who are authorized to attend the Global 
Conference showing the inclusion of Ms. Dabao in the said list. (Emphasis 
supplied)17 

In her responding Memorandum dated February 28, 2007, PMO 
Financial Management Analyst Paula Cheryl Dumlao expressed that because 
the hotel accommodations for Ms. Dabao were being questioned, the 
expenses therefor should be treated as a "disputed item" that could be 
excluded from the bill to avoid further ·delays in the settlement of the 
obligations to Makati Shangri-La Hotel. 

Thereafter, Chief Accountant Ulgado referred the matter to Judicial 
Staff Head Midas P. Marquez of the Office of Chief Justice Reynato Puno to 
resolve whether the "remaining balance" of P651,000.00 for the conduct of 
the Global Forum could be charged to JR-FA GOP Counterpart Funds. 18 

2. 
Other activities relative to the retirement 

of Chief Justice Panganiban 

The transactions between the PMO and Artes continued even after the 
holding of the National Forum and Global Forum. 

In Memorandum PMO JRP AO 15-11-2006 dated November 15, 2006, 
Ms. Dumdum requested authority from Chief Justice Panganiban to "fund 
certain activities," thusly: 

Your Honor: 

1. May we request authority to fund the following activities: 

ACTIVITIES AMOUNT (in Php) 
1. Musical Interlude at the Cultural Center of 
the Philippines on November 30, 2006 551,536.00 

2. State of the Judiciary (Audio-Visual 
Production) 470,400.00 

17 Id. at 14. 
18 Id. at 14-15. 
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3. Leadership and Servanthood: The Labor and 
Legacy of Chief Justice Artemio v. 
Panganiban (Audio-Visual Production) 650,000.00 

TOTAL 1,671,936.00 

2. Should your Honor concur, may we request that the abovementioned 
amount be charged to the JRP FA (Grant Proceeds), subject to the 
usual accounting and auditing rules and regulations. 

3. May we also request for Your Honor's approval to issue a Cash 
Advance in the amount of Eight Hundred Fifty Thousand Pesos 
(Php850,000.00) to initially cover the cost of the abovementioned 
activities and other incidental expenses to Mrs. Araceli Bayuga, Chief, 
Cash Division, Fiscal Management and Budget Office (FMBO). The 
breakdown of the cash advance are as follows: 

ACTIVITIES AMOUNT (in Php) 
Musical Interlude at the Cultural Center of the 
Philippines on November 30, 2006 350,000.00 
State of the Judiciary (Audio-Visual Production) 

250,000.00 
Leadership and Servanthood: The Labor and 
Legacy of Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban 250,000.00 
(Audio-Visual Production) 

TOTAL 850,000.00 

4. For Your Honor's kind consideration and approval. 19 

The OCAt reported that Associate Justice Angelina Sandoval 
Gutierrez, as the Chairperson of the Committee on the Chief Justice's 
Valedictory, recommended the approval of the request. Chief Justice 
Panganiban later approved the same and affixed his signature on the left­
hand comer of the Memorandum. 

Having obtained the approval, Ms. Dumdum entered into the 
following contracts with Artes, namely: 

(1) In a letter-quotation dated November 17, 2006, Ms. Dabao 
offered the services of Artes for 'Retirement A VP: Leadership and 
Servanthood' for the an1ount of P620,000.00 plus 12% VAT of 
,P,74,400.00 or the total 'AVP cost' of 1!694,400.00. Ms. Dumdum affixed 
her signature to the letter-quotation under the word conforme. It appears 
that the downpayment of P.250,000.00 was paid to Artes - this is evident 
from the Sales Invoice dated December 8, 2006 collecting the 'final 
payment' of P444,400.00. For the same project, Mindstorm Media, Inc. 
reportedly quoted the price of Pl,025,155.04 while Graymatter offered 
their services for Pl, l 00,000.00. 

19 Id. at 25-26. 
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(2) Under letter-quotation dated November 22, 2006, Ms. Dabao 
offered the services of Artes for the 'Commemorative Program 
(Retirement of CJ Panganiban) on December 6, 2006 at the Fiesta 
Pavilion, Manila Hotel, 6:30 PM' for the package cost of P.997,220.22. 
Ms. Dumdum signed the letter-quotation for the Court and, in Attachment 
I thereto, affixed her signature under the word conforme. With the total 
withholding tax of P.62,326.26 deducted from the package cost, the 
disbursement voucher in favor of Artes is for the net amount of 
P.934,893. 96. 

(3) On November 25, 2006, Ms. Dti.hao quoted the contract price 
of 1!418,320.00 for the project entitled "Celebration of the Life, Love & 
Achievement of Chief Justice Panganiban Event" at the Pan Pacific Hotel 
at 12:00 noon of December 7, 2007. Similarly, Mindstorm Media, Inc. 
submitted a quoted price of P474,374.80 inclusive of 12% VAT for the 
same project, while Graymatter offered P450,000.00 inclusive of 
management fees and 12% VAT. Ms. Dumdum affixed her signature to 
the letter-quotation as "APJR Administrator." The disbursement voucher 
prepared for the contract shows that the "technical and non-technical 
support" services were rendered 'during (the) appreciation luncheon for 
the APJR non-development partners.' The net contract price of 
P.392,175.00, after deducting taxes of P.26,145.00, is to be charged to 
'JRSP(WB)-GOP COUNTERPART FUNDS,' as recommended by Ms. 
Dumdum. 

xxx xxx xxx 

(4) In an undated letter-quotation, Ms. Dabao offered the services 
of Artes for the retirement ceremonies in honor of Chief Justice 
Panganiban on December 6, 2006 at the 'Supreme Court Hall' for the 
price of P401,520.00, to which letter Ms. Dumdum affixed her signature. 
The disbursement voucher in favor of Artes shows that it is to be charged 
to 'JRSP(WB)-GOP COUNTERPART FUNDS.'20 

On November 27, 2006, Ms. Dumdum requested from Chief Justice 
Panganiban authority to provide additional funding for additional court­
related activities, stating thereon in her Memorandum PMO JRPAO 27-11-
2006, as follows: 

Your Honor: 

1. This is further to our Memorandum requesting authority to conduct 
and fund the remaining activities for December which Your Honor 
approved. Copy of said Memorandum is attached for Your Honor's 
reference. 

2. May we request additional authority to provide additional funding for 
the development and preparation of the Audio-Video (sic) 
Presentations entitled 'Liberty and Prosperity Under the Rule of 
Law' and 'Leadership and Servanthood: The Labor and Legacy of 
Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganibatn, Jr.' (sic) to the various 
internal and external stakeholders of the APJR. The presentation of 

20 Id. at 26-28. 
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these A VPs will commence on December 06, 2006. The total cost for 
the creative design, physical and technical production for the said 
activities is Pl,817,060.22. 

3. Should Your Honor concur, may we request that the abovementioned 
amount be charged to the JRP FA Grant Proceeds or JRSP Funds, 
whichever is app.-opriate. May we likewise request authority to 
disburse and/or draw cash advance for the total amount to Mrs. 
Araceli Bayuga, Chief, Cash Division, Fiscal Management and Budget 
Office. 

4. For Your Honor's kind consideration and approval.2
1 

On November 28, 2006, Chief Justice Panganiban approved the request 
without specifying the fund source. 

3. 
Artes' requests for payment of unpaid contract price 

Upon the conclusion of the Global Forum, the PMO forwarded to the 
FMBO pertinent documents relative to the items supplied by Artes (i.e., 350 
conference bags, 900 ID holders, 450 units of ball pens, and 25 jewelry 
boxes as souvenirs) in order to facilitate payment to the latter. 

The FMBO declined to process the payment for lack of the necessary 
purchase orders (POs) as required by law. 

Considering that no payment could be processed without the requisite 
POs, the PMO requested the Property Division of the Office of 
Administrative Services (OAS) to issue the POs for the supplies delivered by 
Artes. Being responsible for the determination of the reasonableness of the 
prices of supplies, the Property Division surveyed suppliers of the 
conference bags, the ID holders, and ball pens, but not the jewelry boxes 
which Artes claimed to have been sourced from Cebu. Based on its survey, 
the Property Division concluded that the following items were overpriced22 

and excessive,23 to wit: 

Qty. 

350 

900 

450 

21 Id. at 27. 
22 Id. at 15. 
23 Id. at 16. 

Unit 

pcs. 

pcs. 

pcs. 

Description 

Conference Bag 

I.D. Holder 

Ball Pens 

Unit Price Total Amount 

Property Property PMO 
Division 

PMO 
Division 

P450 P220 Pl 57,500.00 P77,000.00 

95 35 85,000.00 34,200.00 

31 13 13,950.00 5,850.00 

• 
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I 25 I pcs. I Jewelry Box 100 I 11,500.00 I 

In the Memorandum dated January 22, 2007 submitted to the Office 
of Chief Justice Puno, SC Judicial Staff Head Felicitas D. Caunca (Ms. 
Caunca) of the Property Division declared tr.at the PMO had itself conducted 
the canvassing for the supplies on the ground that it had already been 
pressed for time; that such canvassing could have been done through the 
Philippine Government Electronic Procurement System (Phil-GEPS)by the 
Property Division in no time at all; that if the amounts involved were within 
the Property Division's authority to canvass, it would have issued the 
requested POs regardless of whether the canvassing had been done by the 
proper bids committee or by the Property Division itself; and that because 
the PMO did not observe the proper procurement procedure, what had 
resulted were "advance deliveries," which were disallowed by law.24 

Ms. Caunca also clarified: 

This Division believes that the price for which the PMO obtained 
the aforestated supplies were excessive. In this respect, this Division finds 
pertinent the provision of Commission on Audit (COA) Circular No. 85-
55-A which states that: 

'Price is excessive if it is more than the 10% allowable 
price variance between the price paid for the item bought 
and the price of the same item per canvass of the auditor. ' 

The matter was consulted by the undersigned with the COA 
Auditor assigned to the Court who expressed her opinion that the 
Purchased (sic) Order may still be prepared by this Division but the 
amount should be based on the quotation or canvass obtained by this 
Division and not that of the PMO. The COA Auditor even reminded (us 
on) the prohibition on antedating the PO if only to reflect or coincide the 
dates when the PMO concluded their transactions with the Artes 
International. Needless to state, the difference between the two (2) 
amounts is to be borne by the PMO or its responsible official, as the case 
may be.25 

On January 23, 2007, Ms. Dabao wrote to Ms. Dumdum requesting 
that Artes be recognized as a "Supplier of Services" in order to "rectify the 
taxes that were unwittingly withheld from Artes," which were equivalent to 
15% of the contract price. She justified her request by attaching a copy of 
BIR Ruling DA075-07, which categorically stated that Artes was subject to 
"2% withholding tax on income payments made by the top 10,000 private 
corporations and government offices, national, or local, pursuant to section 
(sic) 3 (M) and (N) ofRevenue No. 17-2001."26 

2
4 Id. at 15-16. 

25 Id. at 16. 
26 Id. at 24. 
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On January 27, 2007, Chief Accountant Ulgado inquired from the 
Chief of the Withholding Tax Division of the BIR about the query of Ms. 
Dabao, thusly: 

This refers to the BIR Ruling DA-033-2007 dated January 23, 
2007 issued to Ms. Helen R. Dabao of Artes International, Inc. The BIR 
ruling states that an event organizer, like Artes, is a supplier of service. 
Consequently, payments made by private corporation and/or government 
offices are subject to the two percent (2%) withholding tax. 

The Articles of Incorporation of Artes International, x x x, states 
that its primary purpose is Production and Management of Events and 
Entertainment. 

The Court withheld the 15% withholding tax from its payment to 
Artes International pursuant to Sections 3 and 4 of Revenue Regulations 
No. 30-2003 based on the entirety of the services rendered by said 
company. The creative, physical and technical aspects of the event 
required the hiring of Artes International as production manager providing 
management and technical services for the conduct of said event. 

May we respectfully request for an opinion from your office to 
clarify whether or nu1 the services presented above were covered by 
Section 3 (M) and (N) of RR 17-2001 or among those enumerated in 
Sections (sic) 3 of RR 30-2003. 

Thank you for your immediate attention. 

However, Chief Accountant Ulgado received no reply from the BIR.27 

Subsequently, the FMBO requested the Office of the Chief Justice 
(OCJ) to refer to the OCAt the matter of "the propriety of collecting 
withholding tax of 15% totaling Pl,342,637.26 from payments" made by the 
PMO to Artes "for services rendered" relative to the Global Forum. It 
appears that on June 6, 2007 the FMBO returned to the PMO four 
disbursement vouchers issued in the name of Artes "without action," 
specifically: 1!376,425.00; 1!392,175.00; 1!372,225.00; and 1!934,893.00, or a 
total of 1!2,071,664.10, on the ground that the FMBO was still awaiting 
instructions from the OCJ.28 

On August 22, 2007, the PMO, represented by Edilberto A. Davis, 
Dennis Russell D. Baldago and Atty. Sigrid Promentilla; the OCJ, 
represented by then Assistant Court Administrator (ACA) Jose Midas P. 
Marquez (now the Court Administrator); and Artes, represented by Ms. 
Dabao, met to "discuss the unpaid disbursement vouchers due to Artes 

27 Id. at 24. 
28 Id. at 28. 
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International Inc. (sic) for the conduct of the National and Global Forum 
(sic) on Liberty and Prosperity, and the Retirement Ceremonies for Chief 
Justice Artemio V. Panganiban held last August, October and December 
2007 (sic), respectively. "29 

When the Memorandum of the Property Division was referred to her, 
Ms. Dumdum maintained through her Memorandum dated September 14, 
2007 that Artes had been an events organizer responsible for "outsourcing of 
supplies and materials used in the forum"; that its services had been engaged 
to take charge of the details of the Global Forum; that PMO was only 
involved in "overseeing that Artes took into consideration the important 
factors in selecting the suppliers, such as capacity to execute the design and 
timely delivery of such requirements"; that "it would be inaccurate to state 
that the selection of the canvassed suppliers was done by the PMO 
arbitrarily because it merely proceeded from the suppliers chosen by Artes;" 
and that the PMO had been merely instrumental in helping process payments 
to Artes by the conduct of its "ministerial duty of preparing the disbursement 
vouchers."30 

Anent the non-observance of procurement rules, Ms. Dumdum 
contended that "the procurement of supplies and materials used in the forum 
need not pass through the Committee on Bids, nor follow the procurement 
procedures under R.A. 9184 because those were not actual procurement of 
goods;" and that "[t]hose items[,] for all intents and purposes[,] were to be 
treated as 'incidental' to the services provided by the events organizer, 
which in this case happens to be Artes."31 

Under the circumstances, ACA Marquez, as Chief Justice Puno's 
Staff Head, referred the Artes matter regarding the "supplies for the National 
Forum" to the OCAt for study and report. 

In the meantime, on November 12, 2007, Ms. Dabao transmitted to 
Ms. Dumdum a letter inquiring on the status of the following: 

29 Id. 

1. The taxes amounting to Pl,162,850.00 withheld from the 
contract price of the National Forum and Global Forum; 

2. The "collaterals" amounting to P693,626.75 incidental to the 
National Forum; and 

30 Id. at 16. 
3

1 Id. at 17. 
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3. The payment of the remaining balance of P2,261,460 .22 for 
the Retirement Ceremonies of Chief Justice Panganiban. 

In her letter dated November 13, 2007, Ms. Dumdum acknowledged 
the aforementioned letter of Ms. Dabao, and assured her that a follow-up 
meeting would be conducted, viz.: 

x x x [A]fter the following concerns have been addressed: (a) the x x x 
OCA T releases its comments to the Office of ACA Marquez regarding the 
taxes withheld during the conduct of the National and Global Forum (sic) 
on Liberty and Prosperity in the amount of Php 1, 162,850.00; (b) the PMO 
collaterals used during the conduct of the National Forum on Liberty and 
Prosperity in the amount of Php693,626.75; and (c) the Disbursement 
Vouchers concerning the remaining balance of Php2,261,460.22 for the 
conduct of the Retirement Ceremonies of Chief Justice Panganiban are 
forwarded to the Office of ACA Marquez xx x.32 

On August 20, 2008, Ms. Dabao sent another letter requesting that 
Mr. Davis, who had meanwhile taken over as Director of the PMO following 
the resignation of Ms. Dumdum, issued to her a "formal correspondence" on 
the unpaid balances.33 

On September 23, 2008, Ms. Dabao followed up with Mr. Davis, this 
time threatening to expose the delay to the media.34 

On October 6, 2008, Ms. Dabao met with ACA Marquez, Mr. Davis 
and Dennis Russell D. Baldago to thresh out matters relative to the claims of 
Artes.35 

On May 26, 2009, Ms. Dabao wrote Chief Justice Puno to appeal for 
the settlement of the "aggregate overdue accounts" totaling ,P2,955,086.97 
that Artes had been trying to collect since August 2007. 36 

On March 8, 2011, Ms. Dabao wrote Court Administrator Marquez 
pleading for an audience to discuss the collectibles of Artes.37 

On April 28, 2011, Ms. Dabao wrote Chief Justice Renato C. Corona 
for help "in our three year old quest for justice," relevantly stating: 

12 Id. at 28-29. 
33 Id. at 29. 
34 Id. 
35 Id. at 30. 
36 Id. at 31. 
37 Id. at 32. 
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xx xx 

We appeal to you, CJ Corona, to aid us in our three year old quest 
for justice. We are a small events company and Php2.9 million is our 
entire rolling capital for the business. What pains us is we cannot find any 
reason nor could the OCAT find any reason for the Supreme Court to hold 
payment for our company, Artes International, Inc.38 

On May 30, 2011, Ms. Dabao wrote Atty. Lourdes B. Lim, 
Department Auditor of the Commission on Audit (COA) assigned to the 
Court, requesting a certification to the effect that "no audit (pre or post) has 
yet been conducted on the said collectibles."39 

In her reply dated June 28, 2011, Atty. Lim responded thusly: 

Please be informed that we cannot issue a certification that no audit (pre or 
post) since no payment has been made yet nor disbursement voucher 
submitted to this Office (sic). Moreover, an Audit Observation 
Memorandum dated May 9, 2007 was issued by this Office which was 
received in the Office of the Chief Justice on May 21, 2007 during the 
time of the former Chief Justice Reynato S. Puno relative to the retirement 
activities in honor of the former Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban, Jr. 
(sic) wherein no comment/reply was received by this Office. 

Further, pursuant to Section 2 of P.D. 1445, The Government Auditing 
Code of the Philippines which provides that 'It is the declared policy of 
the State that all resources of the government shall be managed, expended 
or utilized in accordance with law and regulations and safeguarded against 
loss or wastage through illegal or improper disposition, with a view to 
ensuring efficiency, economy and effectiveness in the operations of 
government. The responsibility to take care that such policy is faithfully 
adhered to rests directly with the chief or the head of the government 
agency concerned. 

For your appropriate action.40 

By her own Memorandum dated February 21, 2012, then JRP 
Administrator Geraldine Faith Econg requested Atty. Corazon G. Ferrer­
Flores, FMBO Chief, for an update on "the advice from the Office of the 
Chief Justice which you have waited for." However, no action was taken 
thereon. 

38 Id. 
39 Id. 
40 Id. at 28-29. 
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4. 
The response of the PMO 

Chief Justice Puno referred the Report of the OCAt to the PMO for 
appropriate action or comment. 

Inasmuch as Ms. Dumdum had meanwhile resigned as the JRP 
Administrator effective February 19, 2008 and had immediately gone on 
terminal leave prior thereto, it was Mr. Davis, using the title of Judicial 
Reform Program Administrator, who submitted the comment dated February 
18, 2008 in behalf of the PM0.41 

Mr. Davis explained therein that the estimated budget of 
¥!7,500,000.00 for the National Forum superseded the approved budget of 
P6,800,000.00; and that the "latter (?) document was discarded without any 
intention to be used as an official document."42 

Justifying why expenditures had been charged to the JRSP Fund even 
before Chief Justice Panganiban had approved the request for authority to 
use such fund, Mr. Davis expounded: 

The foregoing statement was nothing but obvious 
misrepresentation, Your Honor. Foremost, it must be considered that the 
alleged expenditures cited by the OCAT are expenses which were 
incidental to the services of Artcs as Events' specialist. Since Artcs 
procured those items in their own capacity as private contractor and in 
compliance with their obligations and responsibilities as events specialist, 
those expenses will eventually he reimbursed by the Supreme Court to 
Artes. The JRP A merely identified the funding source from which those 
expenses shall be charged. Thus, those items are not subject of new 
contracts but are merely part of the services delivered by Artes. Thus, 
it would be inaccurate to state that those expenses were incurred prior to 
the grant of approval by the Chief Justice.43 

Mr. Davis cited the follmving provision of SC Administrative Circular 
No. 60-2003 to explain why the PMO had assisted in the procurement 
activities, to wit: 

4.3 All JRSP procurement activities shall be done through, or 
with the assistance of the PMO. The Project Implementation Monitoring 
and Evaluation Group of the PMO (PMO-PIMEG) will manage the 
specific procurement activities, and tract their baseline schedule and actual 
progress. The Program Direc1or- of iJw PMO will be responsible for the 
overall monitoring of the procurement process, particularly, the 

---------------------
4 I Id. at 20. 
42 Id. at 20-21. 
43 Id. at 21. 
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notification of the lagging activities and the responsible offices. Emphasis 
supplied.44 

He insisted that the PMO, being the end-user, assisted Artes as the event's 
specialist, thusly: 

The basis of the PMO's functions as an end-user unit was further 
affirmed by the subsequent issuance by the GPPB of the Generic 
Procurement Manuals (approved on 14 June 2008), whereby procuring 
entities are encouraged to create their respective Procurement Units (an 
organic unit of office within the agency). These procurement units were 
envisioned to perform the functions of the BAC Secretariat including the 
preparation of procurement documents. Considering that "request for 
quotations" or "canvassing documents" as loosely used, verily fall under 
the same category, then it may be properly inferred that the PMO, being 
the end-user unit validly conducted the canvass. Hence the allegation of 
usurpation of BAC functions in violation of the Administrative Circular on 
procurement as hastily alleged by OCAT was disputed.45 

Commenting on the allegation of splitting of contracts, Mr. Davis, 
focusing only on the production of "a 10-minute Audio-Visual Highlights of 
International Conference and Showcase on Judicial Reforms (ICSJR) in 
DVD format and standard casing with 700 copies," denied that there had 
been any splitting of contracts because such services were distinct from 
those undertaken by Artes, which consisted of "translating the proceedings 
of the whole conference into an Audio-Visual Documentary Video F onnat, 
with four hundred ( 400) copies of cover booklets." He insisted that "Artes 
was engaged to focus on the substantive part of the conference and the 
important details which should be accurately documented for the purpose of 
maintaining an official record of the events that transpired during the 
conference," and, consequently, the allegation of splitting of contracts was 
"baseless and without merit."46 

Mr. Davis invoked the presumption of regularity in the performance 
of official functions, and the maxim damnum absque injuria. He manifested 
that "the OCAT cannot presume that PMC1 through the JRPA was in bad 
faith when it entered into the questioned transactions. Absent a clear 
evidence of bad faith, the same shail not be applied." He added: 

44 ld. 
45 Id. 

Likewise, we also wish to reiterate our previous statement in 
Memorandum PMO JRPAO 09-14-2007 that the PMO's involvement in 
the said transaction was merely to facilitate the process by overseeing 
that Artes took into consideration the important factors in selecting 
the suppliers, particularly its capacity to execute the design and timely 
delivery of such requirements. The canvass made by lhe PMO which 

46 Id. at 21-22. 
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reflected quotations from other suppliers (although not generally required 
due to the very nature of subject items), was in fact an exercise of due 
diligence because it exerted the effort to ensure that the prices charged by 
Artes were still within the reasonable market price, even after including a 
reasonable profit margin in exchange for the additional customized design 
inputted by Artes to the said items under consideration. There was 
nothing irregular in the conduct of the PMO, thus it should not be 
penalized for doing its responsibilities efficiently to ensure that the 
National and Global Forums were successfully hosted by the Court. 
(Emphasis supplied.)47 

Mr. Davis denied the need to secure certificates of availability of 
funds (CAFs) prior to the execution of the contracts with Artes. He opined 
that the CAFs were required only for locally funded activities. He submitted 
that as long as the requirements stated in page 145 of the Handbook on 
Understanding Foreign Assisted Projects of the COA "are present, there is 
no reason to delay or disallow disbursement of funds." 

The requirements prescribed by the Handbook on Understanding 
Foreign Assisted Projects adverted to are the following: 

.11 Id. 

a) Documentation. 

In general, the documentation required to support disbursements 
depends on the type of expenditures involved. 

If the Bank needs full supporting documentation, two copies of 
contracts or purchase orders should be sent to the Bank to review by the 
designated task manager before submitting the first related application. 
One copy of each of the following supporting documents is normally 
given to the Bank with the withdrawal application: 

b) Supplier's or consultant's invoice, or a summary statement of 
works performed signed by the supervising engineer or other authorized 
official 

c) Evidence of shipment (for equipment and materials purchased). 
This can be one of the following: 

• Copy of the bill of lading 
• Forwarder's certificate 

d) Evidence of payment (for reimbursement). This can be one 
of the following: 

• 
• 

Receipted invoice or formal receipt 
Commercial bank· s report of payment 

e) Performance security such as bank guarantee in the case of 
advance payments if required under the terms of the contract, or where an 
unusually are (sic) advance payment is made (Emphasis supplied.) 
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Mr. Davis affirmed that there was nothing irregular about "facilitating 
the conduct of alternative method of procurement of shopping" even though 
the JRP Administrator did not first seek authority to do so from the Chief 
Justice. He reminded that: "The act of facilitating and approving the 
quotations of the items being bought by Artes were mere exercise of the 
authority granted to it under Section 4.3 of Administrative Circular No. 60-
2003."48 He opined that neither the loan agreement nor the law necessitated 
the "formal requirements," like the CAFs for the contracts. He reiterated that 
the CAFs applied only to locally funded projects; hence, the "quotation­
contract" was "a valid government contract" that could not be questioned.49 

With respect to the authority issued by Ms. Dumdum to pay amounts beyond 
the threshold of her authority granted under SC Administrative Circular No. 
60-2003, he posited that the observation of the OCAt thereon was a "matter 
of opinion" because "[t]o date, no audit observation has been made by COA 
to this effect."5° Finally, he invoked Chief Justice's intervention "to put an 
end to all these harassments and desperate attempts to tarnish the reputation 
of the undersigned."51 

It is noteworthy that in its letter of May 26, 2016, Artes, through Ms. 
Dabao, communicated to the Court, through the OCJ, that it no longer 
wished to pursue its claim; that its claim had been the result of a 
misunderstanding; and that its claim had been already settled to its complete 
satisfaction. 52 

Artes submitted simultaneously with ,its letter of May 26, 2016 the so­
called Release, Waiver & Quitclaim in which it reiterated the contents to the 
effect that it was waiving any and all its rights and interests in the claim; and 
expressly stated that it was releasing the Court from any further liability.53 

It is possible that the Release, Waiver & Quitclaim rendered moot and 
academic every issue regarding Artes' several contracts with the Court. An 
action is considered moot when it no longer presents a justiciable 
controversy because the issues involved have become academic or dead, or 
when the dispute has already been resolved and, hence, one is not entitled to 
judicial intervention unless the issue is likely to be raised again between the 
parties. As the consequence, nothing more needs to be resolved after its 
determination has been overtaken by subsequent events. 54 

48 Id. at 23. 
49 Id. 
50 Id. 
51 Id. 
52 Id. at 83. 
53 Id. at 84-85. 
54 Galicto v. Aquino III. GR. No. i 93978, February 28, 2012, 667 SCRA 150, 177. 
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However, the mootness principle bows to certain exceptions, such that 
mootness will not always deter further proceedings upon a matter until its 
resolution in due time if there is a valid reason to do so. In David v. 
Macapagal-Arroyo, 55 the Court has defined four instances in which the 
courts can still decide an otherwise moot case, namely: (a) there is a grave 
violation of the Constitution; (b) the exceptional character of the situation 
and the paramount public interest is involved; ( c) when the constitutional 
issue raised requires formulation of controlling principles to guide the 
Bench, the Bar, and the public; and ( d) the case is capable of repetition yet 
evading review. 56 

The extraordinary character of this case for involving the compliance 
with the law and rules on procurement as well as the public interest thereby 
necessarily involved override the applicability of the mootness principle. 
Based on the Report of the OCAt, liability of some form for violations of the 
law and rules on procurement already might have probably attached to the 
public officials involved. To still proceed herein clearly responds to the 
Constitutional declaration that public office is a public trust. Prudential 
wisdom also dictates that the Court should not immediately brush aside the 
irregularities committed in relation to the services rendered by Artes if only 
to serve the demand for transparency. 

Ruling of the Court 

The Court is not unmindful that Artes, prior to its submission of the 
Release, Waiver & Quitclaim, had been consistently and assiduously 
pleading for the payment of the total sum of P4,117 ,936.98, itemized as 
follows: 

1. The taxes withhek1 on the "contract" price of the National Forum and 
Global Forum amounting to Pl,162,850.00; 

2. The "collaterals" used in the National Forum amounting to 
P693,626. 76; and 

3. The balance of the "contract" price of the ''Retirement Ceremonies" of 
CJ Panganiban am9_u_l)!iDKt9_~_2,261,460.22. 57 

- ~-----·--··-------

The Court, albeit fiscally autonomous, could not simply authorize and 
justify the release of funds to pay Artes' demand in view of the many 
questions that were raised against the contracts entered into with Artes by 
Ms. Dumdum as the PMO Administrator. To decide on whether to pay or 
not, the Court had to be guided by the law on the proper disbursement of 

ss GR. Nos. 171396, 171409, 171485, 171483, 171400, 171489, and 171424, May 3. 2006, 489 SCRA 
160. 
s6 Id. at214-215. 
57 Rollo, p. 28. 
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public funds, whether emanating from the National Treasury or sourced 
from loans or credits extended by foreign funding partners. 

The WB loan agreement 
and its implementation 

The loan agreement between the Republic of the Philippines and the 
International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD), or the 
World Bank (WB), was signed on October 2, 2003 to fund the Judicial 
Reform Support Project (JRSP) whose objective was "to assist the Borrower 
in developing a more effective and accessible Judiciary that would foster 
public trust and confidence through the implementation of the Supreme 
Court's Action Program for Judicial Reform."58 

The JRSP consisted of the following: 

1. Improving Case Adjudication and Access to Justice; 

2. Enhancing Institutional lntegrity; 

3. Strengthening the Institutional Capacity of the Judiciary; and 

4. Support for the Reform of the Judicial System and Program 
Management Office (Pl\10) 

Based on the foregoing, the "'Globalization Lecture Series - Forum 
with Chief Justice" appeared in the JRSP WB Financial Monitoring Report 
CY 2006 under the second category, i.e., Enhancing Institutional Integrity. 

SC Administrative Circular No. 60-2003 entitled Procurement Policy 
and Procedures for the Judicial Reform Support Project was issued on 
November 18, 2003 "to ensure the effective implementation of the Judicial 
Reform Support Project (JRSP) through the timely procurement of Goods, 
Works, and Services, guide the concerned Supreme Court Offices in their 
respective roles in the procurement process, prescribe the allowed lead times 
for each procurement activity, and monitor and resolve bottlenecks and 
problem areas in the procurement process." Thus, SC Administrative 
Circular No. 60-2003 applied when procuring goods, works, and services in 
furtherance of the implementation of the JRSP, viz.: 

58 Rollo, Vol. 11, pp. 99-102 (Schedult' 2, Loan Agreement between the Republic nf the Philippines and 
the International Bank for Recons1r11ction and DPvt!fopml!nf, Octob0r 2, 2003). 
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3. SCOPE 

3.1 This Administrafore Order applies to the procurement of all 
types of _works,- goods, and services in the implementation of 
the JRSP, 

xxx 

5. LEGAL FRAMEWORK 

5.1 These Guidelines are formulated in fulfillment of a major legal 
commitment of the Government of the Philippines (GOP) with 
the World Bank (WB) and therefore, have the force and effect of 
a legal instrument for compliance of all concerned with the 
implementation of the JRSP. The provisions of these guidelines 
are basically premised and substantially based on, and in some 
parts or instances, literally quoted or drawn from: 

5.1.1 JRSP LOAN AGREEMENT. The Loan Agreement 
executed by and between the GOP and the WB on 
October 2, 2003 shall govern the legal relationship 
between the Bank and the Supreme Court as the Project's 
Implementing Agency. The terms and conditions set forth 
therein for the procurement of goods, works and 
consulting services shall be observed in consonance with 
the Bank Guidelines. 

5.1.2 BANK GUIDELINES 

5.1.2.1 For Works and Goods procurement, the 
Guidelines: Procurement under IBRD Loan and 
Credits, January 1995, revised January and 
August 1996, September 1997 and January 1999 
shall be used. 

5.1.2.2 For the selection of Consultants, the Guidelines: 
Selection and Employment of Consultants by 
World Bank Borrowers, January 1 997, revised in 
September 1997, January 1999 and May 2002 
shall be used. 

5.1.2.3 More recent provisions and amendments of Bank 
Guidelines may be applicable subject to prior 
notice and clearance by the Bank. 

5.1.3 REPUBLIC ACT NO. 9184 (An Act Providing for the 
Modernization, Standardization and Regulation of the 
Procurement Activities of the Government and for Other 
Purposes) and its Implementing Rules and Regulations 
(IRR). 

5.2 In case of co1flict, the Loan Agreement and the World Bank 
Guidelines take precedence over Government Guidelines. 
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Under the aforequoted guidelines set in SC Administrative Circular 
No. 60-2003, the procurement rules for the JkSP were not exclusively culled 
from the IBRD Guidelines, but also from the provisions of R.A. No 9184, 
which were to be applied suppletorily. The OCAt noted that under the 
procurement rules the borrower, which was the Court itself, should identify 
the body that would conduct the procurement activities for the borrower. For 
the purpose, SC Administrative Circular No. 60-2003 adopted Article V of 
R.A. No. 9184 to establish the JRSP Bids and Awards Committee (JRSP 
BAC) to be in charge of the conduct of the procurement activities. In light of 
this, and given that the PMO Program Director was tasked with the overall 
monitoring of the procurement process, Ms. Dumdum and the PMO should 
not have engaged in actual procurement activities, as their doing so would 
mean that she and the PMO were risking not being able to perform the 
monitoring function properly.59 

The IBRD Guidelines defined two modes of procurement: the 
international competitive bidding (ICB); and the other methods of 
procurement. The latter included limited international bidding (LIB); 
national competitive bidding (NCB); shopping; direct contracting; etc.60 

Specifically, shopping was defined by the January 1999 IBRD 
Guidelines in the following manner: 

Shopping (International and National) 

3.5 Shopping is a procurement method based on comparing price 
quotations obtained from several Suppliers, usually at least three, to assure 
competitive prices, and is an appropriate method for procuring readily 
available off-the-shelf goods or standard specification commodities that 
are small in value. Requests for quotations shall indicate the description 
and quantity of the goods, as well as desired delivery time and place. 
Quotations may be submitted by telex or facsimile. The evaluation of 
quotations shall follow sound public or private sector practices of the 
purchaser. The terms of the accepted offer shall be incorporated in a 
purchase order. (Emphasis Supplied) 

The PMO appeared to· have resorted to shopping as the method of 
procurement in canvassing three ·suppliers for the goods and supplies 
intended for the National Forum. 

59 Rollo, Vol. I, p. 17 (Report on Contracts with Aries international, inc., June 20, 2012). 
60 Rollo, Vol. IV, p. 1471 (OCAt Report on f;upplks for the National Forum on Liberty and Prosperity, 
December 21, 2007 ). · 
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Re: Supplies for the National Forum and 
the Global :Forum on Liberty and Prosperity 

Considering that the National Forum and the Global Forum were 
projects conceptualized under the aegis of the JRSP, SC Administrative 
Circular No. 60-2003 governed the procurement of goods, works and 
services. 

By resorting to national shopping, however, the PMO ignored the 
last sentence of the IBRD Guidelines on such alternative method of 
procurement that required a purchase order (PO) in which the accepted 
offer should be indicated. The PO was akin to a "contract between the 
parties as it requires inputs showing the requisites of a contract of consent, 
object certain, and cause of obligation."61 Instead of the PO, the PMO used 
and relied on letter-quotations to reflect and contain the agreements 
between the parties. All that Ms. Dumdum as the Program Director had to do 
was to affix her signature on the letter-quotations beneath the word 
Conforme to indicate conformity to the terms stated therein. This manner of 
contracting was yet again a clear violation of the IBRD Guidelines and the 
Standard Bidding Documents, Procurement of Goods.62 

What were to be contained in the contracts was quite clearly stated in 
the law. In the 1999 version of the IBRD Guidelines, the following 
parameters were expressly written, to wit: 

Conditions of Contract 

2.37 The contract documents shall clearly define the scope of 
work to be performed, the goods to be supplied, the rights and obligations 
of the Borrower and of the supplier or contractor, and the functions and 
authority of the engineer, architect, or construction manager, if one is 
employed by the Borrower, in the supervision and administration of the 
contract. In addition to the general conditions of contract, any special 
conditions particular to the specific goods or works to be procured and the 
location of the project shall be included. 63 

Moreover, as the OCAt has correctly observed, the IBRD Guidelines 
mentioned of contract documents instead of a single document. This 
observation is consistent with the Generic Procurement Manual ( GPM) that 
synchronized the provisions of R.A. No. 9184 with the procurement rules of 
the Asian Development Bank, Japan Bank for International Cooperation, and 
the World Bank itself by requiring that contracts resulting from procurement 
activities for goods should be supported not only by a contract document but 
by a number of documents, including the bid documents. Yet, based on the 

61 Id. at 1472. 
62 

January 1995, Revised in March 2000, .January 200 l, and March 2002. 
61 Rollo, Vol. IV, p. 1472. 
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detailed study made by the OCAt, no proper bidding procedure pursuant to 
the guidelines of SC Administrative Circular No, 60-2003 was followed by 
the JRSP-BAC in choosing Artes as the service provider for the National 
Forum and the Global Forum. Consequently, the patent nullity of the 
contracts with Artes became the only legal consequence to be reached from 
the failure to comply with the proper procurement procedure. 

We are not also prepared to find that the PMO conducted the 
canvassing for the supplies for having been already pressed for time. Such 
explanation was a feeble and implausible excuse in the face of the statement 
by Caunca of the Property Division to the effect that the Property Division 
could have done the canvassing in time through the Phil-GBPS despite time 
constraints. Indeed, the records revealed no immediate or compelling 
justification for dispensing with the requirement of public bidding in 
choosing the service provider for the procurement of the goods involved 
thereon. To insist that a public bidding would have unnecessarily delayed 
the implementation of the program was truly unacceptable. By conducting 
the canvass without prior coordination with the Property Division, Ms. 
Dumdum and the PMO ignored the proper procurement procedure, and 
unavoidably caused the making of "advance deliveries" in contravention of 
the law. 

The assertion by the JRP Administrator that Artes had itself conducted 
the canvassing of suppliers, and that the PMO had only facilitated the 
process was fundamentally discredited by tne documents reviewed by the 
OCAt. The records disclosed that Ms. Dumdum as the JRP Administrator 
had approved the recommended award of contracts to Artes as the winning 
bidder despite Artes having itseif conducted the bidding. We advert to the 
points cogently made by the OCAt thereon, viz.: 

If indeed it is true that the PMO merely facilitated the process as 
an overseer, and Artes was the actual canvasser, then a lot of questions 
are raised by the fact that Artes itself emerged the winner in the 
canvasses ''facilitated" by the PMO, as evidenced by the undated 
Abstracts of Bids approved by the JRP Administrator. Notably, Artes 
emerged the firm with the "lowest quotation" for jewelry boxes and ball 
pens even though the JRP Administrator conformed to its quotation and 
Artes delivered the said goods days before OfficeMAN and Chateau 
offered their quotations for the sarnc: goods; 

Moreover, assuming that the PMO had been authorized as a special 
procurement body, it may not conduct shopping without authority from 
the Chief Justice as head of the procuring entity. Section 48 of Republic 
Act No. 9184 provides that, to promote economy and efficiency, an 
alternative method of procurement such as shopping may only be 
conducted upon prior approval by the Head of the Procuring Entity and 
"whenever justified by t.he comfaions"' provided by Republic Act No. 

".i ,. .. .,_. 

9184. The JRP Administrator, who does not appear to have been specially 
authorized by the Chief Justice for the purpose "of approving the 
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alternative method of procurement to competitive bidding to be adopted, 
may not arrogate unto herself the responsibility of the Chief Justice to 
authorize the conduct of shopping.(Italicized and bold emphases are part 
of the original)64 

· 

At the very least, the resulting situation of the canvasser later 
emerging as the winning bidder was highly irregular because of the plainly 
obvious conflict of interest. 

Considering that most ·of the expenditures· whose payments were 
sought by Ms. Dumdum as the authorized approving official came within the 
threshold allowed in SC Administrative Circular No. 06-2003 (i.e., 
Pl ,000,000.00 and below), the payment of contracts on the goods, works, 
and services procured under the JRSP would have been presumed to have 
initially complied with the proper procurement procedure conducted by the 
JRSP-BAC. Yet, we cannot even presume regularity simply because of 
several indicia of non-compliance with the proper procurement procedure. 
The presumption of regularity vanished with the appearance of even just one 
irregularity. We agree with the OCAt that it was doubtful if the actual 
canvass had been conducted in view of the abstracts of canvass, particularly 
with respect to the jewelry boxes and the ball pens, being undated. The 
OCAt pertinently noted: 

Documents show that the JRP Administrator signed the letter­
quotation of Artes date~ August 14, 2006. The face of the letter-quotation 
does not show when she signed it. However, two days later or on August 
16, 2006, Artes sent her Sales Invoice No. 360 for the full payment of 
P35,224.00 for the said goods. On August 20, 2006, or four days after 
Artes had presented Sales Invoice No. 360 to the PMO, OfficeMan and 
Chateau Manufacturing sent quotations for the same goods. Could there 
be canvassing of all three proponents under these circumstances? In all 
probability, the Abstract of Bids was prepared and included in the records 
only to justify the premature award of the contract to Artes.65 

It is also true that a contract that has all the essential requisites for its 
validity is binding between the parties regardless of its fomi. 66 But when the 
law requires that a contract be in some form in order that it may be valid or 
be enforceable, or demands that a contract be proved in a certain way, the 
requirement of a particular form or manner is absolute and indispensable.67 

Once the formal requirement for the contract is absolute and indispensable, 
any procurement contract that does not adhere to the requirement can only 
be deemed invalid and unenforceable. As such, every letter-quotation signed 
by an unauthorized purchaser in behalf of a government agency in a manner 

64 
Rollo, Vol. I, p. 18 (Report un Cm1fruc·fs with .Arte1 fniernatir>nal, Inc., .lune 20, 2012), citing OCAt 

Memorandum ofDecember21, 2007, rollo, '/cl. IV, pp. !489-1490. 
65 Id. at 1490. 
66 Article 1356. Civil Code. 
r.7 Id. 

• 
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contrary to the loan agreement with the foreign lender and contrary to the 
local procurement law can only be a mere scrap of paper that cannot by any 
means be accorded any validity or enforceability. 

We cannot but notice that the records do not show that the PMO had 
secured the CAF for each of the contracts. According to the OCAt, the CAFs 
were still required because the Government Auditing Code of the 
Philippines,68 the Administrative Code of 1987,69 and the General Provisions 
of the relevant General Approprfatiorirs Act70 uniformly required 
expenditures of appropriated funds to be supported by CAFs. We hold that 
the loan proceeds were undoubtedly appropriated funds. In addition, R.A. 
No. 9184, which was definitely applicable, has specified '"confirming the 
certification of availability of funds, as well as reviewing all relevant 
documents in relation to their adherence to law"71 as parts of the assessment 
of the readiness of the procurement during the pre-procurement conference. 
With the requirement for the CAFs being sine qua non in government 
procurement and contracts, every contract without the corresponding CAF 
should be characterized as null and void. 72 

The transactions consummated by Ms. Dumdum for the PMO could 
not be classified as regular despite the lack of a contrary finding by the 
COA. Such contrary finding by the COA was not yet forthcoming because 
the Court had not yet settled the claim of Artes for the balance of the 
aggregate contract price in view of the material violations of SC 
Administrative Circular No. 60-2003 and the relevant procurement laws. 
Hence, there would be no disbursement of public funds to be disallowed or 
no expenditure to be declared illegal. 

We also clarify that the contracts with Artes did not make it to the 
category of ineligible as determined by the WB, and this was due to the 
Court's continued refusal to settle the nearly P3 million supposedly owed to 
Artes. The refusal to pay was most likely the reason why the contracts with 
Artes were not included in the WB' s list of ineligibles. 

Re: Splitting of contracts 

That Ms. Dumdum committed splitting of contracts was undeniable. 

Splitting of contracts means the breaking up of contracts into smaller 
quantities and amounts, or dividing contract implementation into artificial 

68 Presidential Decree No. 1445. Sec. 86. 
69 Book V, Title I, Subtitle B, Chapter 8, Sec. 47; Book Vl, Chapter 5, Sec. 40. 
70 R.A. No. 9336, Sec. 73. It is noted that R.A. No. 9336 was deemed re-enacted for FY 2006. 
71 Section 20 (2), Article VII, R.A. No. 9184. 
72 Commission on Election v. Quijano-P11dillu, G.R. No. 151992, Sepkmber 18, 2002, 389 SCRA 353. 
citing Osmena v. Commission on Audit, G.R. No. 98355, March 2, 1994, 230 SCRA 585. 
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phases or subcontracts, for the purpose of making them fall below the 
threshold for shopping or small value procurement, or evading or 
circumventing the requirement of public bidding. 73 Public officers and 
agencies are called upon by the COA to ensure that no splitting of 
requisitions, purchase orders, vouchers, and the like, is resorted to in order to 
circumvent the control mea . .mres provided in the circulars it issued and other 
laws and regulations. In this connection, a project funded under a single 
obligating authority and implemented in several phases whether by the same 
or different contractors shall be deemed splitting of contracts.74 

Under the general guidelines of the Government Procurement Policy 
Board (GPPB), splitting of contracts is strictly prohibited. 

COA Circular No. 76-41, dated July 30, 1976, is instructive on the 
matter of splitting of contracts, to wit: 

Forms of Splitting: 

1) Splitting of Requisitions consists in the non-consolidation 
of requisitions for one or more items needed at or about the 
same time by the requisitioner. 

2) Splitting of Purchase Orders consists in the issuance of two 
or more purchase orders based on two or more requisitions 
for the same or at about the same time by different 
requisitioners; and 

3) Splitting of Payments consists in making two or more 
payments for one or more items involving one purchase 
order. 

The above-enumerated forms of splitting are usually resorted to in 
the following cases: 

1) Splitting of requisitions and purchase orders to avoid 
inspection of deliveries; 

2) Splitting of requisitions and purchase orders to avoid 
action, review or approval by higher authorities; and 

3) Splitting of requisitions to avoid public bidding. 

The foregoing ttmmeration of the forms of splitting is merely 
illustrative and by no n<eans exhauslive. But in whatever form splitting has 
been resorted to, the idea is to do away with and circumvent control 
measures promulgated by the government. It is immaterial whether 
or not loss or damage has been sustained by, or caused to, the 
government. In a celebrated administrative case wherein a ranking 
official was charged with and found guilty of splitting of purchases, the 

-----------··-- -- -·----· ___ ,,. 
73 

Section 2 (b). Guideiirzesfor Shopping and Smc .. '! Vall:: }'rocuremenf. 
74 COA Circular No. 2009-002, :-,fay 18. 2009. 
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Office of the President of the Philippines was quite emphatic when it ruled 
that "his liability is not contingent on proof of loss to the Government 
because of said violations of rules on procurement." For this reason, 
except "requisitions for· supplies materials and equipment spare parts xxx 
acquired through emergency purchase from reputable firms xxx:" (Section 
18, Letter of Implementation No. 44, dated April 8, 1976 of the President 
of the Philippines), Auditors should be on the lookout for cases of splitting 
in varied forms such as splitting of requisitions and purchase orders to 
avoid inspection of deliveries; splitting of requisitions, purchase orders, 
and payments to avoid action, review or approval by higher authorities; 
and splitting of requisitions to avoid public bidding. 

The Commission . on Audit, therefore, cognizant of its 
responsibility under the Constitution to safeguard expenditures and uses of 
government funds and property hereby enjoins all concerned to strictly 
enforce and faithfully adhere to all laws, rules, regulations, and policies 
calculated to prevent or prohibit splitting in any or all forms for the 
protection of the government. (Emphasis supplied) 

The foregoing COA circular is addressed to all heads of departments; 
chiefs of bureaus and offices; managing heads of government-owned or -
controlled corporations; etc .. , and proscribes the splitting of requisitions, 
purchase orders, vouchers and others. The heads of the departments, bureaus 
or offices are expressly enjoined to observe prudence, accountability and 
transparency in ensuring that no such splitting of requisitions, POs, 
vouchers, etc. escape their attention or happen under their charge. With the 
increasing volume of transactions involving purchases of goods, equipment, 
supplies and materials, there arises the need to enforce control measures to 
insure that procurement is effected in a manner that is most advantageous to 
the Government. The control measures protect the Government from losing 
millions of pesos through irregularities in the procurement process. 

The following elements constitute the act of splitting of contracts or 
procurement project, to wit: 

75 Id. 

1. That there is a government contract or procurement project; 

2. That the requisitions, purchase orders, vouchers, and the like 
of the project are broken up into smaller quantities and 
amounts, or the implementation thereof is broken into 
subcontracts or artificial phases; and 

3. That the splitting of the contract falls under any of the 
following or simllar purposes, namely: 

a. evading the conduct of a competitive bidding; 75 

. 
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b. circumventing the control measures provided in the 
circulars and other laws and regulations; 76 or 

c. making the contract or project fall below the threshold 
for shopping or small value procurement. 77 

Applying the foregoing elements to Artes' contracts, we find that the 
JRSP WB loan was used to fund both the National Forum and the Global 
Forum in the respective amounts of P7.5 million and P20.6 million; but 
instead of conducting a public bidding for the two events, Ms. Dumdum 
entered into several letter-contracts or quotation-contracts with Artes for 
various phases of the events, each phase involving amounts that were well 
within her authority to approve under SC Administrative Circular No. 60-
2003. Such letter-contracts or quotation-contracts were aimed not only at 
dispensing with competitive bidding but also at avoiding the control 
measures set in place under SC Administrative Circular No. 60-2003, the 
COA Circulars, R.A. No. 9184 and other relevant laws and regulations on 
government procurement. 

In its Report, the OCAt cogently opined that -

On the claim of Ms. Dumdum that Artes was an "events" 
organizer, this Office pointed out that the Philippine Convention and 
Visitors Corporation (PCVC), a non-profit corporation that serves as the 
marketing arm of the Department of Tourism, was the events organizer 
under a Memorandum of Agreement that Ms. Dumdum herself signed for 
the Court. 

The various contracts entered into with Artes for each of the two 
events, in light of the claim of Ms. Dumdum that Artes was an "events 
organizer," only led to the conclusion that there was splitting of contracts. 
If it were true that Artes was engaged as an events organizer, a lump sum 
contract thereon should have covered all the details of holding the 
National Forum, including the needed supplies. 78 

Had the PMO engaged Artes as the events organizer of the two 
events, Ms. Dumdum should have executed with Artes a lump sum 
contract that covered all the details and incidentals of the events instead of 
the several letter-contracts and quotation-contracts for each and every 
phase of the events. That the value of each of the letter-contracts and 
quotation-contracts entered into by ;\ifs. Dumdum was within her authority 
to approve (i.e., Pl million and belo\v) \Vas another strong manifestation of 
splitting of contracts. 

76 
Baldebrin v. Sandi5!,anbu]!u'!. Cl. R. Nos. J .lcfOSO- i l, March 22. 2007, S 18 SC RA 627, 631-632. 

77 Id. . . 
78 

Rollo, Vol. l, p. 17 (Repurt on C.:mtraus ,,:itlo .'Ines i.'1/Nnotionai, inc., fone :20, 2012). 

~ 
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Splitting of contracts is a serious transgression of the procurement 
rules of the Government. Section 65(4) of R.A. No. 9184 penalizes public 
officers who commit "splitting of contracts which exceed procedural 
purchase limits and competitive bidding" with "imprisonment of not less 
than six ( 6) years and one (1) day but not more than fifteen years." 

Personal liability of Ms. Dumdum 

Section 103 of the Government Auditing Code of the Philippines 
declares that "[ e ]xpenditures of government funds or uses of government 
property in violation of law or regulations shall be the personal liability of 
the official or employee found to be directly responsible therefor." 

Considering that Artes already waived any and all claims it had 
against the Court pursuant to the several contracts entered into with Ms. 
Dumdum, there is no more need to make the latter personally liable for the 
reimbursement of any amounts that Artes was claiming. 

Her release from personal liability for reimbursement 
notwithstanding, Ms. Dumdum should be investigated for any administrative 
or criminal liability for acts done in connection with the following 
circumstances, namely: 

a. requesting authority to fund the National Forum twice on the same day 
for the separate amounts of P.7 ,500,000.00 and P.6,800,000.00 without 
indicating whether the first request is superseded or that the latter 
request was intended to be for an amount to be added to the first 
request; 

b. entering into contracts even before the Chief Justice approved the use 
of funds from which the expenses for the contracts were drawn; 

c. allowing her subordinates to conduct the alternative method of 
procurement of shopping without her having been duly authorized as 
the representative of the Chief Justice for the purpose of approving the 
alternative mode of procurement; 

d. prematurely awarding to Artes the contract for the jewelry boxes and 
ball pens before actual receipt of offers of other proponents; 

e. participating in procurement activities notwithstanding that her 
authority was to monitor such activities, in violation of the rule on 
conflict of interest; 

f. allowing the conduct of activities that violate procurement rules such 
as the rule prohibiting splitting of contracts; 

g. signing contracts prepared by private contracting parties as letter­
quotations with no Certificate of Availability of Funds (CAF) attached 

h 
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thereto and hence in violation of formal requirements prescribed by 
law and the Loan Agreement; and 

h. authorizing the payment of the amount of Pl,313,435.00 (or 
Pl,427,647.72 inclusive of tax), which is beyond her threshold of 
authority for ~ayments of Pl million under Administrative Circular 
No. 60-2003.7 

Even if the disciplinary procedure provided in Paragraph 9.4 of 
Administrative Circular No. 60-2003 is no longer applicable to Ms. 
Dumdum in view of her having meanwhile ceased to be connected with the 
Court, Paragraph 9.3 of Administrative Circular No. 60-2003 may apply, 
vzz.: 

9.3 Sanctions. Supreme Court officials, employees and private 
individuals who shall fail to comply with the provisions of this 
Administrative Circular without just cause shall be held liable 
and subject to sanctions/penalties provided under Articles XXI 
to XXIII ofR.A. 9184 (see Annex J). [Emphasis supplied.] 

In addition, the provisions of R.A. No. 3019 may be taken into 
consideration in order to ascertain whether or not any act or omission 
committed by any party, including Ms. Dumdum, resulted in or caused 
undue injury to the Government. However, it is not the Court but another 
office that should make the ascertainment in that regard. 

No personal liability on the part of 
Chief Justice Panganiban 

We have found nothing in the records that established former Chief 
Justice Panganiban's privity to the contracts entered into by Ms. Dumdum 
with Artes. Although he had approved, belatedly, the budgets for the holding 
of the National Forum and the Global Forum in the respective amounts of 
P7.5 million and P20.6 million, his approval was within his official authority 
to grant as the Chief Justice. 

The documents presented for Chief Justice Panganiban's approval had 
undergone the presumed study and verification by the PMO under Ms. 
Dumdum as well as by the committee constituted for the purpose. He must 
have relied in utmost good faith on his subordinates, upon whom the primary 
responsibility of ensuring that all procurement of goods and services were 
within the limits required by the laws and the procurement rules. Such 
reliance in good faith absolved him from any personal liability in the 
absence of proof of any conspiracy between them. 

79 Rollo, p. 20. 
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Conclusion 

Based on the OCAt's Report dated Jun~ 20, 2012, violations of law in 
the disbursement of funds of the Court as well as of funds derived from the 
loans extended by the World Bank appear to have been committed. The laws 
on procurement as well as those on auditing and official accountability were 
also contravened. Although such violations would have resulted in the 
nullification of the contracts for services and supplies between the Court and 
Artes, the Court would have still authorized payments to Artes of any unpaid 
balances based on the equitable principle of quantum meruit in order not to 
be guilty of being unjustly enriched. The Court would then consequently 
move to seek from the concerned individuals the reimbursement of whatever 
amounts it would have thereby paid. That would not happen now because 
Artes meanwhile expressly released the Court from any further monetary 
liability upon its claim. 

WHEREFORE, acting on the Report dated June 20, 2012 submitted 
by the Office of the Chief Attorney, the Court RESOLVES to: 

1. CONSIDER the claim of Artes International, Inc. for 
payment extinguished in accordance to the unilateral 
Release, Waiver & Quitclaim executed and submitted by 
Artes International, Inc.; and 

2. FURNISH a copy of this RESOLUTION to the OFFICE 
OF THE OMBUDSMAN and the COMMISSION ON 
AUDIT as basis for whatever further action may be 
warranted or necessary to be taken against MS. EVELYN 
DUMDUM. 

The matter subject of this case is now considered CLOSED and 
TERMINATED. 

SO ORDERED. 

WE CONCUR: 

~ 
Acting Chief Justice 
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MEMORANDUM PMO-JRPAO 6~18-2012 

(1 

1 9 ZC1Z J·';\ 
~-rTrr•·" •""'l'r '- I~ I :J ~I l!:;:;.L". ~ ~ , 

BY; tvu£tJ 
FOR TIME: ____ ,d '. fr 

Senior Associate Justice 
Hon. ANTONIO T. CARPIO 

~ tftfl· (per Section 12, Chapter II of R.A. No. 926) 

FROM GERALDINE FAITH A. ECONG 
~---iµ-;u 
~ (,(.#~l 

. d ....... aA-;J; 
,~ .. Deputy Clerk of Court and JRP Administrator 

DATE 18June2012 
~~.vtr 

tr-~d-/. G 

SUBJECT Refund of Payments Made for 
under the JRSP 

Ineligible Exp~~/( 
)!J.A~ . 

Your Honor: 

1. We write with reference to the refund of payments made for the expenditures 
declared as ineligible by the World Bank, as contained their Aide Memoire 
dated 28 December 2011. · ··· · 

(p 

2. As what our Office has stated in its comment and response to the Bank's list of 
ineligible transactions for the JRSP (Annex B of our Memorandum to Your 
Honor dated 30 May 2012, received on 5 June 2012), these expenditures were, 
in fact, incurred in furtherance of the project development objectives of the 
JRSP (page 2). Tl1e transactions declared as ineligible are actually regular and 
eligible transactions undertaken in the course of the JRSP's implementation. 

Nevertheless, the total amount of these ineligible expenses has been revised 
and is now adjusted to US$115,416.00 only (Annex D). 

3. Further to the same Memorandum, we submit this subsequent memorandum to 
provide the basis and justification on sourcing the refund for these subject 
expenses from the JRSP's GOP Counterpart Fund and the Court's Fiscal 
Autonomy (FA) account. 

4. In our comment-response (page 2), we have group~d the subject transactions 
into five (5) major activities .. namely: 

{I 

a) Conduct of the distinguished lecture series (DLS) 
b) Conduct of the seminar on "Revisiting the Code of Conduct for Court 

Personnel" 
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Tel: 552-9579 • 88; Fax: 552-9586, Email: jrp1@sc.judiciary.qov.ph; Website:apjr.sc.judiciary.gov.ph 

:p 1:f'' •,: :r (: .•."'· 0 
• I '-"'n • .o: , .. , ..... .,i.c~. )l ;.h~\ · .. •me11. /1.11 11 ...... " 

[' Sup?Pm1' Courl 
• /,'"'~ ·1:--;• c 'l ,... •. , r . I ·: .. r< :·-1 ~ ~l l-1 , \, ':· .. 
., , •I., .1--. ~ ... _... ··-""4 .• , (,,.,.1 

}')1xr.u.1 ··~· .... ~.!..::!~~~~~;T ... -
O'!iJT.1.l!f1 ,. .. ~ :1.r .. ~Y..:Lfk!lf' 



' 
\,,_ 

----·-·-----·-----· ----------.. ------------··----- .. 

c) Conduct of and attendance of SC and Judiciary officials to local and 
international training, seminars and workshops on court administration, 
international commercial law and facilitating workshops and trainings 

d) Printing of the Reporter's Case lndl,~x for the use of justices, judges, court 
attorneys and legal researchers, and 

e) Procurement of IT equipment for various SCo'offices 

5. For purposes of this Memorandum, the transactions listed above can be further 
grouped into two (2) categories: maintenance and other operating expenses 
(MOOE) and capital outlay. Transactions A to 0 listed above are MOOEs and · 
the last falls under capital outlay. 

6. MOOEs cover project administration, e.g. administrative costs and expenses 
incurred in the course of project implementation. These may cover 
transportation and other travel-related expenses, office supplies, food 
expenses and honoraria for resource persons - the particular expenses of the 
first 4 set of transactions above. 

7. As a rule, MOOEs are for the account of the Government's coun.terpart fund. 
As they make up a relatively smaller portion of project costs, the costs of the 
bigger project categories such as civil works and goods are substantially 
charged to the loan proceeds. In the case of the JRSP, the loan agreement 
initially provided that 90% of the works and 100% of the goods are to be 
financed by the loan proceeds (Schedule 1 of JRSP Loan Agreement). Other 
JRSP-related costs not falling under the categl".>ries covered by loan proceeds 
are also charged to the GOP counterpart funds. 

8. In the case of the capital outlay of IT equipment (item E in paragraph 4 above) 
which is classified as goods by the JRSP, it may also be charged to the 
counterpart fund with the ineligibility of this transaction/s. However, the entire 
portion of the GOP's counterpart fund for capital outlay (Works and Goods 
categories) has already been expended as of end-2009. 

9. Fiscal Autonomy (FA) Account. 

Joint Resolution No. ·1 of the Constitutional Fiscal Autonomy Group (CFAG) 
provides, in part, that the unexpended year-end balances of the approved 
appropriations already released to the said Constitutional Offices shall remain 
valid appropriation and shall continue to be available for expenditures until fully 

"-·' spent. 

Furthermore, each head of the said offices is authorized to use savings for the 
incurrence of such obligations as may be approved by him to strengthen the 
office and enhance its operations and se\?vice:>s as well as any other 
expenditures or purpose authorized. GFAG is composed of the Supreme 
Court, the 3 constitutional commissions, the Office nf the Ombudsman and the 
Commission on Human Rights. 

On the basis of the join resolution, the Court established its Fiscal Autonomy 
account for the above-m~ntioned purpose. 

6/F Centennial Bldg .. Supreme Court, Padre Faura St., Ermita, Manila 
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Said joint resolution further provides that ea&:h head of these constitutional 
bodies is authorized to use savings for the incurrence of such obligations as 
may be approved by him to strengthen the office and enhance its operations 
and services as well as any other exper,1ditures or purpose authorized. 

This is further complemented by the authority given to the Chief Justice by the 
General Appropriations Act to augment any item in the appropriation 'for the 
Judiciary from savings in other items in such appropriations. ' 

10. Considering the five (5) preceding paragraph, we find that the Court is 
authorized to utilize both the GOP Counterpart Fund and the FA Account to 
refund the payments made from the JRSP loan proceeds for these subject 
transactions. In light of its ineligible status, these are now therefore 
expenditures directly for the account of the Court itself. 

As this status is determined only for purposes of removing it from the coverage 
of authorized payments from the loan proceeds, it does not affect its legality nor 
does it affect or negate the benefits which has redounded to the Court, its 
officials and personnel and tl1e institution as a whole. These transactions in 
fact were meant to enhance and strengthen &le operations of the Court and 
enhance the capacity of its officials and personnel. 

·11. Based on the fore.going, we respectfully request approval for the following: 

... The payments made out of JRSP loan proceeds for expenditures 
relating to the following transactions as discussed in our comment­
response in relation to the World Bank Aide Memoire be refunded by the 
JRSP GOP Counterpart Fund: 

a) Conduct of the distinguished lecture series (DLS) 
b) Conduct of the seminar on "Revisiting the Code of Conduct for 

Court Personnel" 
c) Conduct of and attendance of SC and Judiciary officials to local 

and international training, seminars and workshops on court 
administration, international commercial law and facilitating 
workshops and trainings, and 

d) Printing of the Reporter's Case Index for the use of justices, 
judges, court attorneys and legal re~earchers 

!WI The payments made out from the JRSP loan proceeds for expenditures 
incurred in the procurement of IT equipment for various SC offices, as 
discussed in our comment-response in relation to the \Norld Bank Aide 
Memoire be refunded, by the Supreme Court's Fiscal Autonomy (FA) 
Fund. 

·12. For Your Honor's information and appropriate action, please. 

Jl~riM.i. ~ ~ 

6/F Centennial Bldg., Supreme Court, Padre Faura St., Ermita, Manila 
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MEMORANDUM 
'.~~ 'i~r... . ......... .. 

FOR : Hoo. Antonio T. Carpio 
Senior Associate Justice 0 

(Per Sectionl2, R.A. 296, the Judiciary Act of 1948, 
as amended.) 

THRU : Madame Justice Teresita J. Leonardo-de Castro 
Chairperson, JRSP Management Committee 

FROM : Geraldine Faith A. Econg 
Judicial Reform Program Administrator 

SUBJECT: Refund of JRSP Expenditures Declared as Ineligible by the·World Ban.k 

DA.TE : 30 May 2012 

J.. Your Honors may recall that in their Aide Memoire .dated. 28 December 2011, the World 
Bank declared certain expenditures under the Judicial Reform Support Project (JRSP) as 
ineligible for funding from the loan proceeds of the Project. Attached as An~ex A is the 
said list of ineligible expenditures. 

0 

2. On. 31 January 2012, Madame Justice Teresita J. Leonardo-de. Castro, as ·the Chairperson of 
the JRSP Management Committee which held discussions on the issues raised in the Aide 
Memoire, endorsed to the World Bank the SC-PMO's response/comments relative to the 
alleged ineligible expenditures (Annex B)'. 

3. In an email dated 26 April 2012 (Annex C), Mr. Amitabha Mukherjee, Task Team Leader 
of the World Bank for the JRSP, indicated that, based on the documents submitted by the 
PMO, an amount equivalent to USD28,656.qo (or PHPJ.,491,351.00) has been reconsidered 
as eligible expenditure, bringing down the amount that .needs to be refunded to 
USDl.32,766.00. 

4. On 08 May 2012, the PMO sent a letter to the World Bank clarifying that based on the 
records of the PMO, the correct total amount to be refunded should be USDl 15,416.01 and 
not USD132,766.00 (Annex D). 

5. In a recent telephone conversation with the undersigned, Mr. Mukherjee said that we can 
already start processing the refi.md for the ineligible expenditures based on the amount 
stated in our letter mentioned in item 4 above. 

O' 

6. With the above, and in view of the closing of the JRSP by 30 June 2012, may we 
respectfully request approval to refund the amount of USDl 15,416.01 to the JRSP Special 
Account (Loan Proceeds), to be sourced from the JRSP-GOP Counterpart Fund. 

7. For Your Honors' kind consideration, please. 

6/F Centennial Building 
Supreme Court 

Padre Faura SL, Ennita, Manila 
Tel: 552-9578 - 86; Fax: 552-9586, 552-9580, 552-9604 

Email: lro1@supremecourt.goy.ph; Website: www.apjr-sc-phll.or 
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Philippines: Judicial Reform Support Project (Loan 7191;h •/ \ 

Fiduciary Review (Annex 4 to Aide Memoire): list of Ineligible Expenditures Based on Fiduciary Review 

' 
WA# Item# Cat. Project Name and Address of Officials, Contractors or Brief Description of Goods, Works or Services Invoice 

Component Suppliers Amount (PHP) 

174 1 3 B2 Staff of Financial Management Office, Office of Resource Speaker's fee for seminar on Revisiting the Code of Condud 8,000 

the Court Administrator for the Court Personnel on June 22, 2011 
174 21 3 01 Staff of Program Management Office, Supreme Reimbursement of traveling expenses in his trip to Cebu in connection 2,250 

Court of the Philippines with the conferment of an Honorary Degree on Justice xx of the 

Unified Judiciary of Guam by the Univ of Cebu, March 17-19, 2011 

127 8 3 Dl Conference of Court Public Information Officers, Registration of Senior Supreme Court Official for his participation in 5,860 

National Center for State Courts, 300 Newport the 19th Annual Conference of Court Public Information Officers on 

Avenue, Williamsburg, VA, USA Aug 19-11, 2010 in Atlanta, GA, USA. 

145 6 3 Bl Staff of Office of Administrative Services Office Resou~ce Speaker's fee for seminar on Revisiting the Code of Condcut 8,000 

of the Court Administrator for the Court Personnel on Feb.16, 2011. 

155 1 3 B2 Staff of Financial Management Office. Office of Resource Speaker's fee during a seminar on Revisiting the Code of 7,200 

the Court Administrator Conduct for the Court Personnel on Mar. 15, 2011 

160 1 3 B2 Staff of Financial Management Office Office of Resource Speaker's fee for seminar on Revisiting the Code of Conduct 8,000 

the Court Administrator for the Court Personnel on Apr. 26, 2011 

160 3 3 B2 Staff of the Program Management Office Reimbursement of food expenses in connection with the conferment 14,2S9 

Supreme Court of the Philippines of an Honorary Degree of Justice xx of the Unified Judicary of Guam by 

the University of Cebu on Mar 18, 2011. 

160 5 3 Dl Prestige Travel, Inc. Unit 0, Manila Bay Arcade Airfare of Judg~ xx et al for official trip lo Sydney for the International 98,294 

Quirino Avenue, Cortabitarte St Ma late Manila Commercial Law Conference on May 5 -7 2011. 

162 1 3 B2 Staff of Financial Management Office Office of Resource Speaker's fee for seminar on Revisiting the Code of Conduct 8,000 

the Court Administrator for the Court Personnel on May 10, 2011 
9 162 s 3 82 Staff of Financial Management Office Office ~f Resource Speaker's fee for seminar on Revisiting the Code of Conduct 8;000 

the Court Administrato• for the Court Personnel on June 8, 2011 

162 6 3 82 Staff of Office of the Court Administrator Resource Speaker's fee for seminar on Revisiting the Code of Condud 8,000 

for the Court Personnel on May 31, 2011 

162 7 3 01 Staff of Supreme Court of the Philippines Liquidation of cash advance for travelling allowance in her trip to 107,364 

Bogor Indonesia to attend the Asia Pacific Regional Conference of the 

International Association of Court Administrator on March 13 -16, 

2011 
162 8 3 Dl CA. RTC 69, Tarlac City Liquidation of cash advance for travelling allowance for trip to Sydney 170,882 

Australia to attend the International Law Conference on May 5-7, 2011 

162 9 3 01 D. A. RTC 18, Cagayan de Oro liquidation of cash advance for travelling allowance in his trip to 170,882 

Sydney Australia to attend the International Law Conference on May 5-

7, 2011 

141 7 3 Bl Staff of Office of Administrative Services Resource person during seminar workshop on Revisiting the Code of 8,000 

Supreme Court of the Philippines Conduct for the Court Personnel on Jan 26, 2011 

Amt Paid from Remarks 

Special Acct 

{USO) 

188.2 6 Ineligible - Per Loan Agreement, Schedule 1, 

paragraph 2(c). 

41.9 9 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

project development objective and (b) not 

agreed with the World Bank 

126.48 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

project development objective and (b] activity 

not agreed with the World Bank 

185.65 Ineligible - Per Loan Agreement. Schedule 1, 

paragraph 2(c}. 

168.25 Ineligible - Per Loan Agreement, Schedule 1, 

paragraph 2(c}. 

186.08 Ineligible - Per Loan Agreement, Schedule 1, 

paragraph 2(c}. 

330.92 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

project development objective and (b) activity 

not agreed with the World Bank 

2,292.05 Ineligible: Expenditure (a} not connected with 

project development objective and (b} activity 

not agreed with the World Bank 

186.52 Ineligible - Per Loan Agreement, Schedule l, 

paragraph 2(c). 

185.65 Ineligible - Per Loan Agreement, Schedule 1, 

paragraph 2(c}. 

185.66 Ineligible - Per Loan Agreement, Schedule 1, 

paragraph 2(c). 

2,494.40 Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

4,011.99 Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

3,979.38 Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

184.59 I neligible - Per loan Agreement, Schedule 1, 

paragraph 2(c}. 

Q 
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141 14 3 01 fnernational Association of Court ' 

Administrators, 601 West Broadwy, Rm. 106 

Louisville, Kentucky USA 

138 1 3 01 Gold Venture lease & Management Services, Inc. 

7829 Makati Avenue,Makati Crty 

138 2 3 Dl LGC Restaurant, Inc. 

1911 M. Adriatico St. Remedios Circle 

Malate Manila 

Q 

\ 

Telegraphic transfer for registra\ion fee of Senior Supremen Court 57,997 

Officials in attending the IACA Asia Pacific Reginal conference in Begor, 

Indonesia on Mar 13-16, 2011. 

Room accomodation of Mr. D. B. and Co. during the 1st Chief Justice 69,000 

Distinguished lecture of 2011 and Goodwill Games between the 

Judicary of Guam and Supreme Court of the Phil 

Meals during lunch meeting with Justice xx and delegation from 33,539 

Unified Courts of Guam on Jan.13,2011 

Q 

1,326.86 Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

1,562 Ineligible: Expenditure (a} not connected with 

project development objective and (b} activity 

not agreed with the World Bank 

766 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

project development objective and (b} activity 

not agreed with the World Bank 

Q 

-
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141 8 3 3 Dasing Canteen and Catering Services ·. Supply during the Goodwill Ga'.Tles as part of the Knowledge Sharing 9,080 209 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

1S32 Leon Guinto St, Baarangay 694 between the Judiciaries of Guam and Phifippines on Jan.13 -14, 2011 project development objective and (b) activity 

Malate Manila not agreed with the World Bank 

145 21 3 01 Manila Hotel Food during dinner in honor of Justice xx and delegation of the Unified 79,212 1,838 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

One Rizal Park 1099 Court of Guam on January 13, 2011 project development objective and (b) activity 

Manila not agreed with the World Bank 

155 3 3 01 Prestige Travel, Inc. Airfare of Senior Supreme Court Official for his trip to Cebu in 12,372 289 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Unit D, Manila Bay Arcade connection with the conferment of an Honorary Degree of Justice xx of project development objective and (b) activity 

Quirino Avenue, Cortabitarte St the Unified Judicary of Guam by the University of Cebu on March. 18, not agreed with the World Bank 

Malate Manila 2011 

155 4 3 01 Prestige Travel, Inc. Airfare of E. E. in his trip to Cebu in connection with the conferment of 5,810 136 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Unit 0, Manila Bay Arcade an Honorary Degree of Justice xx of the Unified Judicary of Guam by project development objective and (b) activity 

Quirino Avenue, Cortabitarte St the University of Cebu not agreed with the World Bank 

Malate Manila on March 18, 2011 

155 5 3 Dl Prestige Travel. Inc. Airfare of P. P ., at al in their trip to Cebu in connection with the 16,052 375 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Unit D, Manila Bay Arcade conferment of an Honorary Degree of Justice xx of the Unified Judicary project development objective and (b) activity 

Quirino Avenue, Cortabitarte St of Guam by the University of Cebu on March 18, 2011 not agreed with the World Bank 

Malate Manila 

155 6 3 Dl Prestige Travel. Inc. Airfare of E. V., et al in their trip to Cebu in connection with the 11,705 274 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Unit D, Manila Bay Arcade conferment of an Honorary Degree to Justice xx of the Unified Judicary project development objective and (b) activity 

Quirino Avenue, Cortabitarte St of Guam by the University of Cebu on March 18, 2011 not agreed with the World Bank 

Malate Manila 

155 8 3 Dl Prestige Travel. Inc. Airfare of M. M. Jn his trip to Cebu in connection with the conferment 5,810 135 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Unit D, Manila Bay Arcade of an Honorary Degree of Justice xx of the Unified Judicary of Guam by project development objective and (b) activity 

Quirino Avenue, Cortabitarte St. the Universay of Cebu on March 18,2011 not agreed with the World Bank 

Malate Manila 

155 11 3 01 Staff of Program Management Office Reimbursement of travelling expenses in her trip to Cebu in 6,550 153 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Supreme Court of the PhiL connection with the conferment of an Honorary Degree of Justice xx of project development objective and (b) activity 
Q the Unified Judicary of Guam by tlle University of Cebu on March 17 - not agreed wlTh the World Bank 

I 
19,2011 

155 17 3 Dl Hotel Specialist (Cebu) Inc, Food and accomodation of xx in Cebu in connection with the 35,327 829 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Serging Osemena Blvd. corner Juan Luma conferment of an Honorary Degree of Justice xx of the Unified Judicary project development objective and (b) activity 

Avenue, of Guam by the University of Cebu on March 18, 2011 not agreed with the World Bank 

Cebub Cay 

145 19 3 Dl Prestige Travel, Inc. Airfare of L D. to attend the Asia Pacific Regional Conference of the 18,634 429 Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Unit D, Manila Bay Arcade International Association for the Court Administr;;tion in Jakarta on Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

Quirino Avenue, Cortabitarte St. March 13-16, 2011 

Malate Manila 
145 20 3 Dl Prestige Travel. Inc. Unrt D. Manila Bay Arcade Airfare of Senior Supreme Court Official to attend the Asia Pacific 43,662 1,016 Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Quirino Avenue. Cortabitarte St., Ma late Manila Regional Conference of the International Association for the Court Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

Administration in Jakarta on March 13 -16, 2011 

145 2 3 Al DCCI Fullness Foundation. Inc. Services rendered as resource person on Strategic Workshop for the xx 148,706 3,467 Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

6/F Emerald Bldg. F. Ortigas Jr. Road. Ortigas to address Case Decongestion and Delay in the Lower Court at Holiday Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

Center, Pasig City Inn Clark on January 7-9 2011 



~· 
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155 2 3 02 Ateneo c:'e Manila University Seminar fee of M. P. in his attendance on Facilitating Adult Learning on 16,000 374 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Loyola Heights, Quezon Crty March 22-25, 2011 project development objective and (b) activity 

not agreed with the World Bank 

160 7 3 01 Senior Supreme Court Official liquidation of cash advance for travelling allowance in a trip to Bogor 106,522 2,475 Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Supreme Court of the Phil. Indonesia to attend the Asia Pacific Regional Conference of the Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

International Association of Court Administrator on March 13 -16. 

2011 
138 4 4 Al Crosspoint Paper, Inc. S7 - A 4th Avenue Cor. Payment of printing services for publication of additional copies of the 106,500 2,421 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Manalac Ave. Bagumbayan Taguig Reporter's Case Index project development objective and (b) activity 

Metro Manila not agreed with t~e World Bank 

138 9 4 Al Tanteko Stationary Payment of printing supplies for publication of additional copies of the 7,040 161 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Rm 204 - 205 SOlex 11 Reporter's Case Index project development objective and (b) activity 

1144 Soler SL, Binondo Manila not agreed with the World Bank 

9 Q Q 
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138 16 4 Al Gakk-:n Philippines, Inc. 130 GPI Big., AufL Payment of printing supplies for publication of additional copies of the 7,680 174 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Blvd. San Juan Metro Manila Reporter's Case Index project development objective and (b)·activity 

not agreed with the World Bank 
.. 

. . 

138 18 4 Al U. K. Office Inc Payment of printing supplies for publication of additional copies of the 2,300 S2 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

5548 Plaza Lorenzo Ruiz Reporter's Case Index project development objective and (b) activity 

Binondo Manila not agreed with the World Bank 

138 25 4 Al Tanteko Stationary Payment of printing supplies for publication of additional copies of the 7,040 160 lnefigible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Rm204 205 Sol ex II Reporter's Case Index project development objective and (b) activity 

1144 Soler St., Binondo Manila not agreed with the World Bank 

138 26 4 Al Gakken Philippines, Inc. 130 Payment of printing supplies for publication of adoitional copies of the 7,680 175 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

GPI Bigs., Aurora Blvd. San Juan, Metro Manila Reporter's Case Index project development objective and (b) activity 

not agreed with the World Bank 

138 23 4 Al Crosspoint Paper, Inc. 57 -A Payment of printing services for publication of additional copies of the 106,500 2,427 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

4th Avenue Cor. Marialac Ave. Reporter's Case Index project development objective and (b) activity 

Bagumbayan Taguig, Metro Manila not agreed with the World Bank 

138 24 4 Al U. K. Office Inc. Payment of printing supplies for publication of additional copies of the 2,300 52 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

5548 Plaza Lorenzo Ruiz Reporter's Case Index project development objective and (b) activity 

Binondo Manila not agreed with the World Bank 
141 5 4 Al Southern Eastern Phoenix, Inc. Payment of printing supplies for publication of additional copies of the 43,250 1,001 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Spicers Bldg., 4384 St, Reporter's Case Index project development objective and (b) activity 

BarangayTejero_s, Makati City not agreed with the World Bank 

141 6 4 Al Southern Eastern Phoenix, Inc. Payment of printing supplies for publication of additional copies of the 43,250 1,001 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Spicers Bldg., 4384 St, Reporter's Case Index project development objective and (b) activity 

BarangayTejeros, Makati City not agreed with the World Bank 

155 21 4 Al U. K. Office Inc. Payment of printing supplies for the publication of additional copies of 6,360 148 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 
0. 5548 Plaza Lorenzo Ruiz Q the Reporter's Case Index ~ project development objective and (b) activity <;i 

Binondo Manila not agreed with the World Bank 

155 22 4 Al Gakken Philippines, Inc. Payment of printing supplies for the publication of additional copies of 30,720 715 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

130 GPI Bigs., Aurora Blvd, the Reporter's Case Index project development objective and (b) activity 

San Juan Metro Manila not agreed with the World Bank 

155 23 4 Al Crosspoint Paper, Inc, 57 - A 4th Avenue Cor. Payment of printing services tor the publication of additional copies of 403,200 9,386 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Mafialac Ave., Bagumbayan Taguig the Reporter's Case Index project development objective and (b) activity 

Metro Manila not agreed with the World Bank 

155 24 4 Al Southern Eastern Phoenix, Inc, Payment of printing supplies for the publication of additional copies of 165,400 3,850 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

5picers Bldg 4384 St, the Reporter's Case Index project development objective and (b) activity 

Barangay Tejeros, Maka ti City not agreed with the World Bank 

155 25 4 Al Purity Paper, Inc. Payment of printing supplies for the publication of ;;dditional copies of 26,400 615 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

650 Circumferential Rd. the Reporter's Case Index project development objective and (b) activity 

Barangay Oalig Antipolo city not agreed with the World Bank 
144 l 2 A7 Advance Solutions Inc. Payment of 24 units Desktop Computers for the Program Management 1,012,320 23,542 I neligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Office Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 
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138 s A7 Advance Solutions Inc. #5 First Street, Vilk. _r I Payment of 1 unit IBM Think Center 070Z in Desktop Computer for 2 

141 2 

137 2 

155 2 2 

146 1 2 

148 1 2 

152 2 

156 2 

9 

160 3 

160 4 2 

162 5 2 

162 4 2 

174 2 2 

A7 

A7 

A7 

A7 

A7 

A7 

A7 

A7 

A7 

A7 

A7 

A7 

Court Tambe, Paranaque Oty PMO 

Micro-D International Inc. 6/F Penisula Court !Payment of 2 units Notebooks computers for PMO 

118735 Paseo de Roxas Cor. Makati Avenue 

Makati City 

Columbia Technologies lnc.1136-1145 Julia 

Nakpil Street Malate Manila 

Payment of ICT Equipment for Management Information Systems 

Office (MISO), Judiciary Case Management System (JCMS) Hardaware­

Batchl, 35 units Desktop computers, 13 units laptop computers, 35 

units Uniterruptible Power Supply, 10 External Hard Disk, 8 units Flash 

Drivers 

Marjoly General Merchandise LG 12 Cityland 8 jPayment of 1 unit Multimedia Projector for the Office of Hall of Justice 

Condo 96 General Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati City 

Advance Solutions Inc. I Payment of 8 units laptop Computers for the 2011 Bar Chairperson 

Phil-Data Business Systems Inc. /Payment of 4 units Desktop Computers for the Office of Hall of Justice 

Phil-Data Business Systems Inc. 

Thine line Trading 

Payment of 10 Units Desktop Computers for the Office of Hall of 

Justice 

Payment of 2 units Scanners, HP Scanner 8270 for the Office on Halls 

of Justice 
Q 

Marjoly General Merchandise LG 12 Cityland a IF;;yment of l laser Printer for the Office of Hall oi Justice 

Condo 96 General Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati City 

Advance Solutions Inc. 115 First Street, Villamar jPayment of l laptop Computer for 2011 Bar Chairperson 

Court Tambe, Paranaque City 

Marjoly General Merchandise LG 12 Cityland 8 I Payment of 2 units Printers HP Office Jet 700 for the Program 

Condo 96 General Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati City Management Office 

Phil-Data Business Systems Inc. 3F Kings Court II I Payment of 1 unit Notebook Computer for Procurement and Planning 

Bldg. 2129 Chino Roses Ave. 1231 Makati City Committee (PPC) 

Advance Solutions Inc. #5 First Street, Villamar jPayment of 5 units Laptops Computers for the Office on Halls of Justice 

Court Tambo, Paranaque City 

44,181 

105,694 

2,655,480 

29,000 

364,960 

190,728 

327,920 

95,900 

'l 

36,065 

65,580 

30,000 

45,814 

227,375 

i,027 I Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

2,458 !Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

61,7SS I Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

674 !Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bank and not reflected in procurement ol"" 

-~~~~~~~~~~~~~_, 

8,487 !Ineligible: Expenditure {a) not connected with 

project development objective and (b) activity 

not agreed with the World Bank 

4,436 I Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

7,626 /Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the Wo~!G· 

Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

2,230 !Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

839 !Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

1,525 !Ineligible: Expenditure {a) not connected with 

project development objective and (b) activity 

not agreed with the World Bank 

698 I Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

1,065 jtneligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

5,288 I In eligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

~ 

JI 

I 
i 
' 

~ 
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174 3 2 A7 Columbia Technologies lnc.1136-1145 ].__ Payment of 4 units Printers for the Program Manageme·nr uffice 40,000 930 Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Nakpil Street Malate Manila Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

170 l 2 A7 Phil-Data Business Systems Inc. Payment of 12 units Desktop Computers and 1 unit Notebook 496,790 11,553 Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Computer for the OCJ Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

174 5 2 A7 Columbia Technologies Inc. 1136-1145 Julia Payment of 1 unit Notebook Computer for the Office of Justice xx 139,8SO 3,252 Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Nakpil Street Malate Manila Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

174 8 2 A7 Columbia Technologies Inc. 1136-1145Julia Payment of l unit Printer (HP Office Jet K7500A) for the Office of 21,850 508 Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Nakpil Street Malate Manila Justice xx Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

181 1 2 A7 Thine line Trading #10 3rd Avenue Barangay Payment of 2 units Printers HP Office Jet for the Office on Halls of 30,900 719 Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Lipunan ng Crame, Quezon City Justice Bank and not reflected in procurement plan I 
174 6 2 A7 Phil-Data Business Systems Inc. 3F Kings Court II Payment of l unit printer HP lasejet for the Office of the Court 24,41S 568 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with ! 

Bldg. 2129 Chino Roses Ave. 1231 Makati City Administrator project development objective and {b) activity 

not agreed with the World Bank 

174 7 2 A7 Phil-Data Business Systems Inc. 3F Kings Court II Payment of 1 Notebook Computer for the Office of the Administrative 50,424 1,173 Ineligible: Expenditure (a) not connected with 

Bldg. 2129 Chino Roses Ave. 1231 Makati City Services (OAS-Training) project development objective and {b) activity 

not agreed with the World Bank 

174 9 2 A7 Phil-Data Business Systems Inc. 3F Kings Court II Payment of 1 unit Notebook computer, the Office of Justice xx 33,618 782 Ineligible: Activity not agreed with the World 

Bldg. 2129 Chino Roses Ave. 1231 Makati City Bank and not reflected in procurement plan 

Total Ineligible Expenditure 8,602,504 199,900 

less: Refunded on WA - 174 (38,478) 

Balance to be refunded 161,422 

~ Q g 
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January J I, 20 I ·2 

Mr. iV1n ttliew Step Ii ens 
Acting Country Dircclol' -·Philippines 
World Bank 
23/F The Taipan Place 
Emerald A venue, Ortigas Center, Pasig City 

~\\I -rr'n:1n·1 .·1;;i·~1·1·~·--r)fi I ! } J 
\~~~=~-~--~~ J.~==::. 
T! ME:. ___ ----·-w-... -.tO.:.V.':'.: ________ _ 

1
\ ____ • Dear Mr. Stephens, 

This refers lo the World Bank's lmplementation Support Mission Aide. f\1femoire October 24-
November 12, 2011, re: .Judicial l\cform Suppol'l Proj'h:t (L,oan 7191-Pl-1), which you 
endorsed to me through your letter cl a Led Decernber 28, 20 l 1 . 1 note that your letter clearly 
adverts to Lhe "d~lilJcrativc nature of info mm lion [in the Aide Mcmoire] some of which is 
still to be conJirnied." For that reason, in the same Aide M.emoire, the World Bank Mission 
Team requested the Supreme Court Prograrn Munagcmcnt Offo . .:c (PiVIO) "to ple;isc point 
ou I any errors 01· 111nissio11!i in tlii: list 1ll' i11clig,ihk ~xpenditun.!s." 

Attached hereto is the SC-PMO's Response/Cornrrtents n..:lmivt: tu said alleged ineligible 
expenditures mentioned in the Aide M1.::rnoirc. 

Other issues ancl matters raised in rhe Aide 1Vlerno.ire shall be addressed <:p1d discussed in u 
r . separate co111mu11icatio11 which will be submitted in February 21) I :2. 
\. __ ... / 

Considering the admitted deliberative nature of the Aid Memoire, it is requested that a 
meeting of the World Bank Task Team/RepresenLatives with the Supreme Court PMO and 
concerned officials be set as soon as possible Lo discuss the issues and matters raised in the 
A[dc Memo[re so that they can be resoived within the month of Fcbrumy 20 I 2. 

Your early response to this letter will be appreciated. 

Very Lruly yours, 

[v~ f~ff\.l)./vio th/ f!~Cvo 
TEH.ESITA .l. Lli:ONAH.DO-DE CAS'fRO 
Chairperson, JRSP Management Comrnitlee 

·) 

(/' 
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Anne~ C 
Subject: 

PH JRSP - Ineligible Expenditures - Review of Documents Shared by PMO - Revised List of Ineligible Expenditures & 
Revised Balance to be Refunded 

From: 

To: 

Cc: 

Date: 

Amukherjee@worldbank.org (Amukherjee@worldbank.org) 
(l' 

geraldinefaith@yahoo.com: 

Amit5201@gmail.com: ead5159@yahoo.com: ibobor33@yahoo.com: adeguzman l@worldbank.org: 
ahaileselassie@worldbClnk.org; Mpayos@worldbank.org; ltolentino l@worldbank.org; pabella@worldbank.org; 
ccheng2@worldbank.org; tessdecastroBBB@yahoo.com; zpapoutsi@worldbank.org; Rsiva@worldbank.org; 
geraldthacker@comcast.net: atoft@worldbank.org: Spadilla@worldbank.org: 

Thursday, April 26, 2012 6:56 AM 

Dear Judge Econg, 

Tllank you for your attached email on the above subject and the documents you shared with us. We have carefully 
reviewed those documents and related information. Table 1 below depicts the information about the procurement process 
for the !CT equipment for the PMO. We note that in the case of the the 2 Notebooks for the PMO, procured from Micro-D,.. 
the contract appears to have been signed before the date of the BAC-APJR Resolution to award the contract. 
Nevertheless, in view' of the documents shared by you, we are pleased to inform you that the expenditures in Table 1 are 
declared eligible following review. 

Our·calculations show that the revised balance to be refunded is now US$132,766. A summary is at Table 2 below, 
and the complete revised list of ineligible expenditures as of April 26, 2012 is in the attached Excel sheet. We would be 
grateful if the revised amount of US$ 132,766.00 could please be refunded as soon as possible. Please let us know 
if you have further questions. 

Thanks and best regards, 
Amit 

\ ........... · 
Table 1 • PMO ICT Equipment Purchase Details 

Component Contract Supplier 
Description 

D 24 

I 
Advance 

desktop 
for PMO 

Contract 
Amount 

(PHP) 

11,012,320 

I) 

Date of Date of Date 
Invitation BAC Contract 
to Quote Resolution Signed 

to Award 
contract 

08/12/2010 10/26/2010 12/712010 

D 1 IBM c:JG 08/12/2010 10/19/2010 12/7/2010 
Think 44,181 
Center for 
PMO 

0 ~otebooks I Micro 

11105,8001 
08/12/2010 10/19/2010 10/7/2010 

-D 
for PMO 

D ICT I Marjoly 

II 259.0501 
11/11/2010 01/04/2011 1/19/2011 

Equipment 
for PMO 

I A.711 ~~~nters II Marjoly l~I 01/11/201 ?' l 04/15/2011 5/13/2011 
30,000 

I A.711 ~~~nters II Columbial~I 01111/2011 II 03/01/2011 5/25/2011 
40,000 

Table 2 ·Summary of Ineligible Expenditures as of April 26, 2012 

Brief Description of Goods, Works or Sentices Invoice Amt Paid from 

Amount Special Acct 
{PHP} {USD} 

.Total Expenditures Initially Declared Ineligible S,602,504 199,900 

Less: Refunded through Withdrawal Applic<ition no. 174 (38,478} 

Balance to be refunded 161,422 
Less: PMO !CT Eqpt. declared eligible Apr 2012. after 28,656 

Revised Balance to be refunded (as of April"26, 2012} 132,766 

Date 
Delivered 

12/29/2010 

LJ 
1/11/2011 

1 /27 /2011 

5/16/2011 

5/27/2011 

Excel Table with Revised List of Ineligible Expenditures: (See uuac:hed file: J 20426 __ P H .JR.SP _Revised list of 

http://ph.mg6 l .mai l.yahoo.com/neo/launch? .rand==2dh9hii 19 Ik72 
0• 

(~/d/')() 1 ') 
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MR.. AIV!ITABHA MUKHERJEE 
Task Team Leader for Judicial Reforms 
The World Bank 
23/F, The Taipan Place 
Ortigas Center, Pasig City 

Dear Mr. Mukherjee: 

8May20'12 

Thank yoLI for your email dated April 26, 2012 declaring as eligible the 
expenditures involving the purchase of various PMO ICT equipment. In the same 
email the PMO is also requested to refund the amount C9f USO 132,766.00. 

We have checked the list of the ineligible transactions, compared it with the 
records of the PMO and found several inaccuracies in the amounts of some of the 
items in the list. A summary of the comparison is shown below, with the details 
provided in Annex A attached hereto. 

\------\~ :\iii-.Orli§;i~~ ReCards :_ _PMQ-Viill<l•rA-'!lsiUnt~~ =~=~~ lQndeJi-::::-:1 
[~:;~~- -~~~n~~~-~~_e~:~=~~--~~~n~~~~~--~:::5 ~~:~---~~~-

We also noted that the World Bank's record on the total refunds made by the 
PMO is understated by USD11 ,295.14. Apparently, it did not consider the refunds 
made under Withdrawal Application (WA) No. 181. A summary of the refund 
comparison is shown below, with the details provided in Annex B. 

1----·-- _.,,_ ----·----------·--·-_ ..... ___ ............... -·--·---.. ·-·---~p---------[r :~~~=-~:~~--.!-=~-v:~~=l!~r:::~-
\ __ _ 

In addition, we also note.d that the total of the PMO ICT equipment declared 
eligible is understated by USD5,920.30. A sum1nary of the cost comparison is shown 
below, with the details provided in Annex C. 

L 
.. ____ , ·--r=·---.. ····-- -----.. --:·---···-· .. ··- -- ------.. ··-" -------.. ------·-------

-- V\{grld Bank's_!3ecords _ _E_~Q_Y§li.~ated Amount _ _g_ver (Unde~')-
ln USO In USO In USO ---- ---·---·--···-·- --------···· -------------·- --· ----·----·-· 

otal 28,656.00 --~~.576.30 . (5,920.30) 

6/F Supreme Court Centenr11al 811ilding 
Padre Faura St., Ermita, Manila 

Tel: 552-9578 - 86; Fax: 552-9586, 552-9580, 552-9604 
Email: jrp1@supremecourt.gov .Ph 

Website : www.apjr-sc-phil.org 

<1' 
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Based on the above, the correct total amount to be refunded should be 
USD115,416.01 and not USO 132,766.00. A summary of the revised computation is 
shown below, with the details provided in Annex 0. 

Particulars 
---····--··--··--··--·---·-· -- .. -----·--------· 
Correct total of expenditures initially declared 

Amount in 
PHP 

Amount in 
USO 

-~~.!!9ll?.!.~------------··-··----------·-··-·--··· -····. ·--···· ·j-~ .. 6_o 5...!.~9 3 _._g§ ___ L:!_~9_, 7 6?:.:L~---· 
Less: Refunds made under Withdrawal Application 

-~2_:_ __ !_?_~ __ 9-.~.~-.}.~J_ __ --------··-·------··------·--···-·-· -- ····-·····--·-- ·--~---·---·-·----- . ..J.i~27~:.l~.-- -

Balance to be refLinded J \ 149,992.31 
-T~;-~~C~~-~-~tt;tal ofPMO-ICTEqul1'.)rnenf-- ··-· --- -·-·--···----···----···--·----·-
__ c:}_~_<?._1§ ~~?_.~ll_g~~~--- --··· .. ·- ·------·-··-----··· ·- . ______ \ _____________ _j _ _34, 5 ?6 ]_Q ___ 

1 

Correct revised balance to be refunded 115,416.01 

We hope that the World Bank will duly rectify its records based on the above 
information. We intend to refund to the Bank the amount of USD115,416.01 as soon 

l, __ / as we get the authorization from the Office of the Chief Justice. 

Thank you and best regards. 

Encl. SOE No. 1"14 and 181 

Very truly yours, 

-~hl.ill-c:lL·lll -k1.itlL J1. L fl'-f] 
GERALDINE FAITH A. E€0NG 

(JI 

Deputy Clerk of Court and 
Judicial Reform Program Administrator 

6/F Supreme Court Centennial Building 

Tel: 552-95:aa_d~~;F;~~~ ~~Z~~r~i~\~;_n~~BO~ 552-9604 
Email: jrp1@supremecourt.~ 

Website : www.apjr-sc-phil.org 



Annex D 
Overall Comparison of WB and PMO Records 

WA# Proj. Name and Address of 

Comp Officials, Contractors or 

Item 
Suppliers 

No. 

Staff of Financial Management 

1 174 82 Office, Office of the Court 

Administrator 

Staff of Program Management 

2 174 01 Office, Supreme Court of the 

Philippines 

Conference of Court Public 

Information Officers, National 
3 127 01 

Center for State Courts, 300 

Newport Avenue, Williamburg, VA 

Staff of Office of Administrative 

4 145 Bl Services Office of the Court 

Administrator 

Staff of Financial Management 

5 155 82 Office, Office of the Court 

Administrator 

Staff of Financial Management 

6 160 82 Office, Office of the Court 

Administrator 

i 
t. 

Brief Description of Goods, Works or 

Services 

Resource Speaker's fee for seminar on 

Revisiting the Code of Conduct for the Court 

Personnel on June 22, 2011 

Reimbursement of travelling expenses in his 

trip to Cebu in connection with the 

conferment of an Honorary Degree on 

Justice xx of the Unified Judiciary of Guam by 

the University of Cebu, March 17-19, 2011 

Registration of Senior Supreme Court Official 

for his participation in the 191
h Annual 

Conference of Court Public Information 

Officers on Aug. 19-11, 2010 in Atlanta, GA, 

U.S.A 

Resource Speaker's fee for seminar on 

Revisiting the Code of Conduct for the Court 

Personnel on Feb. 16, 2011 

Resource Speaker's fee during a seminar on 

Revisiting the Code of Conduct for the Court 

Personnel on Mar. lS, 2011 

Resource Speaker's fee for seminar on 

Revisiting the Code of Conduct for the Court 

Personnel on Apr. 26, 2011 

(-

World Bank's Records 
In Php In USO 

8,000.00 188.26 

2,250.00 41.99 

5,860.00 126.48 

8,000.00 185.65 

7,200.00 168.25 

8,000.00 186.08 
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PMO Validated Amount Refunded 
In Php In USO under WA 

174 & 181 
(USO} 

8,000.00 188.26 

2,250.00 53.58 

5,859.60 126.48 

8,000.00 185.65 

7,200.00 168.25 

8,000.00 186.08 

Reconsi- Still to be 
de red refunded 

PMO ICT (USO} 
Eqpmt 
(USO} 

188.26 

53.58 

126.48 

185.65 

168.25 

186.08 

T 

\ 

\ 
I 
! 

I 
I 
I 
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! 
WA# Proj. Name and Address of 

Comp Officials, Contractors or 
i 

• ttem 
Suppliers 

No. 

Staff of the Program Management 

7 160 B2 Office, Supreme Court of the 

Philippines 

Prestige Travel, Inc Unit D, Manila 

8 160 01 Bay Arcade, Quirino Ave. 

Cortabitarte St. Malate, Manila 

Staff of Financial Management 

9 160 B2 Office, Office of the Court 

Administrator 

Staff of Financial Management 

10 162 Dl Office, Office of the Court 

Administrator 

11 162 01 
Staff of Office of the Court 

Administrator 

12 162 
Staff of Office of the Court 

Bl 
Administrator 

13 162 01 CA RTC 69, Tarlac City 

14 162 B2 CA RTC 18, Cagayan De Oro City 

(/ 

~. 

Brief Description of Goods, Works or 

Services 

Reimbursement of food expenses in 

connection with conferment of an Honorary 

Degree of Justice xx of the Unified Judiciary 

of Guam by the University of Cebu on Mar. 

18 2011 
Airfare of Judge xx et al official trip to Sydney 

for International Commercial Law 

Conference on May 5-7, 2011 

Resource Speaker's fee for seminar on 

Revisiting the Code of Conduct for the Court 

Personnel on May 10, 2011 

Resource Speaker's fee for seminar on 

Revisiting the Code of Conduct for the Court 

Personnel on June 8, 2011 

Resource Speaker's fee for seminar on 

Revisiting the: Code of Conduct for the Court 

Personnel on May 31, 2011 

Liquidation of cash advance for travelling 

allowance in her trip to Begor Indonesia to 

attend the Asia Pacific Regional Conference 

on the International Association of Court 

Administrators on March 13-16, 2011 

Airfare of Judge xx et al official trip to Sydney 

for International Commercial Law 

Conference on May 5-7, 2011 

Airfare of Judge xx et al official trip to Sydney 

for International Commercial Law 

Conference on May 5-7, 2011 

/,...--

\. 

World Bank's Records 
In Php In USO 

14,259.00 330.92 

98,294.00 2,292.05 

8,000.00 186.52 

8,000.00 185.65 

8,000.00 185.66 

107,364.00 2,494.40 

170,882.00 4,011.99 

170,882.00 3,979.38 
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PMO Validated Amount Refunded Reconsi- Still to be 

In Php In USO under WA de red refunded 
174 & 181 PMO ICT (USO) 

(USD) Eqpmt 
(USO) 

14,259.00 330.92 330.92 -

98,294.00 2,292.05 2,292.05 -

8,000.00 186.52 186.52 

8,000.00 185.65 185.65 

8,000.00 185.66 185.66 

107,364.00 2,494.40 2,494.40 -

170,882.00 4,011.99 4011.99 -

170,882.00 3,979.38 3,979.38 -



WA# Proj. Name and Address of 

Comp Officials, Contractors or 

Item 
Suppliers 

No. 

Staff of Office of Administrative 

15 141 B2 Services , Supreme Court of the 

Philippines 

International Association of Court 

16 141 B2 
Administrator, 601 West 

Broadway, Rm 106 Louisville, 

Kentucky USA 

Gold Venture Lease & 

17 138 Dl Management Services, Inc. 782 

Makati Avenue, Makati City 

-

LGC Restaurant, Inc. 1911 M. 

18 138 Dl Adriatico St. Remedios Circle, 

Malate, Manila 

Dasing Canteen and Catering 

19 141 3 Services 1532 Leon Guinto St. 

Barangay 694 Malate, Manila 

20 145 Dl 
Manila Hotel One Rizal Park 1099 

Manila 

Prestige Travel, Inc. Unit D, Manila 

~1 155 01 Bay Arcade, Quirino Avenue, 

Cortabitarte St. Malate, Manila 

,---
( 

Brief Description of Goods, Works or 

Services 

Resource Speaker's fee for seminar on 

Revisiting the Code of Conduct for the Court 

Personnel on Jan 26, 2011 

Telegraphic transfer for registration fee of 

Senior Supreme Court Officials in attending 

the IACA Asia Pacific Regional Conference in 

Boger, Indonesia on Mar. 13-16, 2011 

Room accommodation of Mr. D.B. and Co. 

during the 1st Chief Justice Distinguished 

Lecture of 2011 and Goodwill Games 

between the Judiciary of Guam and Supreme 

Court of the Philippines 

Meals during lunch meeting with Justice xx 

and delegation from Unified Courts of Guam 

on Jan. 13, 2011 

Supply during the Goodwill Games as part of 

the Knowledge Sharing between the 

Judiciaries of Guam and Philippines on Jan. 

13-14, 2011 

Food during dinner in honor of Justice xx and 

delegation of the Unified Court of Guam on 

Jan. 13, 2011 

Airfare of Senior Supreme Court Official for 

his trip to Cebu in connection with the 

conferment of an Honorary Degree of Justice 

xx of the Unified Judiciary of Guam by the 

University of Cebu on March 18, 2011 

;­
\ 

World Bank's Records 
In Php In USD 

8,000.00 184.59 

57,997.00 1,326.86 

69,000.00 1,562.00 

33,539.00 766.00 

9,080.00 209.00 

79,212.00 1,838.00 

12,372.00 289.00 
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PMO Validated Amount Refunded 
In Php In USD under WA 

174 & 181 
(USO) 

8,000.00 184.59 

57,997.05 1,326.86 

69,000.00 1,561.54 1,561.54 

33,539.24 765.91 765.91 

9,080.00 208.78 208.78 

79,211.92 1,838.21 1,838.21 

12,372.00 289.11 289.11 

Reconsi-
de red 

PMO ICT 
Eqpmt 
(USO} 

Still to be 
refunded 

(USO} 

184.59 

1,326.86 

-

-

-

-

-

I 
l 

I 
\ 
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WA# Proj. Name and Address of Brief Description of Goods, Works or World Bank's Records PMO Validated Amount Refunded Reconsi- Still to be 

Comp Officials, Contractors or Services In Php In USO In Php In USO under WA de red refunded 

Suppliers 
174 & 181 PMO ICT (USO) 

Item (USD} Eqpmt 
No. (USO) 

Airfare of E.E. in his trip to Cebu in 

Prestige Travel, Inc. Unit D, Manila connection with the conferment of an 

22 155 Dl Bay Arcade, Quirino Avenue, Honorary Degree of Justice xx of the Unified 5,810.00 136.00 5,810.00 135.77 135.77 -
Cortabitarte St. Malate, Manila Judiciary of Guam by the University of Cebu 

on March 18, 2011 

Airfare of P.P. et al, in their trip to Cebu in 

Prestige Travel, Inc. Unit D, Manila connection with the conferment of an 

23 155 Dl Bay Arcade, Quirino Avenue, Honorary Degree of Justice xx of the Unified 16,052.00 375.00 16,052.00 37511 375.11 -

Cortabitarte St. Malate, Manila Judiciary of Guam by the University of Cebu 

on March 18, 2011 

Airfare of E.V. et al, in their trip to Cebu in 

Prestige Travel, Inc. Unit D, Manila connection with the conferment of an 

24 155 Dl Bay Arcade, Quirino Avenue, Honorary Degree of Justice xx of the Unified 11,705.00 274.00 11,705.00 273.53 273.53 -
Cortabitarte St. Malate, Manila Judiciary of Guam by the University of Cebu 

on March 18, 2011 

Airfare of M.M., in their trip to Cebu in 

Prestige Travel, Inc. Unit D, Manila connection with the conferment of an 

25 155 Dl Bay Arcade, Quirino Avenue, Honorary Degree of Justice xx of the Unified 5,810.00 135.00 5,810.00 135.45 135.45 -
Cortabitarte St. Malate, Manila Judiciary of Guam by the University of Cebu 

on March 18, 2011 

Reimbursement of travelling expenses in her 

Staff of Program Management trip to Cebu in connection with the 

26 155 Dl Office Supreme Court of the conferment of an Honorary Degree of Justice 6,550.00 153.00 6,550.00 152.53 152.53 -
Philippines xx of the Unified Judiciary of Guam by the 

University of Cebu on March 17-19, 2011 
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WA# Proj. Name and Address of Brief Description of Goods, Works or World Bank's Records PMO Validated Amount Refunded Reconsi- Still to be 

Comp Officials, Contractors or Services In Php In USO In Php In USD under WA de red refunded 

Suppliers 
174 & 181 PMO ICT (USD) 

Item (USO) Eqpmt 

No. (USO) 

Food accommodation of xx in Cebu in 

Hotel Specialist (Cebu) Inc., Serge 
connection with the conferment of an 

27 155 Dl Honorary Degree of Justice xx of the Unified 35,327.00 829.00 35,327.47 829.42 829.42 
Osmena Boulevard 

-
Judiciary of Guam by the University of Cebu 

on March 18, 2011 

Prestige Travel, Inc. Unit D, Manila 
Airfare of LD to attend the Asia Pacific 

Regional Conference of the International 
28 145 Dl Bay Arcade Quirino Avenue, 18,634.00 429.00 18,634.00 428.95 428.95 -

Cortabitarte St., Malate, Manila 
Association for the Court Administration in 

Jakarta on March 13-16, 2011 

Airfare of Senior Supreme Court Officials to 

Prestige Travel, Inc. Unit D, Manila attend the Asia Pacific Regional Conference 

29 145 Dl Bay Arcade Quirino Avenue, of the International Association for the Court 43,662.00 1,016.00 43,662.00 1,015.59 1,015.59 -
Cortabitarte St., Malate, Manila Administration in Jakarta on March 13-16, 

2011 

Services rendered as resource person on 

OCCI Fullness Foundation, Inc. 6/F Strategic Workshop for the xx to address 

30 145 Al Emerald Bldg. F. Ortigas Jr. Road, Case Decongestion and Delay in the Lower 148,706.00 3,467.00 148,706.00 3,466.91 3,466.91 -
Ortigas Center, Pasig Court at Holiday Inn Clark on January 7-9, 

2011 

Ateneo de Manila University Loyola 
Seminar fee of M.P. in his attendance on 

31 155 D2 Facilitating Adult Learning on March 22-25, 16,000.00 374.00 16.000.00 373.89 373.89 
Heights, Quezon City 

-
2011 

Liquidation of cash advance for travelling 

Senior Supreme Court Official 
allowance in a trip to Bogor Indonesia to 

32 160 Dl attend the Asia Pacific Regional Conference 106,522.00 2,475.00 106,521.60 2,474.83 2,474.83 -
Supreme Court of the Philippines 

of the International Association of Court 

Administrator on March 13-16, 2011 
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WA# Proj. Name and Address of Brief Description of Goods, Works or World Bank's Records 

Comp Officials, Contractors or Services In Php In USD 

Item 
Supplier~ 

No. 

' 
Crosspoint Paper, Inc. 57-A 4'h Payment of printing services for publication 

33 138 Al Ave., cor. Mafialac Ave., of additional copies of the Reporter's Case 106,500.00 2,421.00 
Bagumbayan Taguig Metro Manila Index 

Tanteco Stationery Rm. 204-205 Payment of printing services for publication 
34 138 Al Solex 111144 Soler St., Binondo of additional copies of the Reporter's Case 7,040.00 161.00 

Manila Index 

Gakken Philippines, Inc. 130 GPI Payment of printing services for publication 
35 138 Al Bldg. Aurora Blvd. San Juan Metro of additional copies of the Reporter's Case 7,680.00 174.00 

Manila Index 

U. K. Office, Inc. 5548 Plaza 
Payment of printing services for publication 

36 138 Al of additional copies of the Reporter's Case 2,300.00 52.00 
Lorenzo Ruiz, Binondo Manila 

Index 

Tanteco Stationery Rm_ 204-205 Payment of printing services for publication 
37 138 Al Solex 111144 Soler St., Binondo of additional copies of the Reporter's Case 7,040.00 160.00 

Mani!3 Index 

Gakken Philippines, Inc. 130 GPI Payment of printing services for publication 
38 138 Al Bldg_ Aurora Blvd_ San Juan Metro of additional copies of the Reporter's Case 7,680.00 175.00 

Manila Index 

Crosspoint Paper, Inc. 57-A 41h Payment of printing services for publication 
39 138 Al Ave., cor. Mafialac Ave., of additional copies of the Reporter's Case 106,500.00 2,427.00 

Bagumbayan Taguig Metro Manila Index 

U. K. Office, Inc. 5548 Plaza 
Payment of printing services for publication 

40 138 Al of additional copies of the Reporter's Case 2,300.00 52.00 
Lorenzo Ruiz, Binondo Manila 

Index 

Southern Eastern Phoenix, Inc. Payment of printing services for publication 
41 141 Al Spicers Bldg., 4384 St., Barangay of additional copies of the Reporter's Case 43,250.00 1,001.00 

Tejeros, Makati City Index 
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PMO Validated Amount Refunded 

In Php In USO under WA 
174 & 181 

(USO} 

106,500.00 2,421.01 2,421.01 

7,040.00 161.32 161.32 

7,680.00 173.80 173.80 

2,300.00 52.16 52.16 

7,040.00 160-40 160-40 

7,680.00 174.99 174.99 

106,500.00 2,426.53 2,426.53 

2,300.00 52-40 52-40 

43,249.99 1,001.34 1,001.34 

Reconsi-
de red 

PMO ICT 
Eqpmt 
(USO) 

Still to be 
refunded 

(USD) 

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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WA# Proj. Name and Address of Brief Description of Goods, Works or World Bank's Records PMO Validated Amount Refunded Reconsi- Still to be 

Comp Officials, Contractors or Services In Php In USO In Php In USO under WA de red refunded 

Suppliers 
174 & 181 PMO ICT (USO) 

Item (USO) Eqpmt 

No. (USO) 

Southern Eastern Phoenix, Inc. Payment of printing services for publication 

42 141 Al Spicers Bldg., 4384 St., Barangay of additional copies of the Reporter's Case 43,250.00 1,001.00 43,249.99 1,001.34 1,001.34 -

Tejeros, Makati City Index 

U. K. Office, Inc. 5548 Plaza 
Payment of printing services for publication 

43 155 Al of additional copies of the Reporter's Case 6,360.00 148.00 6,360.00 148.05 148.05 -
Lorenzo Ruiz, Binondo Manila 

Index 

Gakken Philippines, Inc. 130 GPI Payment of printing services for publication 

44 155 Al Bldg. Aurora Blvd. San Juan Metro of additional copies of the Reporter's Case 30,720.00 715.00 30,720.00 715.10 715.10 -
Manila Index 

Crosspoint Paper, Inc. 57-A 4th Payment of printing services for publication 

45 155 Al Ave., cor. Mafia lac Ave., of additional copies of the Reporter's Case 403,200.00 9,386.00 403,200.00 9,385.70 9,385.70 -
Bagumbayan Taguig Metro Manila Index 

Southern Eastern Phoenix, Inc. Payment of printing services for publication 

46 1'.:5 Al Spicers Bldg., 4384 St., Barangay of additional copies of the Reporter's Case 165,400.00 3,850.00 165,400.00 3,850.19 3,850.19 -
Tejeros, Makati City Index 

Purity Paper, Inc. 650 Payment of printing services for publication 

47 155 Al Circumferential Road, Barangay of additional copies of the Reporter's Case 26,400.00 615.00 26,400.00 614.54 614.54 -
Dalig, Antipolo City Index 

48 144 A7 Advance Solution, Inc. 
Payment of 24 units of Desktop Computers 

1,012,320.00 23,542.00 1,012,320.00 23,487.93 23,487.93 -
for the Program Management Office 

49. 138 A7 Advance Solutions, Inc. 
Payment of 1 unit of Think Center 0702 

44,181.00 1,027.00 44,181.00 1,002.07 1,002.07 -
Desktop Computer for PMO 

Micro D International, Inc. 6/F 

50 141 A7 
Peninsula Court# 8735 Paseo de Payment of 2 units of notebook computer 

105,694.00 105,694.20 2,430.26 2,430.26 2,458.00 -
Roxas cor. Makati Avenue, Makati for PMO 

City 
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WA# Proj. - Name and Address of Brief Description of Goods, Works or World Bank's Records PMO Validated Amount Refunded Reconsi- Still to be 

Comp Officials, Contractors or Services In Php In USO In Php In USO under WA de red refunded 

Suppliers 
174 & 181 PMO ICT (USD) 

Item (USO} Eqpmt 

No. (USO) 

Payment of ICT Equipment for the 

Management Information Systems Office 

51 137 A7 
Columbia technologies, Inc 1136- (MISO), Judiciary Case Management System 

2,655,480.00 61,755.00 2,655,480.00 61, 146.81 61, 146.81 
1145 Julia Nakpil St_, Malate Manila (JCMS) Hardware Batch 1, 35 desktop, 13 

laptop, 35 UPS, 10 external hard disk, 8 flash 

drive 

S2 145 A7 Marjoly General Merchandise, Inc 
Payment of 11 units of notebook computers 

259,050.00 6,024_00 259,050.00 6,018_55 6,018.55 -
for the Office of the Court Administrator 

53 155 A7 Marjoly General Merchandise, Inc. 
Payment of 1 unit of Multi Media Projector 

29,000.00 674.00 29,000.00 675.33 675.33 
for the Office on the Hall of Justice (OHJ) I 

54 146 A7 Advance Solutions, Inc. 
Payment of 8 units of Laptop Computers for 

364,960.00 8,487.00 364,960.00 8,514.59 8,514.59 
the 2011 Bar Chairperson 

\ 
' 

55 148 A7 Phil-Data Business Systems, Inc. 
Payment of 4 units of desktop computers for 

190,728.00 4,436.00 190,728.00 4,464.52 4,464.52 
the OHJ 

56 152 A7 Phil-Data Business Systems, Inc 
Payment of 10 units of desktop computers 

for the OHJ 
327,920.00 7,626.00 327,920.00 7,650.44 7,650.44 

57 156 A7 Thine Line Trading 
Payment of 2 units of Scanner 8270 for the 

95,900.00 2,230.00 95,900.00 2,237.36 2,237.36 
OHJ 

Marjoly General Merchandise, Inc. 

58 160 A7 LG 12 Cityland 8 Condo 96 General Payment of 1 unit of Laser Printer for OHJ 36,065.00 839.00 36,065.00 840.97 840.97 

Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati City 

Advance Solutions, Inc. ll 5 First 
Payment of 1 unit of laptop computer for the 

59 160 A7 Street Villamar Court Tambo, 65,580.00 1,525.00 68,580.00 1,594.82 1,594.82 

Paraiiaque City 
2011 Bar Chairperson 
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~ WA# Proj. Name and Address of 

Comp Officials, Contractors or 

Item 
Suppliers 

No. 

Marjoly General Merchandise, Inc. 

60 162 A7 LG 12 Cityland 8 Condo 96 General 

Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati City 

Phil-Data Business Systems, Inc. 3/F 

61 162 A7 Kings Court II Bldg. 2129 Chino 

roces Ave. 1231 Makati City 

Advance Solutions, Inc.# 5 First 

62 174 A7 Street Villamar Court Tambo, 

Parai'iaaue City 

63 174 A7 
Columbia Technologies, Inc. 1136-

1145 Julia Nakpil St., Malate Manila 

Phil-Data Business Systems, Inc. 3/F 

64 170 A7 Kings Court II Bldg. 2129 Chino 

roces Ave. 1231 Makati City 

65 174 A7 
Columbia Technologies, Inc. 1136-

1145 Julia Nakpil St., Ma late Manila 

66 174 A7 
Columbia Technologies, Inc. 1136-

1145 Julia Nakpil St., Malate Manila 

Thine Line Trading #10 3'd Avenue, 
67- 181 A7 Barangay Lipunan ng Crame, 

Quezon City 

(-

Brief Description of Goods, Works or 

Service~ 

Payment of 2 units Printers HP Office Jet 700 

for the PMO 

Payment of 1 unit notebook computer for 

the Procurement and Planning Committee 

(PPC) 

Payment of 5 units of Laptop computers for 

the OHJ 

Payment of 4 units of printers for the PMO 

Payment of 12 units of desktop computers 

and 1 unit notebook computer for the OU 

Payment of I unit of notebook computer for 

the Office of Justice xx 

Payment of 1 unit of printer (HP Office Jet 

K7500A} for the Office of Justice xx 

Payment of 2 units Printer HP Office Jet for 

the OHJ 

! 
\ 

World Bank's Records 
In Php In USO 

30,000.00 698.00 

45,814.00 1,055.00 

227,375.00 5,288.00 

40,000.00 930.00 

496,790.00 11,553.00 

139,850.00 3,252.00 

21,850.00 508.00 

30,900.00 719.00 
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PMO Validated Amount Refunded Reconsi- Still to be 

In Php In USO under WA de red refunded 
174 & 181 PMO ICT (USO} 

(USO) Eqpmt 
(USO) 

30,000.00 696.18 696.18 -

45,814.00 1,063.16 1,063.16 

227,375.00 5,350.76 5,350.76 

40,000.00 941.31 941.31 -

496,790.00 11,762.09 11,762.09 

139,850.00 3,330.16 3,330.16 

21,850.00 519.69 519.69 

30,900.00 715.41 715.41 



( 

WA#I Proj. , Name and Address of Brief Description of Goods, Works or 

Comp Officials, Contractors or Services 

Item I 
No. I 
68 I 174 I 

69 I 114 I 

70 I 174 I 

I 
Suppliers 

Phil-Data Business Systems, Inc. 3/F 

A7 I Kings Court 11 Bldg_ 2129 Chino Payment of 1 unit of printer HP Laser Jet for I 
A 

1231 
M k - C the Office of the Court Administrator roces ve _ a at1 1ty 

Phil-Data Business Systems, Inc. 3/F Payment of 1 unit of notebook computer for 
A7 I Kings Court II Bldg_ 2129 Chino the Office of the administrative Services (OAS! 

races Ave. 1231 Makati City Training) 

Phil-Data Business Systems, Inc. 3/F 

A7 I Kings Court 11 Bldg. 2129 Chino Payment of 1 unit of notebook computer for I 
A 

1231 
M k _ C the Office of Justice xx 

roces ve. a at1 1ty 

fl) ~t c ~ 
't:I 0 .., ..., 
Ill no a o. 
cc> 
n::l.~ 
Q t;ij~ 
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n 
0 
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Total 

Less Refunded under WA 174 and 181 

Balance to be refunded 

Less reconsidered PMO !CT equipment 

Revised balance to be refunded 

(-

World Bank's Records 
In Php In USO 

24,415.oo I 568.oo I 

50,424.oo I 1, 173_00 I 

33.618.oo I 782.00 I 

8,602,504.oo I 199,900.00 
I 

38,478.00 

161,422.00 

28,656.00 

132,766.00 
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PMO Validated Amount Refunded Reconsi- StiH to be 
In Php In USO under WA de red refunded 

174 & 181 PMO ICT (USO) 
(USD} Eqpmt 

(USD} 

24,415.00 I 581.38 I I I 581.38 

50,424.oo I 1,200.72 I I I 1,200.72 

33,618.00 : 790.22 I I I 790.22 

8,605,503.06 199,765.45 I 49,773.14 I 34,576.30 I 115,416.01 

49,773.14 

149,992.31 

34,576.30 

115,416.01 





A. 

B. 

',i;.! 

SUPRI!:tV;iR'\: q .. .'VUB~ .. J. 
OFFICE Of ·nn:; nnfli JUSTICE 

I{.E er:: JE: 1r~,~.r .nr: .r~i 

I EXECUTIVE SUMMARY JUL 2 5 2007 

Introduction 

BY:~­
TIME:~~ 

Article VII of the 1987 Constitution vested judicial power in one Supreme 
Court and in such lower courts as may be established by law. The Supreme Court 
is the highest tribunal in the country's four-tiered court system. It supervises the 
administration of all lower com1s, such as the Court of Appeals, Sandiganbayan, 
Court of Tax Appeals, Regional Trial Courts, Metropolitan Trial Courts, 
Municipal Trial Courts, Municipal Trial Courts in Cities, Municipal Circuit Trial 
Courts, Shari'a District Courts, Shari'a Circuit Courts and the Presidential 
Electoral Tribunal. 

The judicial power includes the duty of the com1s of justice to settle actual 
controversies involving rights which are legally demandable and enforceable, and, 
in cases prescribed by law, to detem1ine whether or not there has been grave 
abuse of discretion amounting to lack of excess jurisdiction on the part of any 
branch or instrumentality of the government. 

Financial Highlights 

Presented below are comparative analysis relative to the financial 
condition, and sources and application of funds for the last two years: 

Increase/ 
CY 2006 CY 2005 (Decrease) 

(In Philippine Peso) 
A. Financial Condition 

Assets 8,632, 772,5 53 .64 7,871,989,748.90 760,782,804.74 
Liabilities 4,706,524,475.43 4,051,883,826.07 654,640,649.36 
Government Equity 3,926,248,078.21 3,820, 105,922.83 106, 142,155.38 

B. Sources and 
Application of 
Funds -
Total Income 10,284,433,278.92 10,377 ,846,226. 74 (93,412,947.82) 
Total Expenditures 9,996,706,354.49 8,956, 798,609 .06 1,039,907,745.43 
Balance 287 '726,924.43 1,421,047,617.68 (1, 133,320,693.25) 

l 
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C. Scope of Audit 

The audit was focused on the Court's accounts and fi.nancfal operations for 
CY 2006. It was made to determine the reliability and accuracy of financial 
reports and adequacy of the books of accounts, in accordance with existing 
accounting and auditing rules and regulations. The audit was made through the 
conduct . of selective tests on the accounts in the financial statements and 
accordingly included other audit techniques and procedures. deemed necessary 
under the circumstances. 

D. Auditor's Report 

The Auditor rendered a qualified opinion on the fairness of the 
presentation of the financial statements of the Supreme Court as of December 31, 
2006, in accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations and in confom1ity 
with applicable generally accepted state accounting princ1ples. 

E. Observations and Recommendations 

.. · The audit reveals some deficiencies which, together with corresponding 
recommendations, are summarized as follows: 

1. Validity of Fiduciary Fund of the Lower Courts could not be ascertained 
because 'of unreconciled balances of cash and trust accounts by 
P75,936,712.71, continued non-preparation of bank/treasury reconciliation 
statements and unreconciled general and subsidiary ledger balances of 
trust accounts. 

2. 

We recommend that management should prepare reconciliation statements 
on the cash and trust accounts of the FF. Adjusting and/or correcting 
entries must be taken up in the books in order to present the correct 
balances of the individual accounts. SLs should also be maintained for 
unwithdrawn FF that are still deposited with MTO/PTO. And, balances of 
the SLs and the GL's controlling accounts for all FF accounts should at all 
times be reconciled. 

Interest earned on FF and forfeited/confiscated bonds amounting to 
P2 l,445,848.85 and P2,929,850.00, respectively, were not remitted to the 
Bureau of Treasury in violation of Section 44, of Book VI of E.O. No. 
292, series of 1987. 

11 
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We reiterate our recommendation that management should require all 
Clerks of Court to remit to the Bureau of Treasury interest earned on 
Fiduciary Fund and forfeited/confiscated bonds in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 44, Book VI ofE.0. No. 292 s. of 1987 .. 

3. The consolidated book and bank balances of Cash in Bank - Local 
Currency, CmTent Account (111) of the Supreme Court and L9wer 
Courts with the exception of the Judiciary Development Fund showed a 
difference of P200,071,048.19 due to the non-preparation of monthly bank 
reconciliation statements, thus affecting the correct valuation and fair 
presentation of the account in the financial statement and in violation of 
the provision of Section 74 of P.D. No. 1445. 

We recommend that management should submit the BRS as of December 
31, 2006 for all bank accounts. It should account for the discrepancy and 
the reconciling items for adjustments in order to present true balance of 
the cash account in the financial statement. It should also record 
adjusting/correcting entries for stale checks and interest earned for the 
HOJ account. Strict compliance of Section 74 of P.D. No. 1445 and 
Paragraph 2 1.2 and 4.0 of COA Circular No. 92-125-A on the monthly 
preparation of the BRS should be observed. 

4. Cash advances for local and foreign travels of officials and employees of 
the Court amounting to Pl,905,255.93 remained unliquidated as of year­
end in violation of Section 16 of E.O. No. 248 dated May 29,1995 and 
Sections 3 .1.2.1 and 3 .2.2.1 of COA Circular No. 96-004 dated April 19, 
1996. 

5. 

6. 

We recommend that management should direct the officials and 
employees concerned to liquidate their outstanding cash advances 
immediately within the period required in Section 16 ofE.O. No. 248. 

Cash shortages and salary overpayments of Lower Courts persom1el 
amounting to Pl 7,334,964.91 were not settled as of the year end, 
including COA disallowances totaling Pl94,l 75.45 which are outstanding 
from 4 to 9 years. 

We recommend that management should deduct from the salaries of 
concerned personnel the unsettled amount of cash sh011ages and 
overpayment of salaries. 

Consolidated Property, Plant and Equipment account balances did not 
reconcile with the physical count, it showed a difference of 
P956,564,459.37. 

iii 
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We recommend that Management should segregate the Inventory per 
Property, Plant and Equipment account, should enforce the reconciliation 
of the accounting and property records, should account for the 
discrepancies and should make appropriate adjustments, when justified 
and supported with documents. 

7. The Property, Plant and Equipment account as of December 31, 2006 was 
overstated because assets for disposal in the amount of P26,877,306.92 
were still carried in the account. 

We recommend that management should transfer the value of assets that 
are awaiting final disposition to Other Assets account pursuant to Chapter 
2, Section 4 of the Manual on the NGAS, Volume I. 

8. The balance ofltems in Transit account in the amount of P13,865,153.56 
remained in the books despite prior years recommendations to transfer the 
account to the Registry of Dormant Accounts while waiting for COA's 
approval to write off the account. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

We recommend that management should transfer the account to the 
Registry of Donnant Accounts in accordance with COA Circular No. 97-
001 dated February 5, 1997 as shown in Appendix 23 of the Manual on 
the NGAS while waiting for COA's approval on the writing off of account. 

Construction-In-Progress account in the amount of P79,750,458.35 was 
not adjusted to its appropriate account for lack of supporting documents. 
The account had been dormant for the last six ( 6) years. 

We recommend that management should exert extra effort to locate the 
supporting documents and should effect adjustments when properly 
documented. In the meantime, the account should be transferred to the 
Registry of Dormant Accounts in accordance with COA Circular No. 97-
001 dated February 5, 1997 as shown in Appendix 23 of the Manual on 
the NGAS. 

Inter-agency payables had negafr1e balances in the total amount of 
PSl,234,959.22, thus, affecting the accuracy and reliability of the 
accounts. 

We recommend that management should continue to investigate the 
causes of the negative balances and effect corrections to show the true 
balance of the accounts. 

Book and bank balances of Cash in Bank was not reconciled in violation 
of Section 74 of PD 1445, with a difference of P248,296,598.63, thus 
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affecting the correct valuation and fair presentation of the account in the 
financial statement 

We reconunend that management should enforce the preparation of bank 
reconciliation statement in accordance with Section 74 of P.D. No. 1445. 
It should also account for the difference and effect adjustments for 
reconciling items when properly documented. 

13 Splitting of contracts was committed in the procurement of steel filing safe 
cabinets in the amount of P359,600.00 and procurement of services for the 
general treatment and control of termites in various halls of Justice in the 
amount of Pl,033,637.80. The Court also split the payments of Purchase 
Order No. 05-12-0011866 dated December 15, 2005 into 22 payments 
despite the fact that no such provision could be found in the purchase 
order. 

We recommend that management should investigate splitting of contracts 
and payments. Likewise, the provisions of Section 10 and Article 10 of 
RA 9184 and Section 54-1, IRR of RA No. 9184 should be strictly 
implemented. 

The above observations and recommendations were discussed with the 
management and their comments were incorporated in the report where 
appropriate. 

Implementation of Prior Yetzr's Recommendlltions 

Out of the twenty-two (22) audit recommendations embodied in the 2005 
Annual Audit Report, four ( 4) were fully implemented, fifteen (15) were partially 
implemented and three (3) were not implemented. 
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Republic of the Philippines 
COMMISSION ON AUDIT 
Commonwealth Avenue, Quezon City 

CLUSTER IL· Legislafive/judicial/Consfitub'onal Commissions 
Nab'onal Government Sector 

October 7, 2008 

The Honorable Chief Justice 
Supreme Court of the Philippines 
Manila 

Sir: 

We are pleased to transmit the Auditor's Annual Audit Report on the Supreme 
Court of the Philippines for calendar year 2007, in compliance with Section 43 of 
Presidential Decree No. 1445, otherwise known as the "Government Auditing Code of 
the Philippines." 

The attached report consists of the Audit Certificate; the Audited Financial 
Statements; the Observations and Recommendations which were discussed with 
concerned Management officials and staff; and the Status of Implementation of Prior 
Year's Audit Recommendation. The audit was conducted in accordance with generally 
accepted state auditing standards and we believe that it provides reasonable bases for the 
results of audit. 

Pursuant to Section 91, General Provisions of the General Appropriations Act, 
Fiscal Year 2007 (RA 9401 ), we request a status report on the actions taken on the audit 
recommendation within sixty days from receipt of this report. 

We express our appreciation for the valuable support and cooperation extended by 
the officials and staff of that Agency. 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

A. Introduction 

Article VII of the 1987 Constitution vested judicial power in one Supreme 
Court and in such lower courts as may be established by law. The Supreme 
Court is the highest tribunal in the country's four-tiered court system. It 
supervises the administration of all lower courts such as the Court of Appeals, 
Sandiganbayan, Court of Tax Appeals, Regional Trial Courts, Metropolitan 
Trial Courts, Municipal Trial Courts, Municipal Trial Court in Cities,· Municipal 
Circuit Trial Courts, Shari'a District Courts, Shari'a Circuit Courts and the 
Presidential Electoral Tribunal. 

The judicial power includes the duty of the courts of justice to settle actual 
controversies involving rights which are legally demandable and enforceable, 
and, in cases prescribed by law, to determine whether or not there has been 
grave abuse of discretion amounting to lack of excess jurisdiction on the part of 
any branch or instrumentality of the government. 

B. Fimmcial Highlights 

CY 2007 CY 2006 Increase/ 
(Decrease) 

(In Philippine Peso) 
A. Financial Condition ' 

Assets 9,175,291,469.50 8,632, 772,553 .64 542,518,915.86 
Liabilities 5,003,487,309.11 4,706,524,475.43 296,962,833.68' 

Government Equity 4,171,804,160.39 3,926,248,078.21 245,556,082.18 
B. Sources and Application of Funds 

Allotment 9,750,254,384.87 8, 173,003,606.35 1,577,250,778.52 
Expenditures 9,120,424,380.58 8,049,112,954.92 1,071,311,425.66 
Balance 629,830,004.29 123,890,651.43 505,939,352.86 

C. Scope of Audit 

The audit was focused on the Court's accounts and financial operations for 
CY 2007. It was made to determine the reliability and accuracy of financial 
reports and adequacy of the books of accounts, in accordance with existing 
accounting and auditing rules and regulations. The audit was made through the 
conduct of selective tests on the accounts in the financial statements and 
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accordingly included other audit teclmiques and procedures deemed necessary · 
under the circumstances. I · 

D. Auditor's Report 

E. 

I 

I 

The Auditor rendered a q~alified opinion on the fairness of the presentation 
of the financial statements o~ the Supreme Court as of December 31, 2007, in 
accordance with applicable la;ws, rules and regulations and in conformity with 
applicable generally accepted hate accounting principles. 

I 
I 

Observations aml Recommen~ations 
I . 

The audit reveals favorable observations as well as deficiencies which, 
together with corresponding rebommendations, are summarized as follows: 

I 

I 

Favorable Observations \ 

1. The SC accomplishmeJts included· landmark decisions on several 
controversial cases, the deansing of the court, the passage of the rule on 
Writ of Amparo, and the·cbntinuance of its judicial reform program. 

I 
I 

2. The year 2007 saw the :launching of component B of the new Asian 
Development Bank (ADB) Technical Assistance Grant, under which ADB 
worked closely with the S<r and other pillars of justice to promote long-term 
improvements in the ovetall administration of justice by enhancing the 
capabilities of the justice I sector agencies through processes and systems 
development; the launchi~g of the Court-Annexed Mediation on Wheels 

' I 

Program under the World Bank-assisted Justice on Wheels Project in Rizal; 
and the blessing and inaJguration of the Lapu-lapu City Hall of Justice 
(HOJ), the country's first ~ilot model court and the launching of the ADB­
assisted Regional Court Administration Office (RCAO) Pilot Project and e-
Register Project. I 

I 

Regular Agency Funt! 
I 

I 

3. Interest earned on Fiduciary Funds and foJ.'feited/confiscated bonds totaling 
P42,595,942.64 and P32,983,469.00, respectively, were not remitted to the 
Bureau of Treasury (BTr) ~espite the requirement of Section 44, of Book VI 
of Executive Order No. 292, series of 1987. 

I 

We reiterate our recommendation that management remit the interest earned 
and confiscated/forfeited bonds on FFs to the BTr in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 44, Book VI ofE.O. No. 292, series of 1987. 

ii 
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4. Commitment Fees in the amount of Pl3,754,859.51 were incurred due to 
slow utilization of the proceeds of Loan No. 7191-PH with International 
Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD). 

We recommend that management implement the programs and projects of 
the JRSP strictly in accordance with timetables and to speed up the 
procurement of works, goods and services to avoid incurrence of 
commitment fees. 

5. Accuracy of FF of the Lower Courts (LC) could not be ascertained because 
of unreconciled balances, of cash and trust accounts by P78,966,784.82, 
continued non-preparation of bank reconciliation statements (BRS) and 
treasury reconciliation statements with Municipal Treasurer's and Provincial 
Treasurer's Offices and unreconciled general and subsidiary ledger balances 
of trust accounts. · 

Management should prepare reconciliation statements on the cash and trust 
accounts of the Fiduciary Fund and submit them to COA for verification 
purposes. Any reconciling item uncovered in the reconciliation process 
should be taken up in the books in orders to present the correct balances of 
the individual accounts. It should also maintain SLs for the Unwithdrawn 
FF that were still deposited with the MTO/PTO. Finally, the FMO, OCA 
should reconcile the SLs for each FF accounts with the GL's controlling 
accounts. 

6. The consolidated book and bank balances of Cash in Bank, Local Currency, 
Current Account of the SC and LC with the exception of the JDF, Special 
Allowance of the Judiciary (SAJ), and JRSP showed a discrepancy of 
P372,672,067.39 due to non-preparation of complete monthly bank 
reconciliation statements as required in Section 74 of P.D. No. 1445, thus, 
affecting the correct valuation and fair presentation of the cash account in 
the financial statement. 

Management should account for the discrepancy by directing the FMBO and 
FMO to prepare bank reconciliation statements for all bank accounts as of 
December 31, 2007-. Record all reconciling i terns in the books and provide 
LBP with a schedule showing reconciling items that should be taken up by 
the bank. Prepare BRS every end of the month in accordance with Section 
74 of P.D. No. 1445 and Paragraph 21.2 and 4.0 of COA Circular No. 92-
125-A. 

7. Cash Advances for Miscellaneous Operating Expenses of the Philippine 
Judicial Academy (PHILJA) amounting to 4,269,274.13 were not liquidated 
as of year-end. 

Management should pursue the collection of Judge Agana's outstanding 
cash advance and to require Atty. Ballesteros to liquidate his outstanding 

iii 
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cash advances the soonest time. Direct all its Special Disbursing Officers to 
liquidate cash advances as soon as the purpose for which these were granted 
have been served and to stop the practice of granting cash advances until the 
previous cash advances are liquidated in accordance with Section 89 of P. 
D. No. 1445 and Sections 4.1.3 and 5.8 of COA Circular No. 97-002 dated 
February 10, 1997. 

8. Cash advances for local and foreign travels of court personnel amounting to 
Pl ,818,806.23 remained unliquidated as of year-end. 

We recommend that management direct all personnel concerned to liquidate 
their outstanding cash advances as soon as the travels have been completed, 
otherwise management should suspend the payment of their salaries until 
they comply with the directive . 

9. Cash shortages and salary overpayments to personnel of LC totaling 
Pl8,518,612.19, out of which the amount of PlS,522,963.61 were not 
settled for more than six years. 

Management should require the Court Administrator to deduct the 
overpayments from salaries of employees and to recover the cash shortages 
of COCs the soonest possible time. 

10. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) book balances of the SC and the LC of 
Pl,130,788,553.49 were of doubtful reliability and accuracy due to non­
reconciliation of the accounting and property records resulting in a 
discrepancy of P872,l 71,401.92. 

We recommend that management take serious effort to account for the 
discrepancy by reconciling the property and accounting records, segregate 
the inventory per PPE account and per fund and record adjustments, when 
necessary. 

11. The PPE account as of December 31', 2007 was overstated by 
P40,546,646.04 because furniture and fixtures that were due for disposal 
were not reclassified to other assets account which may lead to erroneous 
computation of depreciation. 

We recommend that management . transfer the value of assets that are 
awaiting final disposition to Other Assets account pursuant to the NGAS 
provision and recognize depreciation based on the correct PPE valuation. 

12. The LC remitted to GSIS the amounts withheld form its employees who had 
either resigned, i:etired, transferred and those employees with ,insufficient 
leave credits resulting in a negative balance of Due to GSIS account in the 
amount of P82,326,66 l .20. 

iv 
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We recommend that management fast track the reconciliation of records 
with the GSIS and when the overpayment is determined, demand from the 
GSIS the refund of the amount. Present the correct balances of the affected 
accounts in the financial statements by recording in the books the amounts 
due from the employees concerned. Send demand letters to concerned 
personnel for collection of their accountabilities. If no payment is made, 
deduct their accountabilities from any amount that would be due them. 
Update the personnel records and delete from the . payroll the names of 
'employees who are either retired, resigned, transferred to other govenunent 
offices and those without leave credits. · 

13. The Internal Audit Services otherwise named as the Internal Audit Division 
(IAD) and Financial Services Division (FSD) perform functions which are 
inconsistent with the Administrative Order (AO) No. 278 dated April 28, 
1992 and AO No. 70 dated April 14, 2003. 

We recommend that the management examine and evaluate the present 
organizational and staffing activities of FSD and the IAD in strict adherence 
with the provisions oflaw as stated in Administrative Order No. 278. 

14. Audit revealed that disallowances issued by COA in the total amount 
P687,475.'33 remained unsettled 

We recommend that management require all personnel concerned to settle 
their disallowances and take appropriate action over previous court officials 
who are no longer members of the Judiciary to settle their disallowances 
immediately. 

Judiciary Development Fund 

15. The book and bank balances of Cash in Bank - Local Currency, Savings 
Account showed a difference of P219,25 l,733.96 as of December 31, 
2007, thus, affecting the correct valuation and fair presentation of the 
account in the financial statement. 

We recommend that management record all adjusting entries to bring into 
agreement the book and bank balances ancl enforce the timely preparation of 
the BRS on all depository accounts in accordance with Section 74 of PD 
1445. 

16. Book and bank balances of Cash in Bank - Local Currency, Current Account 
was not reconciled resulting in a difference of Pl4,840,517.55 and affecting 
the correct valuation and fair presentation of the account in the financial 
statement. 
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Management should ensure the reconciliation of depository accounts by a 
prompt preparation of the BRS in corppliance with Section 74 of PD 1445 
and Paragraph 2.1.2 and 4.0 of COA Circular No. 92-125-A in order to 
present fairly the account in the financial statement. 

17. Cash Advances for financial assistance to Local Government Units (LGU) 
were not liquidated as required by COA Circular No. 94-013, Memorandum 
of Agreement (MOA) between the SC and the LGUs and Section 30, of the 
Manual on the NGAS, Vol. III, resulting in the overstatement of the balance 
of the Inter -Agency Receivables, Due from LGUs in the financial 
statements and the understatement of corresponding expense accounts. 

We recommend that management require the LGUs concerned to promptly 
submit liquidation/disbursement reports approved by its City/Municipal 
Mayors and duly verified by the COA Auditor in accordance with COA 
Circular No. 94-013, MOA between the SC and the LGUs and Section 30 of 
the Manual on the NGAS, Vol. III; and, for SC to record immediately the 
liquidation in the books. 

18. The balance of Accountable Forms Inventory account as of December 31, 
2007 was overstated by P4,104,000.00 representing the cost of official 
receipts that were already issued to the collecting officers of the Lower 
. Courts but were not credited to the account. 

We recommend that management credit the Accountable Forms Inventory 
account only upon receipt of the RSMI from the OCA Property Officer for 
ORs issued to the Lower Courts and for the OCA Property Officer to submit 
the RSMI regularly as basis in recording the issuances of inventories in 
accordance with Sec. 43 of the Manual on NGAS, Vol. I. Furthermore, we 
recommend that management instruct the Property Officers to conduct a 
physical inventory annually and submit the required RPCI in accordance 
with Section 490 of GAAM, Vol. I and Aopendix 62 of NGAS, Vol. II. · 

19. The existence of the Office Supplies Inventory and Other Supplies 
Inventory accounts amounting to P2,810.00 and Pl,788,463.60, 
respectively, could not be established and no property records could be 
found to vouch the accuracy of the book balances. 

We recommend that management investigate discrepancies, reconcile the 
property and book balances and make adjustments when fully supported 
with documents. 

Cash Examination ofAccountable Officers 

20. Cash shortages of four Accountable Officers were uncovered in the total 
amount ofPl,005,588.54. 

vi 



We recommend that management direct the AOs to restitute the missing 
funds immediately; relieve them from their duties and responsibilities while 
the cases are still evaluated; and file cases against them, where appropriate. 
More importantly, cashiering functions should not be the responsibility of 
COCs. Instead, the Court should appoint regular cash officers who should 
undergo training therefore. This will enable the COCs to focus on the main 
functions of assisting the administration of Justice. 

F. Implementation of Prior Year's Recommendtitions 

Out of the seventeen (17) audit recommendations embodied in the 2006 
Annual Audit Report, three (3) were fully impiemented, eight (8) were partially 
implemented and six (6) were not implemented. 
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. . .. "3 ·SO~~~p..:.. .. --J, 

May 28, 2010 
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Suprt:~ •• c 1.J.'11: 1 ... r ·b~ .Phil 
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Datel': ----~_.:_:.NA.LJ .. .l)J1JJL 
'l'ime: .... {.:j .......... '".-·------~ 
.'~v: "--··*~¥:--....:... .... __ _ 

W~. are pleased to transmit lihe Auditor's Annual Audil Reporn':i.11 :tb~·:Supf:~U.·e· 
Court of the Philippines for calendar year 2008, in compliance with'Se6ti<)ri,:·'4.3 ·:o(' 
Presidendnl 'Decree No. 1445. · · · · ·· ·· · 

The attached report consists of the Audit Ce:nlficate; the Audited Financial 
.. Statements; the. <Jbservations and Recommendations wbJcb were discussed \.Vith 

conceroed Manag-;ment officials and ·st~ and the Status of lmp1emenration of Prior 
Year's Audit Recommendations. 

. We request a status. report on the actions taken an the audit recornmendations 
within sixty ( 60) days from receipt of this report, pursuant to Section 93 of the General 
Provisions ofth.e General Appropriations Act of2008 (RA 9498), 

We express our apprec::iation for the valuable support and cooperation extended 
by the offidals and staff of that Agency. 

Very truly yours/-~ 

~I / 

_,,..,/ ~--./ 
~.VILLAR 

./'/ Chairman (T 

~· .. 
V((• BOQfiT3~ZO XVl zo:or OTD2 OQ!TO 

I'· ... ,. ... ·····r···"r 
I '1 ':")'~fl 

·.: .. ,( 

'(.: 

'.: . ;,,,·1 .•. ,.,.:,..,:·'.r~:::.\it,·;s.~i~. 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMAJ{Y 

A. Introduction 

B. 

c. 

Article VII of the 1987 Constitution vested judicial power in one Supreme 
Court and in such lower courts as may be established by law. The Supreme Corni is 
the highest tribm1al in the country's four tiered comi system. It supervises the 
administration of all lower courts such as the Court of Appeals, Sandiganbayan, 
Court of Tax Appeals, Regional Trial Comis, Metropolitan Trial Courts, Municipal 
Trial Comis, Municipal Trial Courts in Cities, Municipal Circuit Trial Cornis, 
Shari' a Distii.ct Courts, Shari.' a Circuit Comis and the Presidential Electoral 
Tribunal. 

The judicial power includes the duty of the courts of justice to settle actual 
controversies involving rights which are legally dern.andable and enforceable, and, 
in cases prescribed by law, to determine whether or not there has been grave abuse 
of discretion amounting to lack or excess jurisdiction on the part of any branch or 
instrumentality of the government. 

Financial Highlights 

Presented below are the comparative analysis of the financial condition, and 
sources and application of funds of the Agency for the last two years: 

CY 2008 CY 2007 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) .. 
(In Philippine Peso) 

A. Financial Condition 
Assets 10,059,777,288.72 9, 175,291,469.50 884,485 ,819 .22 
Liabilities 5 ,932, 707 ,897.48 5,003,487 ,309.11 929,220,588.37 
Government Equity 4, 127,069,391.24 4, 171,804, 160.39 (44,734,769.15) 

B. Sources and Application of Funds 
Allotment 10, 139,972,000.00 9,750,254,384.87 389,717,615.13 
Obligations 9,812,048,000.00 9, 120,424,380.58 691,623,619.42 
Unexpended 

327,924,000.00 629,830,004.29 (301,906,004.29) Balance 

Scope of Audit 

The audit was focused on the Comi's accounts and financial operations for 
CY 2008. It was made to detennine the reliability and accuracy of financial reports 
and adequacy of the books of accounts, in accordance with existing accounting and 
auditing rules and regulations. The audit was made through the conduct of selective 
tests on the accounts in the financial statements and accordingly included other 
audit techniques and procedures deemed necessary under the circumstances. 
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Auditor's Report 

The Auditor rendered a qualified opinion on the fairness of presentation of 
the financial statements of the Supreme Court as of December 31, 2008 for reasons 
stated therein. 

Observations and Recommendations 

The audit reveals favorable observations as well as deficiencies which, 
together with the corresponding recommendations, are summarized as follows: 

1. The SC accomplishments were highlighteq by its landmark rulings on 
significant cases like: 

a. Alleged wiretapped conversation of President Gloria Macapagal 
Anoyo and COMELEC Commissioner Garcillano; 

b. Enforcement of Manila City Ordinance No.8027 for the removal of oil 
tenninals from Pandacan, Manila by oil companies; 

c. Alleged bribery, conuption and overpricing on the ZTE-NBN Project; 
d. Public disclosure of the full contents and offers made by both the 

Philippines and Japanese governments during the JPEPA Negotiation; 
e. Memorandum of Agreement on Ancestral Domain Aspect of the 

Government of the Republic of the Philippines and Moro Islamic 
Liberation Front; and 

f. Clean-up restoration and preservation of the water quality of Manila 
Bay. 

2. It also promulgated, among others, the rule on the Writ of Habeas Data and 
several notable administrative issuances on the following: 

a. · Fonnal establishment of Philippine Mediation Center Office and its 
Mediation Center Units; 

b. Designation of 117 environmental comis as Judiciary's concern for the 
protection and preservation of our environment; 

c. Amendments of the 2004 Rules of Notarial Practice; 
d. Issuance of 2008 Rules of Procedures on Corporate Rehabilitation. 

3. Trust receipts and other collections in the amount of P4.839 billion and interest 
earned on Fiduciary Fund (FF) deposits and forfeited/confiscated bonds totaling 
P74.643 million were not remitted to the Bureau of Treasury (BTr) as required 
under Executive Order No. 338 dated May 17, 1996, Sections 7 and 8 of the 
General Provisions of the General Appropriation Act for FY 2008 and COA­
DOF-DBM Joint Circular 1-97 dated January 2, 1997, and Section 44 of Book 
VI, E.O .. 292, series of 1987, consequently depriving the goverm11ent of the use 
thereof. 

ii 
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We reconnnend that management deposit the total amount of P4.839 billion 
and all subsequent collections for trust and other receipts and remit fidly all 
interest earned on the FF deposits and forfeited/confiscated bonds for CY 2008 
totaling P74.6 million to the BTr in confonnity with the above-mentioned laws 
and regulations to enable the government to maximize the use of the funds. 

4. The balance of the Perfom1ance/Bidders/Bail Bonds Payable account (Fiduciary 
Fund) of the Lower Courts (LC) in the amount of PS.526 billion did not agree 
with the total cash on hand, in bank and on deposit with the LGUs totaling 
P5.453 billion or a difference of P73.690 million. Moreover, Cash, Due from 
LGU and Performance/Bidders/Bail Bonds Payable accounts per General 
Ledger (GL) do not tally with the corresponding Subsidiary Ledger (SL) 
balances. 

We recommend that management require the Financial Management Office 
(FMO) to prepare the bank reconciliation statements (BRS) and the 
Municipal/Provincial Treasurers' Office (MTO/PTO) reconciliation statements. 
Reconc.ile the FF's cash and receivable accounts with the trust account and the 
SLs with the GL's controlling accounts for each FF account, and take up the 
appropriate reconciling items in the books of accounts. 

5. The year-end balances of the Cash in Bank-Local Ctmency, Current Account of 
the General Fund, Judiciary Development Fund, and Special Allowance of the 
Jlidiciary and of the Cash in Bank-Local Currency, Savings Account did not 
reconcile with the bank records, showing differences of P138.293 million and 
P449.687 million, respectively, due to continued non-preparation of BRS and 
non-recording ofreconciling items in the books. 

We recommend that management monitor and ensure the attaim11ent of the 
time-table/schedule of the preparation of the BRS on all depository accounts to 
ensure its timely submission in accordance with Section 74 qf PD 1445. 
Investigate and trace the possible Cc.uses of the discrepancies, and make 
adjustments, when necessary. Detennine and cancel stale checks that are still 
accounted as outstanding checks. Record all reconciling items in the book of 
accounts and provide the LBP with schedule of reconciling items that should be 
taken up by the bank. 

6. An examination of the cash and accounts of 658 out of 1,248 Accountable 
Officers (AOs) of the SC and the LC or 52.72% disclosed cash shortages 
totaling P539,438.47 of three A Os, and other deficiencies. 

We recommend that management require the accountable officers to 
restitute the missing funds, relieve them from their duties and responsibilities 
while the cases are still evaluated and finally, institute appropriate 
administrative and/or criminal charges against them, if evidence wanants, 
pursuant to applicable laws of the revised Penal Code and Civil Service rules 

lll 
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and regulations. In the case of the accountable officer who innnediately 
restituted the cash sho1iage, the Auditors rec01m11ended that the Court take 
appropriate action as warranted in the circumstances taldng into consideration 
the explanation required from the COC on why the shortage occurred. 

7. The balance of Cash-Collecting Officers account per subsidiary ledger did not 
agree with the cashbook balance, showing a difference of P33.909 million, due 
to the failure of management to conduct a periodic reconciliation of both 
records. 

We recommend that 1nanagement ensure and enforce the reconciliation of 
both the accounting and the collecting officers' records on a quaiierly basis and 
to make appropriate adjustments both in the books and in the Collecting 
Officers books/cashbooks if necess:ffy in order to present the c01Tect balai1ce of 
the account. 

8. Out of the balance of the Due from Officers and Employees of P26.699 million, 
the amount of P4.402 million represents cash advances for travel and special 
purpose which remained unliquidated as of year-end in violation of Section 16 
of E.O. No. 248 dated May 29,1995 and Sections 3.1.2.l and 3.2.2.1 of COA 
Circular No. 96-004 dated April 19, 1996. 

We recommend that management direct the officials and employees 
concerned to liquidate their outstanding cash advances immediately, otherwise, 
suspension of the payment of their salaries will be effected until they comply 
with the directive. Require resigned employees to settle their cash advances 
immediately, otherwise appropriate legal action should be instituted against 
them to recover unliquidated advances. 

9. The balance of the Due from LGUs account was misstated by P967,719.14 
representing unrecorded liquidation reports totalirig p759,883.93 and 
U.1irecorded disallowance of P207 ,835 .21. Moreover, fund utilization and 
liquidation reports were not submitted by the LGUs as required under Section 
30 of the Manual on the NGAs, Volume III, COA Circular No. 94-013 and 
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between the SC and the heads of LGUs. 

We reconnnend that management enforce the immediate submission of the 
long overdue liquidation/disbursement reports by LGUs which are approved and 
verified by the City/Municipal Mayor and the COA Auditor, respectively. 
Moreover, record the liquidation/disbursement reports submitted by the 
Municipalities of Guagua, Pampanga and J asaan, Claveria and the COA 
disallowance on the liquidation report of the Municipality of Buguias in 
accordance with Section 53 of the Manual of the NGAS, Volume I in order to 
present the true balance of the account in the financial statement. 

10. The existence ai1d valuation of the Inventory account balances of P333.416 
(iC' million could not be established due to management's failure to record all 

iv 
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· • t purchases and issuances during the year, maintain perpetual inventory records 
and conduct a physical count of inventories as required under Section 490 of the 
Government Accounting and Auditing Manual (GAAM), Vol. I. 

We recommend that management require the Accounting and Property 
Divisions to combine their efforts to undertake the physical inventory at least 
every six months of each year and to submit the Report on the Physical Count of 
Inventories (RPCI) immediately after; book up all procurement of inventory 
purchased, including accountable forms, drugs and medicine and constrnction 
inventory to the appropriate asset accounts except those that were procured out 
of the Petty Cash Fund; submit regularly the Repo1i of Supplies and Materials 
Issued (RSMI) to support JEV preparation to record issuances; conduct periodic 
reconciliation of the property and accounting records to detect errors in 
recording and losses through theft or pilferages; and require the Accounting 
Division to maintain updated perpetual inventory records to asce1iain the 
correctness of inventory balance at any given time. 

11. The balance of Accountable Forms Inventory account as of December 31, 2008 
was overstated by P5.532 million and the Accountable Fonns expenses account 
was understated by the same amount due to non-recording of accountable fom1s 
issued during the year as well as recording of official receipts issued in CY 
2009, thus affecting the fair presentation of the account in the financial 
statement. 

We recommend that management require the Office of the Court 
Administrator (OCA) Prope1iy Officer and the Chief, Check Disbursement 
Division to submit the RSMI and the Accounting Division to record all 
inventories issued in the books of accounts as· prescribed under Section 43 of the 
Manual of the New Government Accounting System (NGAS), Vol. 1 and Sec. 
62 of the Manual of the NGAS, Vol. II to present the true balance of the account 
and its conesponding expense account in the financial statements. 

12. A difference in the amount of P945.075 million between the accounting 
records and physical count of the Prope1iy, Plant and Equipment (PPE) accounts 
(excluding Land, Land Improvements, Other Office Buildings and Other 
Structures) has remained uncorrected ~·esulting from non-reconciliation of the 
two records and non-updating of the PPB Ledger and Property Cards. 

We recommend that the Property and/or Accounting Divisions trace and 
investigate the causes of the discrepancy and make appropriate adjustments in 
either record; and renew the Aclmowledgement Receipt for Equipment (ARE) 
every three years. 

13. Unserviceable properties totaling to P21.874 million were not reclassified to 
Other Assets account as required under Section 4 (p) of the Manual on NGAS, 
Vol. I, thus, overstating the PPB account and understating the Other Assets 
account as of the year-end. 

v 
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· We recommend that the Property Division prepare and submit periodically 
the Inventory and Inspection Report of Unserviceable Property for assets 
awaiting final disposition and no longer used/serviceable assets to the 
Accounting Division for proper reclassification to Other Assets account and 
dropping from the books of accounts 

14. The Due to GSIS, PAG-IBIG and Other GOCCs had negative balances totaling 
P(77, 716,251.49) as of December 31, 2008, thus affecting the accuracy and 
reliability of the accounts in the financial statements. 

We recommend that management resume the reconciliation of records with 
the GSIS and when the cause/s for the negative balance is/are determined, 
correct the records and demand refund/recovery from the GSIS (if any) and 
from the concerned personnel for their accountabilities. Record the amount due 
from the employees concerned to present the conect balai1ce of the account Due 
to GSIS account. Exert effort to reconstruct the beginning balance of the Due to 
PAG-IBIG account. Fast track the reconciliation of the liability set-up/deducted 
from the salaries and the remittances made to Home Development Mutual Fund 
(HDMF) and effect adjustments/corrections, if any, to show the c01Tect balance 
of Due to PAG-IBIG account. Further, we recommend that management 
continue the verification process in order to recover the overpayment made and 
to present the correct balance of the Due to Other GOCCs account in the 
financial statement 

15. The Court incurred an overpayment of expense allowance for lecturers, resoill'ce 
persons, coordinators and facilitators who are incumbent Court officials and 
employees in the total amount of P378,659.38 for the year 2008 due to the non­
implementation of the provisions of DBM Budget Circular No. 2007-1 dated 
April 23, 2007. 

We reconunend that management require all concerned officials and 
employees to refund the overpayment of expense allowances and to pay the 
corresponding taxes and we further recommend that management should adhere 
strictly to the provisions of DBM Budget Circular No. 2007 - 1 dated April 23, 
2007. 

16. Management failed to furnish the COA copies of contracts for infrastructure 
projects totaling P38.119 million within the prescribed period as required in 
COA Circular Nos. 76-034 dated July 15, 1976 and 96-0101 dated August 15, 
1996. 

We recommend that management i1m11ediately submit the required 
documents for the infrastructure contracts and for subsequent contracts, 
management should submit them with the supporting documents to the COA 
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within 5 days from date of perfection in compliance with COA Circular Nos. 
76-34 and 87-278. 

17. The government paid a commitment fee amounting to 411,509,043.62 for the 
unwithdrawn principal amount of the International Bank for Reconstruction and 
Development (IBRD) Loan No. 7191-PH for the Judicial Refom1 Support 
Project (JRSP) due to low utilization rate of the loan. 

We recommend that management fully implement the refom1s and measures 
instituted by the Cami to fast-track the procurement of works, goods and 
services and finally, to stop the incmTence of co1runitment fees. 

18. Interest income and gains on foreign exchange amounting to P15,506.39 and 
P295,882.25 respectively, on deposit accounts funded by the SC-Instih1tional 
Development Fund (SC-IDF) Grant were not recorded in the books resulting to 
the understatement of Cash in Bank account balance and the related income 
accounts as of the year-end. 

We reconunend that interest income be recorded in the books immediately 
after it is reflected in the bank statement or passbook and gains or loss on 
foreign exchange should be recognized in the books at the end of each year. 

19. Cash advances of P349,800.00 under the accountability of Judge Priscilla 
Agana remained unliquidated for more than 3 years since her retirement from 
the service contrary to Section 89 of P.D. 1445 and COA Circular No. 97-002 
dated February 10, 1997. 

We reconunend that management require Judge Agana to return/settle the 
balance of cash advance inm1ediately in accordance with Section 89 of P.D. 
1445 and COA Circular No. 97-002, otherwise all retirement benefits due her 
will be applied to her outstanding obligations. We further reconm1end the 
account reclassification of the outstanding cash advance from Cash-Disbursing 
Officer to Advances to Officers and Employees. 

The observation and reconunendations contained in the report were discussed 
with the concerned officials of the agency. Management's views and reactions 
were considered in the report, where appropriate. 

Implementation of Prior Year's Recommendation 

Out of the eighteen ( 18) audit reconm1endations embodied in the 2007 Ammal 
Audit report, one was fully implemented, ten were partially implemented and seven 
were not implemented, thus reiterated in this report. 
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR 

Supreme Court of the Philippines 
Taft Avenue, Manila 

SUPREME COURT OF THE PHILIPPINES 
Judicial Reform Support Project 

WB Loan No. 7191- PH 

· AUDITOR'S OPINION ON SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Honorable Chief Justice 
Supreme Court of the Philippines 
Manila 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of the World Bank Loan for the 
Judicial Reform Support Project as of December 31, 2004 and the related statement of 
income and expenses, statement of cash flows, sununary of sources and uses of funds, 
statement of special account, statement of grant withdrawals under special account and 
the statement of expenditures for the year then ended. These statements are the 
responsibility of the Auditee's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the accompanying statements based on our audit. · 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the special· purpose financial statements are free of material misstatements. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the special purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as 
evaluating the overall statement presentation. We believe our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. · 

The Auditee's policy is to prepare the accompanying statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting standards and the requirements of the Loan Agreement 
executed on October 2, 2003. · 

In our opinion, the special purpose financial statements identified in the first paragraph 
present fairly, in all materials respects, the cash balances of the World Bank Loan for the 
Judicial Reform Support Project as of December 31, 2004 and of the funds received and 
disbursed during the period from January 1 to December 31, 2004, and present fairly, in 
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... . .. ~n .. ~atY.~i.al r~.spects, the balance. o( .~£~hS~~cial Account as of Decem?er 31, 2004 in 
: ~··.o:: l(OnfornutY with generally accepted accpµntmg standards. The loan withdrawals were 

··· · also adequately reconciled to the Statement~ of Expenditures (SOE) prepared by the 
Auditee's management during the period under review and the SOE were adequately 
supported. The SOE was also verified to be eligible under the loan agreement. 

. ,, ... This report is intended for the information of the Auditee and the World Bank. 

d) f. \· ~ 
CECILIA E. CAGA-ANAN 
Supervising Audito~ 
June 20, 2005 · 

~----·--·--·-.;,_ _____ , ____ ..... --.. ~····..-··--·"-·--·· ... ----__;1·1 
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By: _____________ , ... 21~~~---. .' .......... . 

\ 
STATEMENT OF.MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY 
.. · '!.:::"' FORFINANCIALSTATZMENTS . 

/."he mdnagement of Supreme Court of the Philippines .is responsible..for all 
information and representations contained in the accompanying Balance 
Sheet as of December 31, 2004 and the related Statement of Income and 
Expenses and Cash Flow for ·the year then ended for the Judicial R·eform 

.. 

1

. Support Prolect-World Bank Loari No. 7191. Th. e financ. ial statements have 
been prepared in conformity with generally accept<?d state. accounting 
principles and reflect amounts that are based on the· best estimates and 

· . informed judgment of management with an appropriate consideration to 
materiality. · 

., 

. rJn this regard, management maintains a system ·of accounting and 
\,__.reporting which prov.ides for the neces~ary internal controls to ensur(3 th.at .·· .... 
. ·. transactions . are properly aumorized ···ana····re·cofdea;-'-Ci"sseE __ ,...ar·e-'·-·~ 
t'-~afeguarded against unauthorized use or disposition and liabilities are 

I" . ecogriized. 

., . Chief, Fiscal 

RECOMM~NDIN: APPR~V AL;~/' 

Luf!d~o~- · 
Clerk of Court 

APPROVED: 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

World Bank- ~udicial Refarrl-(s'i.1pport Project 
.Loan No. 7191-PH and GOP Counterpart Furi,ds 

i.· GENERAL 

Note 1 : Basis of Reporting . 

Background . · · 

A. .Oescrlptlon of Project . . 

' 
~ .. 

·The objective pf the Project Is .to assist the Supreme Court in developing a more 
effective .and ·accessible Judiciary that would foster public trust and confidence, 
through the implementation of Its Action Program for Judicial Reform (AP JR). 

. . . . . . . 

The projec~ consists of the following components; . . . . . . 
.. . .. . . . . ,. . •, . 

Component A: Improving Case Adjudication and Access to Justice · 
' . . . . ,. .... . ...... . 

This. component 1.s ·intended to Improve court efficiency through modern case 
management techniques, planning and tools. It also alms to formulate alternative 
mechanisms and to test mobile courts to address affordability constraints and to 
improve access to justice by the poor and disadvantaged. . . · l . .... -· . 

. ' : . ~~.:..1: ......... ""~~ • .;,:.:..r;..1•-------.. : 

· · C'ompone'nt B: Enhancing lnstit~t~l lnt~grity. ··1 

:This component is intended to result In the judiciary adopting a comprehensive 
and synchronized approach to strengthening ~the Integrity infrastructure of the judicial 

·system. This approach involves gender-9ensi.Uv13 institutional and procedural reforms, 
· civil $Ociety education . and Information, .and private sector and inter-agency 
collaboratiori. · ·· 

. . 
Component C: Strengthening the Institutional Capacity of the Judiciary . ' f -

This component would strengthen the-institutional capacity of the Supreme Court 
to manage the whole Judiciary by setting up a decentralized operational structure .and 
making the investments necessary lG upgrade the management and technology 
systems and physical facilities that are essential to the Judiciary's ability to carry out 

·•-·,Its services. 

Component . D: Support· for the Reform of the Judicial System and Program 
Management Office · 

This component will assist in developing support for the reform process, ensure 
that judges and other stakeholders are able to participate In the development of 
modernization Ideas and Implement key reform activities. It will also provide 
assistance to the Program Management Office in facilitating and coordinating the 
implementation of the APJR and the PrniAr.t 

·---- -------·-··-

--- .. - .. ---------------·------~·------· --
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B. Project Life and Closing Date 

The project will run for six years, with lo~~: effectlvity on 04 December 2003 and 
. , , .. ""'closing date. on 31December2009. 

·Note 2 ·: :;ilgnificant Accounting Policies 

. · ;;Vllithdra\\la~Af ~oan Proceeds · 
. ~ ._'; .. .... ,. 

The amount of the Working Funq .(L,oan: Proceeds) is being credited .lo the 
· . .Foreign Currency·Savlngs Account opened by the Court in its books in the name of the 

Recipient (SC-JRSP World·· Bank Loan), and withdrawn therefrom by th13 Recipient in 
accordance with the provision;; of Schedule 1 of the Loan Agreement, for expenditures 

· ·.in· respect o.f the .reasonable .cost of :services ;required for the Activities a·nd to be 
financed out of the proceeds ofthe Loan. · · 

·.• Transactions in foreign currencies were recorded in Philippine Peso based on the 
.. BSP rate of exchange prevalllng at the date of transaction. At the end of the year, these 
were revalued using ttie ,rate ofexchange at .Balance Sheet date. Foreign currency 
. denominated monetary .assets ;:md. lla~iliti~s at. balance sheet date were res.lated based 
on BSP exchC1nge rate on that date. · · · · · · · · 

BALANCE SHEET . 

..... ·.,~~ 

' 
---~---:..~:..:-'.·~.:.~·~·~:;;;:.::::;::i....-,:.,,·;:;.~:...; 

i .. ;~ ····· · .... 
·Note 3 Cash an.d Other Cash Accounts ·, 

Cash accounts as of December 31, 2004 broken down as follows: 
• . • : ' • . 1.., ~; ;·1':· _-:,., :::1~ :, ·. 

·Foreign currency savings Account 
US$98,752.37 @ 55.793 PHP 5,509,690.98 

Peso Current Account (Net of outstanding check 
amounting to PHPB,592,995.74) 29,456.BB 

Note4 Property, Plant ancl Equipment 

j 
:;... 
j PHP 5,539,147.86 

----------------------------
···::-·.:'.·"; .. 

IT Equipment and Software amounting to P3,842,372.23 were broken down as 
follows: (a) dtsearch Engine License and Software for the E-library Project 
P566,093.47, and (b) Various IT and Information Communication· Technology (ICT) 
Equipments In the amount of P3,276,278.76 (P0#04-10-001653 - Advance Solutiqns, 
Inc.). 

Motor Vehicle refers to one (1} mobile court bus purchased for the Justice on 
Wheels Project in the amount of P5,923,000.00 (P0#04-11-001757 - PILHINO Sales 
Corp.} Other Machineries and Equipments refers to various appliances/equipments for 
mobile court bus. '(P0#04-11-001786-Ambassador Appliances, Inc.). 

-----~----------·· 

---------·-·---··-
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. , N,ote 5 ; Current Liabilities 

1
...., r.­
' \) 

· •··· Accounts Payable of P34,755.00 represents net amount payable to Ambassador 
Appliances, lncAor M~chineries and Equipments purchased for the mobile court bus less 
the corresponding taxes withheld. · 

· · Due to BIR· of P457,013.09 represents taxes withhel.d from suppliers for 
r§rplttance. tq the Bureau ofTreasury using GOP Counterpart funds, while the Due to 

··· - .. "bther Funds .of P30,000.00 .represents the required maintaining balance of the Peso 
· · Current Account disbursed from the .r=iscal Autonomy Fund. This amount· will be 

transferred back to the later C\~t;:pµnt .upon completion of the project. 

111.· . STJ\TEMEN.TP!= lt-lCOME AND EXPENSES·· 

,... ... 

Note 6 : ·Subsidy Income from National Government. 

· .For this year; total NCA received from the Department of Budget and 
Management for operational requirements .amounted to P49,946;718.96 broken down as 
tallows: ·· · · 

Working Fund {Loan Proceeds) P 37,833,230.27 
GOP Counterpart Funds* 12,040,715.00 
GOP Counterpart Funds (TRA) · 72,773.69~""'··~··=· 

'• ·~-~- .... , ............. ··-· .· ·, ·. :···.·:··,··.~'!fl'!'.'·,,,..,~···~"" ·'·~-~~:::.~-~--.. 

· ·Total · P 49,946,718.96 

-------------------------
*Out of the NCA released for ·GOP 'counterpart Funds, the total amount 

. disbur$!:lc:l.ampuntsJo.P6,286,007.43, resulting to Unused NCA of P5,754,707.57. 

Note 5 : Income and Expenses L . . . I 

Income and expenses recorded in the books of accounts amounted to 
P44,242,916.19·( Net Subsidy Income from the National Government plus Net Interest 
Income earned) and P29,423,754.19 (total ()P~raU.ng expenses)-:respectively:· 

- - .... 
···--·-··-----···---·----. ______ ...:_.---------------·---·--·----

~~ .... --.. -· .. --... ----·--·-----------··--·-
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·Supreme Court of the Philippines, 
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TaftAvel1ue1 Manila 
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SUPREME COURT OF THE PHlLJPPINES 
Judicial Reform Support Project 

WB Loan No. 7191-PH :· -;', 

:/-
... ~Ir 

/ 

· . AUDITOR'S OPINION ON SPECIAL PU:RPOSE STATEMENTS 

The Honorable Chief Justice 
Supreme Court of the Philippines 
Manila 

We have audited the a~companying Balance Sheet of the Judicial Reform Suppqrt Project 
. as of December 31, 2005 and the related Statement of Sources ruicl Uses or'Funds for the 
. year then ended. These financial statements· are :the te~ponsibility of the Auditee's 

management. Our responsibility is to express an. opinion thereon based on our audit. · 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the generally accepted auditing standards. 
These standards require that we plan and p~r.fc:>r.m.,:tQ~,~\H1it1<1...QRt~iru.:t(J!-'AQ!1i!Dli;:....ass.urance 
'aboutwhetfief'ihe :tfuaiidal statements ai(r'fr~e of.tmaterfal ffiisstatements. An audit 
includes examining, on_ a test ba·sis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 

.. ' and significant estimates made by management as well ·as evaluating the overall 
.. stateme~t presentation. We believe our audit provides a-reasonable basis for our opinion. 

. . . . . . . In our opinion, th~ financial statements referred to above present fairly the financial 
· · condition of the project as of December 31, 2005 and the results of .its operations and 

I ··' 
,expenditure.s for.the year then ended includingi·the Special Account as of December 31, 
2005 in accordance with generally ~ccepted ac~ounting principles in the Philippines and, 
that the Statement of Expenditures submitted during such fiscal year, together with the 
procedures and internal controls involved in their preparation, can b_e relied upon to 
support the related withdrawals. · · · · · · 

~-
CECil..IA E. CAGA-ANAN 
Supervising Auditor 
June 28, 2006 f 
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I. GENERAL 

Note 1 : Basis of Reporting ..... ,·i' .. ···•··· 

-~ ••...•.. ·•.•• , .. · ...... ;.:.~'· :-t•-~- ...... , ..... 

: .. J:Jackgr94ric:L .. ·. 

. A. ".Description of Project 
:· . .. ·. . . . . ·• 

....... . --

The objective of the_ Project ls to assist the Sup.reme,Court In .d.ev(:llqping a more 
.... :··( .;.. effective:"ancl · accessibl"e Judiciary_· that woulq · t()_~tef;~ilbllc trust and .confidence, 
.. · · ·through 'tfie"irppleriiehtation.·orns Aption Progr~rri tofJudicial Reform (APJR). · •... • . .;· ....... ; ... :. .... •.'. · ..... ···:· '.. . .. ,,:, .•.' " ,: ·. ·, .. 

' . JJ1,e .. proje¢t conpis~s of thefollowing components:'· . 
·. . .. . ................ · :•·:···· : ... · ...... . .·, ' 

.:component _A.:lmpro\lin'g Cas~Adjudication andAccess to Justice 

· ·.· . : · _·· This c:orriporient ·.Js .l!"iten(f,ed ;.to )111prove .~6~k .~fficiency through moclern. case 
.· 'rnanagement)echnlqties, .. plannl11g ancl. _tools._··1t. als_o aims. to .fprmulate alternative 

, mechanisms an_q to Jest mob.ile. 9ourts Jo. aMress ,.affordability .constraints and to 
· .. :.- ..• ···· impre>ve~access Jqju~tiCe: by the poor and disadvantaged. · · 

'· .. _,.'• .'_ .... _ .. _,._,. .. , "', ... ·' ... ·_ . ., ...... _.. .. . 

.. ·Component B: Enhancing Institutional Integrity ·-~·. 

... . :... . ... ·.· . " : . . . 

This component is intended.to res~lt in .the judici~ry adopting a comprehensive 
_and synchronized .approach to strengthening the integrity Infrastructure of the judicial 
system. Jhis approach involves gender-sensitive institutional and procedural reforms, 
Civil ..• society ·. •education . and . i_rlfl?rr:nfil!Qn......a.a.~.v.ate . ...sector.M.and•-~inte}-agency 

•. ···'" .. ,. collaboratioii'.'"''t:nnn~~··. . ... · . ' . . . . . . . . 

.·:.···.\;'. 

·• 

Component C: Strengthening the Institutional Capacity of the Judiciary 
::., -~ ': )•;,;.\:J.~ .~. 

This component would stre~gthen the .lnstiMional capacity of the Supreme Court 
to manage the whole Judiciary by settlnti up a decentralized operational structure and 

· making the investments necessary to upgrade the management and technology 
systems and physical facilities that are essential to the Judiclary's ability to carry out 
its services. · · · ~-

~ - t 
Component D: ·Support for the Reform of the Judicial System and Program 
Management Office 

. This component will assist in developing support for the reform pro~ess, ensure 
that judges and other stakeholders are able to participate in the development of 
modernization Ideas and implement key reform activities. It will also provide 
assistance to the Program Management Office in facilitating and coordinating the 
Implementation of the APJR and the Project. 

~~·\ ~·~·.,.:;ol"r,-.,J'f'\7. ·-:;, -: ... ~.:~. 't°;f/•r ... ~L>;\r.,1;;-.,.,..-:-0 .~ i··:r·~-· •·· ~f.·'.·~r.J'l·;-:.~·~':f.""O'ma:i:n·~•":r.·""' •"'f-.-~.,·:.i"'"" •• ......... , "r'.....,.."'-~· _.........-.--~-.. -· ·-- • ··-·- ----·- - -· 

;~~"~::1 :.'.;~·:: .,,;,•~.:.::.~.~ ~~:~··:.:·":~.~,'.,',),l' ... 1:·•.1 ':.• ··~··u••,'"·'".\V'""'",•::'""'•\l"•:•""nT,"','fl'"1£0;:"'.,,lll"l•l1''''1\.'"• '"'"" '''"' "'I"' ' '• -.,·,.•·-•-""·'•..,....,..,._..,.. .. ...,.._._ .. _.,.. •. ''"• ••'• .._... ---------· 
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8. Project Life an.d C.loslng Date. 

... :.: .. · .... :·..... ·'·"' 

. ··,. ·'-' ,JhJ;'l_prpject will run for six years, with loan.effectivityon 04 December 2003 and 
closing date on 31 December 2009 . 

. ·,:· .... ·· ···:"·':"·'·•'•"'","'···· 

·· ·Note 2 : "Significant Accounting P.olicies 
• .. •:·: ... _,, ~ ·~!'" ·,::-,·,~:/~t;·:(~:'. .. ~~ ;: ' .. "' ~ .. : . 

:. :~ i, • ' ... 
. · - Withdrawal of.Loan proceeds .. 

•. .,:,,.,·:r··' ._.,,c: .• : ... J.b,~·}l~g,unt· Qf,,~o~:,working Fund ·.(Loan Pr~ceeds) is being>·cre~ited to··the 
· --'··":''. ·;,,i:'or~1gn,.GJJr.r~ncy SavJpg9 .Account opener:f by the Court In its books· in the·name ·of the 
·" · · · · •. :'Redpient (SC~JRSP World 1;3ank Loan), and withdrawn 'therefrom by the· Recipient in 

. accordance with .tt1e provisions pf:S<;:hedule .. t.of the .Loan Agreement, for expenditures 
in °respect. of the Teasonable cosfof services required for the Activities and to be 
financed out ofthe proceeds of the loan.·. · . . .. ' . . . . '' . -

. . .. . .. .. . . . Trans~ctlons'.in foreig~ curren~ies ~ere recorded ht Philippine Peso based on the 
BSP,rate o(e~cbange pr:evalling at 1the da.te. of transaction. Afthe end of the year, these 

. were revalu~d . using the rate· of .exchange· at·· Balance Sheet date. Foreign currency 
...... denominated monetary assets and liabillties.c;it balance sheet date were restated based 

on BSP exchange rate on that date. , · 
: . . ' . . •' ~ ' .. · ... . ,' . ' 

', .. 

'" 

, .... ,< .. 

I 
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Note 3 .: .Cash and Other. Cash Accounts 

.·::; .. : ..... .Jnclud~c;:! in the .Cash :13ccounfa as ·of beceml;>e.r 31, 2005. ar:e the following 
. . , . d·~pO-sits::~:' ;r~:.;'.·:<i.('" , · ., o:· · ·· · · • · ·· •;.: · ··· · · · 

·: . . . ... ,. · . 

. . Foreign Currency Savings Account 
.. '""' ., .......... y,§.~?;3,?..~W9.o5 .@t12.eea •· 

... <• ,. Peso-current Account · ·· 
.• ..... ;:·<·.~_:;.:,,\ . . ,• 

Sub t 0 fo1 . . 
-:·;.:.:;r~·;:.:,~~ .. .-· .. ~·-;-·:"1~..,,l~·~"!i;:·.1,: .. ~.·.··: : · ·:.·-~· ··· ··." 

· · · · .· Less: Outs_tanding .check 

. . , ·. i·/ Lf;:.' :~i.t:;·,J 0,te.t.-~~·.pJ'.\;t:;J!l<f • 
... :.:d·:;~;,/< .. ·.: 

. . . . . . . ' 

Note 4. : Property, f>J~nta1Jq,l;quipment. _.·· 
.. : .. ~ ....... : .•. : .~ ... , .... , : · .• · .. · , ........ · ··: ··~ - _,. - ! ·:·:::.· ... -· .•... . . .. . ' 

PHP12,229,459:57 
•. ··> 1,800,091.40 

· · .·. PHP14,029,550.97 · 
. -- 6,908, 168.86 

. · .. :::';'·'.'?:·~~~~~:~~~:21~~ll~ . 
. •,·'•" 

·.~ \ . 'r.; , .•. 

·\.:-~·\:.--;·· 

; IT Equipment and sonware (P21 ;141,761.SQ) consisted of 2004 purchase of 
dtsear:ch Engine License and :software Ao( use in the E-Ubrary '(P566,b93.47) and 

. .. . .,,JnformationJechriolqgy:Eqµlpments {P3,276,278. 76f'distfiouted to 9ifferent SC offices. 
· Additional ;.purchase oflnforrnatiori.T.e~hnology Equipments for the year 2005 amo.unted 

to PV.?~9 .. 3~~.£$7,, · .: :: .. · : . · ., , . . . · ... ..... . 

·• .. P.urch~s~ of .office ·Equipments and .othe~ Machineries. and Equipment for the 
year a_mounted toP1;18f3,277,00. · · · · · ·.·. · · ·· · · · 

.. : .:,Motl:>r.Vehicl~~ co·n~istedof bne (1) mobile court bus for the Justice on Wh~els 
Projectpurchased in' 2004 .. · · · ·· · · 

. ' . , . ; ·.·. · ... ·• .•.... ···· ... · ... ·· . . . ··.· ·. ; ; I .· . 

'· ·.· .· . Depreciation, .1,.1sing the straight line method, Is computed based on a five year 
usef~I :1.ife.~ncj -a -ten ·per~nt (1 O~).salvage~1ae~·~o: .. ··_--..... ~--·-~·"'"~-~,_r,~..,.="··~='· 

Note 5 : >Gurrent Llabiliti~s . 

Due to· BIR (P679,230.93) represents. taxes'··\Vithheld from suppliers for 
remittance to the-Bureau:of Treasury using GOP Counterpart funds, while the Due to· 
Other Funds (P30,000.00) ·account represents the maintaining palance of the Peso 
Current. Account disbursed from .the Fiscal· _Autonomy Fund. This amount will be 
transferred back to the . later account upon .. completion of the project. Other payables 
(PSO.OD)ls an·understatement of check paid to TCGI Engineers(lnc.1 the amount will be 
settled On the next payment of bills from the contractor. .. . . 

. . t ' . . . 
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Auditor's Opinion on Financial Statements 

The Honorable Chief Justice 
Supreme Court of the Philippines 
Manila 
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We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet of the World Bank Loan for 
the Judicial Reform Support Project as of December ·31, 2006 and the related Statement 
of Income and Expenses and Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds for the year then 
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Judicial Reform. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion there,on 'based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordd~;wi~·;·;~~~a1i;::cep;~~:~~~~:;:~:Udards. 
These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall 
statement presentation. We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As discussed in our Audit Observation Memorandum, several supporting 
documents for infrastructure and consulting services contracts in the total amount of 
P.286,819,123.08 were not submitted to us. Thus, we were not able to conduct a technical 
evaluation of . the contracts and also, the inspection and validation of progress 
accomplishments of the projects. 

In our opinion, except for the effects on the financial statements of the matter 
referred to in the preceding paragraph, the financial st.atements referred to above, present 
fairly the financial condition of the project as of December 31, 2006 and the results of its 

. operations and_expenditures for the y~ar then ended including the Special Account as of 
December 31, 2006 in accordance. with generally accepted accounting principles in the 

~~ 
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Philippines aiid, that the Statement of Expenditures submitted during such fiscal year, 
.· ... togethe,r;,Wit}.).,Jlie ... pfpcc;:d.:Ures .and 'inte:tn~l ''c6htrols involved in their .preparation;. can be 

•• - <· •• .'• ,.,-1, ....... ········" {•.,, (.1... ....... . .. . "' . 

: reiied upori to suppo1;t the related withdrawals. ' ' 

··, -:-:1· .. ; . ._.::·. 

,.,.. 

September 28, 2007 

'-!', 

... : .. ' '• . ··~ •, .. '.; .. ;. ,•:::~:· 

Q f. I'·\ . 
CECILIA E. CAGA-ANAN 

Supervising Auditor 
:·,.:.· ,"." 

.: .. :" 
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"I. GENERAL 

~upreme ~ourt ot tije i)ijilippincil · 
Judicial Reform Support Project (JRSP) 

Loan Nl;lmber7191-PH 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of December 31, 2006 

. · .. · \: .. ·•!·~: .. 

Note 1:. Basis of Reporting 
. . 

. ': "· '' . ~ . . 

.... ' ... •, .,,; ,,. .......... ··.1~1~· .. .. A. .. p~-~criptipn.otf.lrojec,:L . . 

. , ..... _._>::··t~·~-o~i~~ti~~'·c;fthe. p~oj~ct'.is t~·assistthe Supreme c~tirt ih develo~ing a mor~ 
effective .and accessible Judicia!"Y that' would.foster public trust and confidence, through 
the il'l'lplementation.of its Action .Program ~or Juc:liciarR~forin(APJR)~ . · · 

·,' '• ••• .... • •• • • •• •• •' •• •, J • • ••,' •••• • • 

The· project consists bt theJolloifving c6mpon~nts: < .· ·· · · 

. ', '.,.::~:.~ .. : ... ·:.::··. <·'· .. ·.".·'.:> .... ·:. · .. ,:; ... ! .. :·::. __ : ::;·..-··:'. .. ~:: .... <·::~·:-..-.. ·.·:: ....... ·:~: · .. ··.~:> ... : .. :: .. ~ . ..-.·:··~:· ... ,'.·-:.·: .... ·~~·:~·~ ...... 
· ·· · Cci'foponent A: Improving Case Adjudication and Access to Justice 

202 

··This component .is·. intended to ·improve· court effi~ie~cy .Jhrough modern case 
managem~nt :techniques, planning .and tools. It also ai.ms to. formulate .alternative . 
me.chariisms .and to; test mobile . courts to address affordability constraints and to·· · 
improve i:iccess to justice by the poor and disadvantaged. · 

.. ·. ·... . . . . . . . 

Component B: Enhancing Institutional lnteqritv 

This co~ponent is intended to result in the jw:liciaryadopting a comprehensive and 
synchronize~ a.pproach t9 ;strengthening. the ·integrity infra::;tructure of .·the Judicial 

!"''~-~--,•~·;'·'······· .~, .... ,:._ .... ,.~~~e~b~~t'·;i~~~:~~~r1v~~~e~·i~~i~if ~6n7-~~~~:!~!~na~~~;t'~;~d~.~~r:-;~~~:Y 
· collaboration. .. ·. · .. ·· · · 

. Component C: Strengthening the ln~titutional Capacitv of the Judiciarv 

This component would strengthen the institutional capacity of the Supreme Court to 
manage t~e whole Judiciary by s~tting up a pecentralized operational structure and . 
making the investments necessary to upgrade thf} management and technology 

. syst~ms a.n9 .. phy~ical faci(ities .trat are ~ssenti~!.to the Judiciary'~ (3.bl. ility ~o carry out its 
serv1,es. •. . . . · · 

I , . .. . . . : ·., . ·. 

Component D: Support for the Reform of the Judicial Svstem and Program Management 
Office 

· This compone'nt will a!;;sist in developing support for the reform process, ensure 
that judges and other stakeholders . are· .able to participate ·in· the· development of 
modernization ideas and implement key reform activities. It will also provide a$sistance 
to the Program Management Office in facilitating and coordinating th~ implementation of · 
the APJR and the Project. · · · 

1 
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·:.:-

B. Project Life and Closing Date 

· •.. JD.~.P.~oj~r;t isJ:~ejn,g implemented for six(6) years, with loan effectivity date on 04 
becernbel2003· arid closing date on 31 December 2009 . · ·. · 

Note 2 : Significant Accountin_g .Policies . .· 
··,· ·. ,.·.r::•····:'.:· .. , .. 

..· ... ~: .· ... :....., ... 

Withdrawal of Loan Proceeds 
f ' ' . ~ : . . • . . " 

The amount of Working Fund (Loan ,Proceeds) is being' credited to the Foreign Currency 
Savings Account opened by the Court in its books .in the name of the. Recipie.nt{SC:-J.RSP .. 
world Bank·Loan)"; and withdrawn. therefrom· by the Recipient in accordance With .the provisions. 
of Schedule :t~oflhei'Loanfigreernent, for expenditures in respect of the reasonable cost of 
services required for activities and to be financed out of the proceeds of the Loan . 

. , . :~ .. ~.;. " " .... :·. .. . .... . ,' .. : . . ·. •'' : ~ ·~ ... :. 

Transa9tio11s in foreign currencies .were recorded i~ Philippine Peso based on the BSP 
rate of exchange prevailing a.UheJransaction ... AUhe',end of the year,. these were revalued 
using the rate exchange at the BalanceSheetdate. Foreign currency denominated monetary 
assetsand.liab.i!itie~ at the Balance Sheetdat1:1 were restated based on··ssP exchange rate on 
that date · · ·· ·· ·· · · 

. ,·,,..··.-·· . ,· 

11 BALANCE .. SHEET .- . ~ 

Note 3 : .... C~sh 

a. Account 111 

1 
'The ~mount of P.559,900.00 ~s Cash - Disbursing Officer are balances ?f . 

· .. i CCI~~.· ad':'aric~s · of. Ms. Ara..c;E!ll:.,'2.?!.Y1I99. .. : •. ""'a1LQf""Doec.embeL.3.}~20.0.6-QMh1s ·"'""""--===== · ...... ·~''f ifrhounfP2f1,408.00 has been liquid~ted under'. CDJ 2007-03. in the amount · 
·· of P147,018.91 and a refund of P64,381.09 under Official Recfilipt No. 421297 
• dated December 27 .2006. · · 

: .. f'. ~: )··:·. ~f!o·, 
··.:· .... : ... •:···· 

Note 4 : .. Receivable 

~· 

·a. Account 123 . . . 

The amoupt of P859,082.12 ·outstanding as of Dece~er ~1, 2006 are cash 
advances granted to officers and employees on various · foreign travels. 
Partial liquidation of P446,461.30 was made under CDJ 2007-03. 

b. Account 149 

Other Receivabl.e pertains to payment made to Asian Institute of Management· 
·for the globalization lecture series with the Chief Justice in the amount of 
P150,000.00. This also includ~s contribution made to the Philippine Judges 
Association In the amount of P50,000.00 whose adjustments were made 
under JEV No. 07-01-01. · · 

') 

.. 

i . '· . 
----""-·~···· ....... ·-·---. :_ ·: \ ... · ...... : ... ~--~---~-·~ ···-·· ·1 .. 
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>.~\.,~~~~:~i~1.~}.;,:>-:> ..... : . .:. ,, ·:·. '.·;>.;>>.:.::: ..... :\,." ... :': 
·:·_,:>;t:Aa:Vabces:·to::'.Contractors represents 15% mobilization cost 'of China State · 

Con·struetion Engineering .Corporation for the construction/renovation of 
Lapu~lapu City Hall of Justice.in the amoum of P12,322,202.40. However, 

·" ,. .· 941". .tq, l1n,ay9jle;;i.bility of Notic~. of Non-Cash Availment Authority .(NCAA) .15% .:· 
' ,.,, ... n,.-~f(mbhilizatior(fO(the construction/renovation of Angeles City Hall of Justice in. . 

the amountof'21,636,1BO:OO•jn the form ofDirect Peyment under WA No. 43. 
dated November .3,2006 . was notrecorded. This mobilization cost will be .. 

. ·'-''i'·"' :reduced in.the.form of reCOLlpment in succeeding progress billing.. · .. 
: ·· ... ,. ·' . •,: - ' .·' ' 

Note 4 /·:~•.:.RrbpertyPl~llt.¥J:6a'Equipm~nt. 
... :.:.:·· ... :. :::: .... ::.::.~·':;·._;-;··:.:>. ·:···. ':: :' ··>:·>~ .. -::">-.'::.: . .. ... > ·-. '···:· 

.. ::.- ',,\_,_;:::·:.' '•'·"":'r:;:_":;;\\"''•··· 

··1 :·;- '";,;··· 

. ·. . 

.·a. Account223 · · 

· lnformationTechnology Equipment do npfalso include·.paymentto One Opsis, ·. 
Inc. for the delivery of structured cabling and component for_t~e ~udiciary Data. 

· , ., ..... ;.; ... :.Center and ICT'l11frastructure Development paid througtl"bfrect Payment 
· · under Withcjrawal >Application Nos. 41 : dated .· ·. November. 3, 2006 and .... 

. Withdra'Nal .. Application No; ) 45 dated . December 15; ··2006 in the total · 
, amount. of P44,270,443.57.This vvmbe recorded in the books upon receipt 
of the NCAA! . . . 

b: .. Account 264 

Construction in··. Progress. ali:;o .·do not include· .payment. to China State 
Const.ruction Engineering Corporatioripaid through · Direct Payment under 
Withdrawal Application Nos.::42. and .44 representing. progress billing No. 2 

. , . .. and 3· for th_e construction/renovation otL~.P.!J:l.9.PJ.LCity;J:;l~JLaf.Justice.ar.id, will 
~, ·:·,. -· -"' .. ·y- ·~-. '"be recoraeCf'ln the books upoi-\' receipt of the NCAA. . j . 

' : , ~ . . .. . . . . . ' . I 

Note 5 : Payables .... i·:..· .. , ....... ,.;, .. · . ·:,. i::\ .-:·:·."·~/. ~ . 

I 
. I"· 

. a. Account .424 

. Due to Other Funds represents the .booking of NqA No. 2006-9006765 dated 
· November 20, 2006 in the amount of P3,722,015!.97 to the account of JRP­

GOP. This has been recorded to the IDF Grant F~nd Account under JEV 07-
02-02. . . . . 

b... Ac~ount 426 

· ·. · · ·Guaranty Deposits payable is the 10% retention from the first prog_ress billing 
of· China· State Constructions .Engineering Corporation in its faithful 

: performance for the renovation/construction of Lapu-!apu City Hall of Justice. 

'l 

.... ·.. .:-.::,_. .• ." .. T,. -·-· 
....... •' ... · _______ c_,;_:......:..__;__;_...;. _________________ ..... 
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Republic of lhe Philippines 
COMMISSION ON AUDIT 
Cornmonweallh Avenue, QL1ezon City 

CLUSTER. 11: Leg·islative/.Judicial/Co!lst:it:ut:io11al.Commissions 
Natio11al Govern111e.nt: Sect:or 
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SUPREME COURT OF THE PHILIPPINES 
Judicial Reform Support Project 

WB Loan No. 7191- PH 

Auditor's Opinion on Financial Statements 

The Honorable Chief Jn~tice 
Supreme Court of the Philippines 
Manila 

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheet of tl1e World Bank Loan for the 
Judicial Refo1m Support Project as of December 31, 2007 and the related Statement of 
Inco~ne 'ai1d Expem;es _ai1d Statement of Sourc.es and Uses of Funds for the year then 
ended. These :financial staten1ents are the responsibility of the Auditee. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion thereon based .on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted· a11diting standards. 
These standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of mateiial misstatement. An audit 
includes examii1ing, on a test basis, evitl,enc..e...supp~r.ting-the:.amount~·-and·disclo.siu'e·s in 
the foiahciarstafo111enls. An audit also i'ncludes .assessu1g the accmmting principles used 
and significant estimates made by m;magement as \vell as evaluating the overall 
statement presentation. We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As discussed in our. Audit Observation Memorandum, several suppo11ing 
do.curnents for contracts on infrastructure, consultancy services and procurement of 
>vorks and goods were not submitted to us on time. Thus, technical evaluation of the 
contracts were not conducted as well as inspection and. validation of. the project 
accomplish1nents due to non-availability of Program Management Office pers01Ulel to 
assist us thereon. ,. ... 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter referred to in the preceding 
paragraph, which is still subject of evaluation of this Office, the financial statements 
refened to above present fairly the financial condition of the project as of ])ecember 31, 
2007 and the results of its operations and e;.;:penditures for the year then ended including 
the Special Account as of December 31, 2007 in acciordance with generally accepted 
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accounting principles in .. the . Philippines . and, dllat the Statemeht · of Bxpei1ditures 
· s1ibiiiitt~d d1'.t'rli1g '~uch fiscal year, together with. the procedures and internal cou.trols 
involved'i11'tlie pi;.eparatiorl, can be rel.ied upon to support the related withdrawals . 

. . '•. . . . ' // 

c;& .. '/lrl 
. . . ~R/l,~.< ....... 

'Director IV 

··•.·.' 

Octobet 10, 2008 

. .'·; : .. : ·. ~ ·~ . 
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~upre111e QComt of t[Je ~{Jilipp\11eli 
Judicial Reforn1 Support Project (JRSP) 

Loan Number 7191-PH 

NOTES TO.FINJ\NCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of Decen)ber 3·1, 2007 

2 fl•') 
?,, 1-.J 

I. . 

\c 1. GENERAL 

'. 

·: i 
"! J' J\ 

·1 .1 

Note 1: Basis of Reporting 

A. Descrf pti'~11 of Project 

The obje:9Hve of the Project is to assist the Supreme Court in dev~loping a more 
effeclive and·accessible Judiciary that wouldJoster public trust and co.nfidence, through 
the imple_rh$nialion of its Action Program for Judicial Reform (APJR) . 

. ,The project consists of the foilowing con1ponents: 

Component A: Improving Case Adjudication and Access to Justice 

·This component is intended to improve court efficiency through modern case 
management tecl1niques, planning and tools. It also aims to formulate alternative 
mechanisms and to . test mobile courts to address affordability constraints a11d to 
improve access to justice by the poor and disadvantaged. 

Component B: Enhancing Institutional Integrity 

This component is intended to result in the judiciary adopting a comprehensive and 
synchronized approach to strengthening the ihtegrity infrastructure c,:>f the judicial 
system. This approach involves gender-sensitive institutional and procedural reforms, 
civil society education and information, and. private sector and inter-agericy 
collaboration: . , -··c'-·'·---··"·'·-:o .. , •. ~."-"'"". · · ····"""~=""""""'·''.'~~~~-~···~··'-·~· 

Component C: Strengthening the Institutional Cap<jcity of the Judiciary 

This component woL1ld strengi11en the institutional capacity of the Supreme Court 
to manage, the whole JLJdiciary by setting up a decentralized operational structure and 
making t11e investments necessary to upgrade t11e management and technology 
systems and physical facilities that are essential to t11e Judiciary's ability to carry out its 
services. 

Component 0: Support for the Reforln of the Judicial System ancf Program 
Management Office I . 

Thi_s component will assist in developing support for tl1e reform process, ensure 
that judges and other stakeholders are able to participate in the development of 
modernization .ideas and implement key reform activili<?S. It will also provide assistance 

· to the Program Management Office in facilitating and coordinating t11e implementation of 
the APJR and the Projecl. · 

--·--------------------·-·--·-- -· 
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B. Project Life and Closing Date 

Tl1e project is being implemented for six (6) years, with loan effeclivily dale on 04 
D.ecernber 2003 and closing dale on 31 December 2009 

' . 
... ' . : '•. 

Note 2 : Significant ACco(1nting Policies 

Withdrawal of Loan Proceeds 

· Tlle i:imount of Working Fund (loan P~~ceeds) is being credited to the. Foreign 
currency Savi1Jgs Ac.count opened by the Court in its books in .the•name of the .Recipienl (SC­
JRSP World Bani<. Loan), and will1drawn therefrom by .the Recipient in accordailce with the 

, provisions of;,Scliec;Jule 1 of the Loan Agreement,. for expenditures in respect of the reasonable 
cost of services required for.activilies·and to financed out of the proceeds of the Loan. 

T,r~p.~C'!S1iq_nsin foreign currencies\.vere r¢9orded in Philippine Pe~o:pq~~d on the 
BSP rate of-.:Eipb~fl~.e pr~v!':'lili119 .atthe transac~ion. At the end Qf·the year, th.ese were 
revalued using 'the-'rate exchange ~t tile.Balance sheet dat(3, Foreign currency denominated 
monetary assets .and liabilities et th.e .. E\C!lance. Sheet dale· were ri;islated based on BSP 
excl1a11ge rate on that date · · · · · · · 

11 BALANCE SHEET 

Note 3 : C<!s!J°. 
,• 

a. Accou.nt111 
• ·1·~ ,. ,, • 

Tlw amount of'P33, 1S7,611.81 of the Cash in Bani< Current Account can be 
accounted as follows: · · · ·. · · · 

· L. P: US Dollar Savings Account No. 0594-0065-50 
($803,059,73@ 41.197) P~3,083,651.70 
L. P. Peso Account No. 3472-1001~80 1,151,869.72 

-~"~'~.~_,_: ~~ .. ,. .... ~-·-··--··-;:·--p;:i~:2;5:5;a-;. 
· .. Less: Outstanding Checl<s · .· l · · · .· . · ··. 1,077,909.61 

P33,157,611.B1 
==~:2:=~==·===== 

Note 4 ':· ·HeC:eivable 

fil. Account 149 

Other Receivable represents payment rnade to AIM (Asian Institute of 
Management) in !he amount of !?150.1000. '.lO under checl< No. 75014 dated 

223 

·March 17, 2006. This will be adjusted to prior year's adjustment considering that 
this is training expense for the globalii!'.~t!o11 lecture series of the. Cl1ief Justice. 

b. AccQunt 181 ... ·. 

\(' 
>\ ' 

Aclvan.ces to Contractors represents mobilization cost of,China State 
Construclion E;ngineering Corporation and .TCGI Engineers for the 
co11struction/renovation and project menagernent and supervision respectively 
of ·Lapu-lapu City and Angeles City Halls. of Justice. Some amounts are re­
couped in tl1e direct payments by-l11e VVorld Bank but not recorded in !lie books 
due t.o un-av~Hability of Notice of Non-Cash Avciilment Authority (NCAA). 
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If l11ese_amounts are consiclered, the correct balance could be P'\ 0,386,7'! 9.25 
ilernizecl as follows: 

I. Balance reported as of December 31, 2007. P22,363.138.86. 
~} ·; ~; ~>.:,?. .'.:~ .. '. ''.'.",.:.~, 

II Less::;·Unrec6rded Recoupment 

Reference.. _Date Billing No. 8!19eles HOJ · Lapu-Japu HOJ 8!:!:!£.\!!l!:! 

, .. ~k: ·No.24871 . _2.27.07 .... ·5. 
:· C.11.' Nb '2~1870 2.27 .07 . : ·1 • 

~~· :;~;·:·· ., ~:g~:gi. 1~ ' 
. WA 62 .•.. . .'I0 .. 22.07 . 13 
-;·Wk"'"62': · , ...... _._'j0.22.07 B. 

5,011,028.96 . 5,011,026.96 
1,391,684.34 . 1,391,684.34 

. .852,970.23 •• . 852,970.23 
_2,334,055.04. ~ 2.334,055.04 ,. · ..•.•. 
. ~ . . .. . ... 520,1°78.65• .- ..... '520,178.65 . ' 
• 944,278:16 .· 944.278.16 

: ... -.. ·;·•·:'.•''· 

WA_ 63 . 1p5.07 9 

·"'··: 

92:2-224.23 922,224.23 
-----------

.·?,592,241.1_7-~. 11;384,111,84 ··11,s1M!9-61 --'A1;976,419_61 · 
. ... . ·::·.>:;··· .. ··.-· ... :.:.~.~: .'. . ' . ~ '. ~··::~.i\.:~i::,:::_-.;~-~-~-·.· 

P10;386,719.25 
:::.==;;::==~=.===:== 

.. 

Note 4 : .·,pr9pertY.Plc.u1t~riq E_quiprnent. 

a. A.cc:;oupt264.,. . · .. : O::, ·· · .. _ : · . - . · · · .... '" 
, .... ¢brislrl!C!tion in .Prow~ss.als,o do no,t incluc\e direct pqyrnents made lo _China 
· .· State Construction EQgineering Corporation for the, construction/renovation 

. :of l.-C1PLI-l<1pl..r City <:ilid Angeles· Halls _ofJwstice. If tl1epe are also considered, 
.. ·:· ll1e correct amount cou!q be P134)22.485._66 13cc0Lmted as follows:: 

. :· . I. BC:Jlance re:port~d as of Decernber31,_ 2907 .· P111,114, 172.31 
. . . 

. ll. Add: .Unrecorded l_lems ·· 

.WA No. Dale Bill_ing No:_ A_ngeles MO.J· Lapu-lapu ('lQJ · Amountl 

59 
'59 
59 
62 . 
62 
63 
65 

-.··'"'·"'.fl!:-.'" 

··; .· 

Total 

Note 5 · : Payables 

9.06.07. 7 
_9.06.07 . 11 
9.06.07 .. 12 
10.22.07. 8 
10.22.07 13 
11.15.0_7 . 9 
12.11.07 14 
12.2607 10 

a. Account 403 

. 4'16,141.25 • ' 416,141.25 . . '.. . ..:. 
· .• · . 1- ........... -"3,-696~204,53·-"3;696;204~'33 ... --·-. .. -----~---.- · 
. . i .· 2,570-;087.45 2,570-.087 .45 

4,091,872'.11 4,091,872.11 
• . 3,381,161.25 3,Jf.l'l,161.25 

3,996,304.99 . . 3,996,304.99 
2,430,459.85 .. 2,430,459.85. •.,;_,, ........ , .• 0·>'· 

.3,026,082.12 ' . 3,026,\)82.12 

11,5J0,400.47 .12,op,e12.ao 23,608,,313:35 23,608,313.35 

P134, 722,485.66 
----------------------~---

:.,. 

Dueto Officers and employees rfi:)pi:esents payment of expense allowance lo 
;various SC .employees as resource person in tl1e ·Code. of Gonciuct chargeable 
against l11e ccish i:idvance granted to .Ms. Araceli Bayuga under cl1eck No. 
2473.8 dated November 28, 2006 in U1e amount of P397 ,500.00. This will be 
settle.d after tl)e receipt of_accompli9t_wd payroll. · · · 

3 
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IJ. Account 4·12 

Due lo BIR are taxes will1held from suppliers, contractors and consullanls in 
tile amount. of P2,072,424.Ll6. As a mailer of policy the balance should be· 
rernillecl not later than 10 d<:iys aflerll1e ·end of December. . - . , . , 

.• : .:-." •. ,_ :'-<•: • ' ·.: :~ ~ . 
. :; 

c. Accol.111t 426 

Guaranty Deposits payable are retention .money imposed to coi1tractors or 
.:: .. :;,• 1suppliers in thei(faithful performance. The 10% retention are deducted from 

-. ... tJ~e ·progress ·billings of Cl1ina Slate Constmciions Engineering Corporation 
· and . CLC Marketing Ventures Corpora lion .for the re.novati611/coh'strLiclion of 

. ., ...... :•tapu~lapu Cily and Angeles City Halls of Justice and for tile supply, delivery 
and installation of furniture and ~ixtures of Lapu-lapu City HOJ respectively_ 

·The amountwitht1eld as retehtionwiJlbe released to them after,-the··supreme 
·'·''fi!i.Q,9vr:t.could- issue ·~ertificale of.Final Acceptance for goods ~delivered and 

. ·-,,;•LWvorks.·rendered. ·- ·· · .. - .. · · - ·" · 
'•' '' ~··.~.· ....... . 

· d. Accoqnt 4.3!J, ·~ . ···' · ... 

225 

Other Payables consists of understatement of first biliing consultancy fee of - ·· 
· TCG!Engineers under c11eck N_o. 7'15173 dated 2005 in ll1e. amount of 

. _ .P,5Q.OO and toAteneo de Manila forregistration of Geraldiri~ bimacula under 
-- ;check No. 1830 dated February 20, ~006 in l11e amount of P0.40 .. 

. ······: 

. . :~, ···=-~µ<".~~~-.....;..._-.....:.·..:.-·-···'""'' .. __ . ,. __ ._ ... ;.... ..... - ... ·~·--···· ··:.:1 

1;:.'1'·J. 

""':. 

--------- -------------- --··· ··~ ··- ..... ___ ,... _____ , ____ _ 
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR 
· -Supreme Court of the Philippines 

Taft~ venue, Manila 

Judicial Reform Support Project 
._·•:> WB Loan No. 7191- PH 

. Auditor's Opinion OJ?- Financial Statements 

;The Honorable Chief Justice 
~upreme Court of the Philippines 

anila 

_ We have ciudit~d. the accompanying Balance Sh,eet of the World Bank Loan for 
~he Judicial Reform Support Project as of December 31, 2008 and the related Statement 
'f Income and Expenses and Statement of Sources and Uses of Funds for the year then 

___ nded. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Auditee's Management. 
~:Our responsibility is to express an opinion thereon based on our audit. -

We conducted our.audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards . 
. These.standards require -that-we -plan and perform the-audiHo·obtain-rea~qnable assurance 

' . 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
·· .eludes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosure1dn 
!the financial statem~I,lt~. 1 An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 

d significant estimates _ made by management as well as evaluating the over~ll 
-;tatement presentation. We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

__ In our opinion, the fip.ancial statements reforred to above, present fairly the 
:financial condition of the pmject as of December 31, 2008 and the results of its 
:,operations and expenditures for the year then ended including the Special Account as of 
'.December 31, 2008 in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the 
:1:.Jlhilippines and, JhfJJ tl,w, _Statement of Expenditures submitted during such fiscal year, 
;:together with the procedures and internal controls involved in their preparation, can be 
~:relied upon to support the related withdrawals. · 

(;/ f, (- \ 
CECILIA E. CAGA-ANAN 

Supervising Auditor 

I') C) f., 
k,i r.;,, I 

fh.J 

" 



'.i. _...;_ . EXECUTIVE su:rvr:rv1:ARY 

Introduction 
. ~ ..... '.;· .. ;_ .... 

1. The Supreme Court of the Philippines entered into a Loan Agreement (No. 7191-
PH) with the World Bank in the amount of USD 21.9 million with the objective of 
assisting the Supreme Cou1t in developmg a more effective and accessible Judiciary that 
would foster public trust and confidences, through the implementation of its Action 
Program for Judicial Reforms (APJR). 

2. The Project consists of the following components: 

a. ·Improving case adjudication and access to justice. This component is 
intended to improve court efficiency through modern case management 
techniques, planning and tools. It also aims to formulate alternative 
mechanisms and to t_est mobile courts to address affordability constraints 
and to improve access to justice by the poor and disadvantaged. 

b .. Enhancing institutional integrity. This component is intended to result in 
the judiciary adopting a comprehensive and synchronized approach to 
strengthening ·the integrity infrastructure of the judicial system. This 
approach involves gender-sensitive institutional and procedural reforms, 
civil society _education and information, and private sector and inter­
agency collab01;ation. 

· 'c. ·Strengthening ;the institutionalcapacityl>f·the~udiciaty: · This iomponeht 
would strengthen the institutional capacity of the Supreme Cowt to 

. manage the whole Judiciary by setting up a decentralized operational 
· stru.ctme :-and maldng the inve.stnients necessary to upgrade the 

.. - ri1anage1nent and technology-systems" -and physi~al facilities that are 
essential to the Judiciary's ability to carry out its services. 

d. Supp011 for the reform of the judicial system and Program Management 
Office.L This component will assist in developing suppo1t for the refmm ,. 
process, ensure that judges and other stalceholders are.able to participate in 
the development of modernization ideas and implement key. reform 
activities. It will also provide assistance to the Program Management 
Office in facilitating and coordinating the implementation of the AP JR. 

3. The project is being implemented for six years, effective December 4, 2003 and 
closing date on December 31, 2009. However, with the recent approval of the project's 
extension for another 18 months until 30 June 2011, the JRSP's implementation period 

-·----·--·---·------------------·--·--··-- ... 

2
1'."', .... 
uD 



. , 
.. 

Sumniary of Observations and Recommendations 
··;·· ....... 

·2 r· '~1 Ut 

8. The·· government::pi:iid. the amount of ;J;ll,320,124.97 due to commitment· fees 
incurred f01' the unwithdrawn principal amount of the loan. · 

9. W~ Jep_Qpl_I)l~Ij.q,JJ:i,~t, . .n:ianagement should immediately resolve the implemeµta,tiqn 
i~~ues . thfJ.f arose dur]lli{jhe year.· and . to. fully. implement the reforms . and me·~.swes 
instituted by the Comi to fast::track the procurement of works, goods and services and 

. finally, to stop the incurrenceof commitment fees. .. 

Status of ImpJemen ta ti on .of Prior Year's Recommendation 
~ :· : . ' ; 

10. The audit recoillmendationfor 'CY.2007to adopt measures.to avoid the incurrence 
of commitment fees was fully· .. imple:r:nented by ·Maiiagement,. however, the audit 
recommendation for CY· 2008 to fully implement the' reforms and measures to fast-track . · 
the procurement of works, goods and services »7as 9JJ.lyj:iartially i.J:llplemented. · 

: .·? 

.; ,.J \\·:.\,' .,._. .-~:·:r,~·;' 

"· l 

·.···. 

lll 

. . . . . 
i~u. .......... ~~·~-~ .. :,, . .:.:~~~ . .;..~-;..:~~·-·-·-· . .;..;:.;..~; ... -.. ......;;.;.:..:.-.~.-.~·;..:, .... _,; .. ~-~~~ :. ·r 
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Supreme Court of the Philippines 
Judicial Reform Support Project (JRSP) 

Loan Number .7191-PH 
. , .. ;~ .. .;;; . .. ... ..,: .. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
, As of December 31, 2008 

....... ··'··:: .. 

1." GENERAL 

Note 1: Basis of Reporting 

A. Description of Project · · 

The objective of the Project is to assist the Supreme Court in developing a more 
effective and accessible Judiciary that would foster public trust and confidence, through 
the implementation of its Action Program for Judicial Reform (APJR). 

The projeGt cor~Ists qf the following components: . 

Component pi.: Improving Case Adjudication and Access to Justice 

This component Is intended to improve court efficiency through modern case 
management techniques, planning and tools. It also aims to formulate alternative 
mechanisms and,.,to ... test mobile courts to address affordability constraints and . to 
improve access to justice by th~ poor and tjisadvantaged. 

Component B: Enhancing Institutional lntegritv 

. .. . . . . . . .. j 
, ......... Th.is.~pmponent.ls intended to result in the:jlldioiar:y~aqopting aco~11prehensive· and 
synchronized approach to strengtheni11g the ·integrity infrastructure' of the judicial 
system. Tbis approach involves gender-sensitive institutional and procedural reforms, 
civil society- education and information, and private sector and inter-a,gency 
collaboration. • · ·· ···· ···· ,., ·· 

. Component C: Strengthening the Institutional Capacity of the Judiciarv 

Thi.s component would strengthen the institutional capacity of the Supreme Court 
to rrianage the whole Judiciary by setting up a decentralized operat_ional structure and 
making 'the inv!'stments necessary to upgrade the management and technology 
systems and physical facilities ~hat are essential to the Judiciary's ability to carry out its 
services. 

Component D: Support for the Reform of the Judicial Svstem and Program 
Management Office 

This component will assist in developing support for the reform process, ensure 
that judges and other stakeholders are able to participate in the development of 
modernization _ideas and Implement key reform activities. It will also provide assistance 
to the Program Management Office in facilitating and coordinating the implementation of 
the APJR and the Project. 

1 
-······ .---- ---------------- - ··-·· --··· 
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s. Project Life and Closing Date 

The project is being implemented for six (6) years, with loan effectivity date on 
. 04 December 2003 and closing date on 31..December 2009 

Note 2 : Significant Accounting Polic;Jes 

Withdrawal of Loan Proceeds 

. Jt)e amq!JJ)tpt\NPrking Fund (Loan Proceeds) is being credited to the Foreign 
Currency Savings Account opened by the Court 'in its books in the name of the 
Recipient (SC-JRSP World Bank Loan), and withdrawn therefrom by the Recipient 
in accordaQQ§~~wJ1'1 Jh,e provisions of Schedule I of the Loan--Agreernent, for 
expenditure$,- ln::res.pectof the reasonable. cost of services required for activities 
and to financeq Ol,Jt of th.e proceeds otthe .Loan: · 

Transactions in foreign currencies were recorded in Philippine Peso based on 
the BSP rat,e of.exchange prevailing at the transaction .. At the end of the year, 
these were revalued using the rate exchange at the Balance Sheet date. Foreign 
currency d_enominated monetary assets and liabilities at the Balance Sheet· date 
were .restated basE;id O!l BSP exchange rate on that date .. 

<11 .·· .. BALANCE SHEET . 

. Note 3 : Cash 

!" 

'·":·•. •' ... ~.,_. ... ·.. : .. ·-·.~.,.~ 

a. Account 103 - Cas.h Disbursing Officer 

The ·balance of P348,500.00 as of December 31, 2008 represents cash 
aqvance granted to Ms. Araceli Bayuga during the Orientation[ Seminar on Cod~ of 

· · · C~nduct under Check No .. 24738 ·dated Nov. ·2s;"'2006 ·with .. li~uidatioriin' process. 
The negative balance of Ms. Norberte pertains to the liquidation erroneously. 
credited to WB-JRSP fund instead of JRP~rA. This was adjusted in the books in. 
the third quart~r .ot2009. ·. · 

· · Bayuga, Araceli C. 
Norberte, Cleofe R. · 

Total 

b. Account 111 - Cash in Bank 

't' 
~' 
! 

p .348,500.00 
. .(200,000.00) 

p 148,500.00 
============ 

The amount of P15,358,240.25 of the Cash in- Bank Current Accour)t is 
accounted as follows: 

LP. US.Dollar Savings Account No. 0594-0065-50 
($325,066.41 @ 46.883) . 

L. P. Peso Account No. $472-1001-80 

Less: Outstanding Checks 

i·, .. : .~··: ... :~ .. t~.'n .. ~.:~·,r.~--~~: 1;.:.-~~·. 

Pi 5,240,088.50 

211,602.11 

P15,451,690.61 
93,450.36 

P15,358,240.25 

============ 

2 
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Note 4 : Receivable 

· a .. Account .148 '."":Due from Officers. and-Employees 
.·,., 

This account represents advances granted to Supreme Court employees in the 
implementation of JRSP activities. All cash advances were liquidated in 2009. 

NAMES ··.·. ·- ·· 

Hosillos, MiG_aeJa .J. · , 
Lim, Reuben 
Ordanza-Abutal, Butch 
Ballestero.s, DC3.vid '"" 
Alabastro;j~yalJg~line 
Ballesteros, David 

TOTAL 

.\ . ';, •i• ·: _,., ..• 

AMOUNT 

p 1,600.00 ,, ',. 
4,240.00. 
1,680.00 

. 323,1,24.56 
(2,084.40). . ; ... ' 
60,507.68 

P 3B9,0G7.B4 

==========::::: 

•. 

':'•· 

b. Account 149 '":'Other Receivables 

DATE LIQUIDATED . 

. January 2009 •·· 
March 2009 
January 2009 
January 2009.,., ... ·,:·, ... ' . 
Adjusted January 2009 
. January 2009 · · 

·' ., .• ~.-·· ... "h ', 

.Other Receivable represents payment made to AIM (Asian Institute of 
Management) in .the. amount of P150,000.00 ·under check No. 75014 dated 
March 17, 2006~ This will be reclassified to prior years' adjustment as this was · 
training expense in 2006. for the Globalization Lecture Series of the Chief 
Justice.. · · 

·Note 5 Inventories l 
., .,;\ 

J 

·.Note 6 

. ·-·'"''"""'"~,, • .,.,__,_-:.-.,;.,,.,.. ... ,.,.,. :;;,,-..,.r,.;.:.;:f .• .,,, •• ·....;..: -•·•" 

i 
. · .. ·~:·:· .. ~ . .,.~_ .. ,,,';··. ~ 

a. Account 155- Office Supplies Inventory 

The, .?.~gqunt represents inventory of whita board office supplies. This 
~ccount will be _adjusted In the third quarter of 2009. 

b. .Account 15(:! - Accountable Forms Inventory 

The account represents official receipts 1 in the customized e-payment 
system. This accountwill be adjusted in the~hird.quarter of 2009. 

Other Current Assets 

a. Account 181 - Advances to Contractors 

The account represents mobilization costs paid to China State Construction 
Engineering Corporation and TCGI Engineers for the construction/renovation 
and project management and supervision Of Lapu-lapu City and Angeles City 
Halls of Justice respectively. · · 

China State Construction Engineering Corp 
. Mactan Electric Company Inc. 
TCGI Engineers 

.. ,,.; , .. 
.:.,·.···--·'. 

Total 

p 9,713,883.65 
936,000.00 
105,091.73 

-..... -----------~·-:-~~~·./: .. ~::\-::.:. : . 

p 10,754,975.38 
============= 

3 
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Note 7 

b. Account 186 - Guaranty Deposits 

This repre~~O.t$ ~he .balance of guaranty deposit on diesel fuel for the Justice on 
Wheels :1rom::.P:!3rtP.best Service Center. ·:·The' unused portion of guaranty deposit· -­
amounted to. P31:A92.25 has been refunded under Official Receipt No. 181867 41 
dated January 5, 2009 and was recorded in the books on January 31, 2009. · · 

: Account 264 ~ Construction I~ Progress 

This account-represents the cost of works arid other related expenditures in the 
construction/renovation. of Lapu-lapu City and Angeles City Hall of Justice. 

Note 8 : Purchase.of.Property, Plantand Equipment 

Note 9 

"."·:\-:·~:,·/!, ........ ! .,. 
:.-.;. ,._, - \·, ·::."'.~ 

Increase in · Property, Plant & Equipment account during the year is 
. accounted. from. cash and direct .pµrchases. initially booked as Asset and 
credited to Accounts Payable .. Application of dire9t payments/accounts payable 
were recorded in 2009 upon receipt of NCAA. 

····;".··. 

Payables 

a. Account 401 - Accounts Payable 

This account "represents completed transactions and activities of '20oa but 
remained unpaid as of December 31, 2008. Out of P24,526,736.81, the amount 
of P22,251,B65.76 or ·91 % of the outstanding balance was paid after the 
subsequent release/issuance of Notice of Cash Allocation (NCA) & Non-cash 
Availment Authority (NCAA} during the first quarter ofi2009 ... · ._ _. __ · _ .... ,, .. 

'!'.' - ' ' ' ' ' " - .. --··----~···- .. -·--.- '"'•'l ''"'""" " '" ' ----- ... ' ' ' ' ' ' 
b. Account 403 - Due to Officers and Employees · 

.·· .. ::·;.-·. 
This account represents expense allowance of the lecturers for the 

Orientations on New Code of Conduct for Court Employees. Payments were 
held in abeyance pending -issuance of a Court Resolution on the payment of 
expense allowance. 

i 

c. Account 426 - Guaranty Deposits Paya1ble ·· 

Guaranty Deposits Payable are retention money to guarantee 
performance which are_ refundable to the depositor. The 10% retentipn was 
deducted from the progress billings· of China State Constructions Engineering 
Corporj3.tion for the renovation/construction of Lapu-lapu City and Angeles City 
Halls of Justice. -

'' •.··· .. :.:·· 
.. ,·.,. '"· 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

Note 10 : Interest Income 

· .. ,·. 

Note 11 

Note 12 

' ,, fgt~,r~~t lhpom{of 2008 is c~~p~sed of: 
I; ·••J,•, .. ' ' " 

a. First Quarter. 
US$ Account ($1,672.69 @ 41.446) = 
Peso Account = 

. . ··~···: : ·•'', ... ·,; ... ,. . 

·:: ".··· ·'! .,:·,;,;,,, I·'' -'·: .. : 

P69,326.31 
2,885.33 

P72,211.E;4 

P72,211.64 

b. Second Quarter. 58,859.46 
US$ AQcpunt (1,310.38@ 44.389) .==: ····.·' P58, 166.46 
. Peso/\cpb,urjf · . · · .·· · '·. · · ~ '·' · 693.oo 

c. Third Quarter. 
US$.Account (1,134.48 @47.819) = 
· Peso Account · · = 

d. Fourth Quarter. 
US$ Account (850.11 @ 46.883) · = 
.Peso Account = 

58,859.46' 

P54,249.70 
579.39 

P54,829.09 

P39,855.71 
978.09 

P40,833.79 
i ----------------

.. ·.·:i .. •.'(' ;::;·i:·: :· 

54,829.09 

40,833.79 

• -·-··-··~~'°''.:.:~,;;,;.~.:~,:.;_,_, ... _:•Mo••'•~··-··-· •. -,._-__:...,,~_:;:,:::;,7,,,,, .. ,,:.r..:.:;;.;• • .,O, 

Total l P226,733.98 
==========· 

Deposit of Collection with Authorized Government Depository Bank. ·.·.· 

·The amount of P176,615.96 inadvertently deposited to Account# 3472-
1002-70 (FA) instead of 3472-1001-80 (JRSP). 

' 

l· 
Subsidy Income from the National Government 

This account includes receipts.of the following 

Account 651-003 - Notice of Cash Allocation (NCA) 
Account 651-004 - Tax Remittance Advice (TRA) 
Account 651 ~007 - Non-Cash Availment Authority (NCAA) 
Unutilized Notice of Cash Allocation 

Total 

·., .. 

P13,706,000.00 
4,679,770.28 

62,835,561.21 
(8,294,069.03) 

p 72,927 ,262.46 

--------------------------

... ·~--·--·-·--·-·------------------·----·-·· ---
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Note 13 

; .. i··.; 

Payment of Professional Services 

This represents fees for professional services rendered in the 
:f.eno\lation/cpri§tr,u,ct,ion of Lqpu-l9pu .City".&·Angeles City Halls of Justice: · 

"<<·,.· .-

.... 

~ " ; .· ... ·:.·: .. 
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I. GENERAL 

Supreme Court of the l?hilippines 
·Judicial Reform Supp~rt Prpject (JRSP) 
· ,: : · · ·Loan Numb.ef7191~PH · · ·· 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As of December 31, 2009 

Note 1: Basis of Reporting 

A. •Description of Project 

··•.;:11· .. 

· ·· .. -Th.e Judicial Reform Support Project or JRSP was underta_ken by the Supreme 
Court with assistance from the World Elank (WB) to support selected policy and 
institutional reforms together with .. associated infrastructure improvements which were 
set out in the Action Program for Judicial Reform (APJR). ·. 

The'Pr~ject consJ.sts of the following components: .. 

Component A:· improving Gas~ Adjudication and Access to Justice 

· This c~rnponent intends .. to :i~prove ·court ··efficiency through modern case 
management" techniques, planning and tools. It also. aims to formulate· alternative 
mechanisrns .and to test mobile courts to address affordability constraints and to 
improve access to. justice .by .the poor and disadvantaged. 

Component B: Enhancing Institutional lntegritv 

') h; "") r.; i ~ .. 

..... , .. ,. ,, ,. , .. Component. B • .seeko to adopt a compr.ehensive.-and--syncrironized-approach•to ,, 
'strengthen the .integrity Infrastructure of the judicial system. This approach Involves . 
gender-sensitive lnstltutipnal and procedural reforms, civil society education and 
information, and private sector and inter-agency collaboration. 

'"'"" --N ·····---· •••• ·--. ,•, • .,, .......... : .. ..,.,,,.·,,. • 0 ·:-"""',-"••- ·-···:::---:--· .. -:·: .. :·.· •••• 

.';•:1.:.,r ... · 

. Component C: Strengthening the Institutional Capacitv of the Judiciary 

The institutional capacity of the Supre-:-ne Court to manage the entire Judiciary is 
envisioned by setting up a decentralizecl operational structure and making the 
investments necessary to upgrade the management and technology systems q.nd 
physical facilities that a,re essential to the Judiciary's ability to carry out its services. !" 

Component D: Support for the Reform of the Judicial Svstem and Program 
Management Office 

The need to devE;llop support for the reform process, ensure that judges and other 
stakeholders are able to participate in the development of modernization ideas and 

·implement key reform activities are the objectives of this component. It will also provide 
assistance to the SC Program Management Office in facilitating and coordinating the 
implementation of the APJR and the Project. 

9 
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-· ·---·- -··-··--·----···---- --------·-·----·--·-·--. 



. . . .,,,;· .. ~'·" . •.' '. 
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.. 
s. The Project Life and Closfrig.Date 

: The project is being implemented for six (6) years, with Joan effectivity date on 
04 December 2003 and closing date on 31 December 2009 

-::i However, with the ·recent approval of the project's extension for another 18 months until 
· 30 June 201 l, the JRSP's .Implementation period has been stretched seven and one 

half (7%) years, from the Lo.an's effectivity date of 04 December 2003. 

Note 2 : Signlfica~t Acc:ouptlng Policies 

Withclrawal of Loa.n Proceeds· 

- .. The amount of Working Fund (Loan Proceeds) ·is being credited to the Foreign 
Currency Savings Account .opened by the Court in its. book$ in the name of the 

· · Recipient (SC:JRSP World Bank Loan), .and withcir!'lwn therefrom l;iy the Recipient Jn 
accorciance .. withJhfl .pr9visionp of Sc:hedule .1.of the Loan Agreem€1pt, for expenqitures 
in respect .of th.e re.asor;iable ('.ost of services re,qµir~d for activities and to ·f inancei out of 
the proceeds of the Loan. · · · · .... '. 

. · : .. ; . Transaction~ in foreign currencies were recorded in Philippine Peso based on 
. the. SSP. rate of exchange preVEiiling at the .. transaction period. At the end of the year, 
. ·these yvere revalµ~d .using tn19 rate exchange at the. Balr;mce sheet date .. Foreigri 

currency denom.in1:1ted m<;:>netE\ry assets and jiabili.ti.es at the Balance .Sheet d?te were 
restated based on 8SP ex.change rate on thatdate · · · · · 

' 
II. BALANCE: SHEET ·· 

·.;.;...:..'~~~-·......:..u~-~~·••1:~...,.....,,..,..~ ...... ~~_......:..:....:....!".=.....li:.:.~':'.-...:; • ., •. ,. ,N 

Note 3 : Cash 
t:. 

a .. Account 1.03 • Cr;1sh Disbu~sJng Officer 
: ":'.... . . ·- .. ·· ..---: ··:··· .. ;-·-:--.·- .... ;~. . ... ·. . . : .. . . , .... : ...... 

The balance, of P348,500.00 reprnsents cash advan.ce granted to .Ms . 
Araceli Bayuga during the Orientation Semin.ar on Code of Conduct µnder Check No. 
·24738 dated Noy. 28, 2006, -Said cash advance was liquidated In .June :?01 o. 

b. ~Accqunt 111 - Cash in Sank ~ 
The amount of P 5,025,474.43of1he Cash in Bank Current Account can be 

accounted as follows: 

.L. P. US Dollar Savings Account No. 0594-0065750 · 
. ($103,181.23@ 46.33) 

L. P. Peso Account No. 3472-1001-80 

Less: Outstanding Checks 

10 

P4,780,~86.39 

.· 246,145.07 

·. p 5,026,531.46 
1,057.03 

P5,025,474.43 
============ 

----- ------·-·····-··· 
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Not13 4 Receiva.ble 

a. Account 144 

This .account represents various refunds on cash advances of JRSP 
erroneously deposited to FA Account: 

Name. ·OR No. 

··Hon. Angelina Gutierrez · ··· 6027653 
Melanie Toledano I 077686 

. Mae Mendoza 1077687 
.•·-.· ! :°~ : . : .: '. I, • 

D ate 

. · 1.05.07 
7.27.08 
7.27.08 

Amount 

P6,039.12 
240.00 
170.00 

--------------~·. , .... 
P6,449.12 
----------------

--- _ .... -· ·· ··• ··· · ·The amount of P6,449.12 has been correctly deposited to JRSP on Janµary 
10,2010. . 

·b. Acc;oµnt 148 

"fhis account represents advances granted to Supreme Court ~mployees in 
.the. implemi;:i[ltation J.RSP activities. · 

.· The amount of P502,709.57 can be accounted as follows: ·, . ' .' . . . 

. · 1. Teresita Leonardo- de Castro ( Liquidated 2/28/1 O ) 
2 . . Joyce Abancio ( !,.lquidated 6/3/10 ) 

. 3 .. Annabelle Tumbaga Fundales 
4 .. Don,Segmundo Balneg · 
5. Mark Anthony Onal 

·. P247,553.60 
253,955.97 

. 240.00 
'240.00 
720.00 

.. ·'. _., ... , ... ;., ... -.. - ;:,·,0c.:,,...,;.;;.":.:'..,'.',";,.:.:.i.;,,,:.o,,_,,;..;,;.:,,_::,o ..... .:....o.<.::-.oM•,.:~~ .......... .,~,~:t;;,:J:i.:':",,.,,.,...__.,.~.-1'1'•!J_r ... -•-• 

' P502,7d9.57 
However, cash Advances of Fundales., Balneg and Onal 

2 
i-·1 ,,., 

.,, ' {:_, 

were already settled through refunds but erroneously 
deposited to .. ,FA Account. The .amount.of P.1,200.0Q . 
has been correctly deposite·d January 12, 2010. (1.200.oor · - · ... · ·· 

pi .. 

. The correct balance should be: 

1 l 

p 501,509.57 

--------------------
I 
~ .. 
.l 

-·----------------------··-



Note 5 : Other Current Assets 

a. AccountJ81 

The amount P13,960,717 J 9 represents Advances to various Contractors as 
mobilization fee while undertaking projects with the Judicial Reform Support 
P~e~ . 

. This consists of the following: 
.· ....... ·. 

China State Construction Engineering Corp. . P13,024,717.18 
. (Construction/renovation of Angeles city HOJ) 
··. Mactan f:lectricCompany, Inc.· ··.:·.· 

(Deposit for. light and power of Lapu-lapu HOJ) 
· TCGI Engineers · · 

(Project Management Supervision of Angeles City HOJ 

936,000.00 
(.01) 

. . :' ,;. .···.-··· .... •·· : ~··· -.·. •'. .. . . . .. ". 

. . . . . 

Note 6 : · Account.?64 ~- Gonstruction In Pr()gress .. · ... 

P13,960,717.17 
-----------­·. ------------

This account represents the cost of works and other. ~elated expenditures 
.. in the construction/renovation of L?pu~Japu City i;i.nd Angeleis City Halls of 

. :_ ·Justice. There has been no movement in the. account due to the termination of 
· .: · contracLbetween China State .Engineering and Construction Corporation and 

._.·theSupreme .Cour:t on.theconstruction and renovation of the Angeles City Hall 
of Justice; ·pursuant to the resolution of ttie Court datecj September 29, 2009 'in 
A.M. No. 06-8-08-SC.. . . . . . . . 

' . ·.. . . l 

Note 7 : Property Plant and Equipment . i 
~ • • • • • ...; •• 1 ........... _.. ....... ":;, ·~-·~·--:-~· .... ·-······-:-·-··-~-···~-: .... ...:.:,~ .... ~ ............. ~-.~.~::.: ·:;~r ...... : .. : ..... :.::, 
i Increase i.n Property, Plant and. Equipment account during th,e year is 

ac9ounted froin cash and direct purchases and booked as asset. 

...... :-":-·-,,:-.-~·;,:.:.~':'·~--- -·. ··- . '··--·-- ·--- .. -·-- ·--· --~···'- ·__:._.:..:..., .:,, 

Note 8 : Pay;;ibles 

a. Account 401 

, This account represents completed transactions and ,activities of 2009 
t . .Put remained unpaid as of December 31,_ 2009. r .. 

b. Account 403 

. The balance of 270.00 represents excess of liquidation of David 
Ballesteros under check No. 86372 dtd. 2.01.08. The amount liquidated is 
P41,710.00 nclusive of refund. 

Reported In the RCI ............................ . 
Check.prepared .... · ......................... . 

P41,710.00 
41.470.00 

Payable to David Ballesteros ................ , . . . . . . . . P 270.00 
========= 

._O. Ballesteros has been refunded under check No. 86818 dated 2.16.10. 

12 
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c. Account424 

Due to Other Fund is composed of amount temporarily 
borrowed from Fiscal Autonomy Funds as maintaining balance of JRSP 
account and refund of cash advance of Evangeline Alabastro under FA check 
No. 857676 dated March 5, 2008 and Official Receipt No. 18186735 dated 
March 19, 2008 but. erroneously deposited to JRSP accounts . . 

The amount of P2,084.40 has been transferred to Fiscal Autonomy 
Funds on February 18, 2010 while the remaining balance of P30,000.00 will be 
transferred back to FA account after completion of JRSP Project. 

d. Account426 

Guaranty Deposits Payable are retention money to guarantee 
performance which are refundable to the depositor. The 10% retention was 
deducted from the progress billings of China State Constructions Engineering 
Corporation for the renovation/construction of Lapu-lapu City and Angeles City 
Halls of Justice and furnishing of Angeles City HOJ." · 

The P19,821,415.57 retention is composed of :the following: 

China State .Construction Engineering Corp. 
(Construction/ renovation of Lapulpau City HOJ) 

China State "Construction Engineering Corp. 
(Construction/ renovation of Angees City HOJ) 

Modulplus System Corp. 
(Furnishing of Angeles City HOJ) 

e. Account439 

P9,074,104.71 

7,343,653.79 

3,403657.07 

· --"-P19;B21,415.57 
::::=i========= 

.............. --- ----· ---- -- -- --- -·-.. --·-.,,.-'·other Payables ·involves understatement of checks paid·to TECGI 
· Engineers and Ateneo de Manila University broken down as follows: 

;. 
1. TCGI Engineers 

DV 10151231807 
Ck 715173 dated 
12.28.05 

2. Ateneo de Manila 
DV 101060204223 
Ck 001831 dated 

Amount of DV Amount of Check Difference 

P587,579.23 P587,529.2~ P50.00 .. 

35,890.40 35,890.00 .40 

P50.40 
------------

13 
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111 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

Note Q . : Interest Income 

Interest Income of 2009 Is composed of: 

a. First Quarter. 
US$ Account ($451.24 @ 47.72) = P21,533.17 
Peso Accoµnt · = 810.65 

.'• .... ~ _.., ' . 

. b. Second Quarter. 
· US$ Account ( 199.21 @' 47.98) 

Peso Account · · · = 

c. Third Quarter. 
US$ Account (80 .. 65 @ 47 .59) 
Peso Acc.ount 

· d. Fourth . Quart(:lr. ·· · 
·.US$ Account (71.51 @ 46.33) 
. Peso Account 

= 
= 

= 

P9,558.i0 
578.22 

P3,838.13 
494.21 

·-·-·--------· . 

P3,313.06 
866.34 

. ---------:------

P22,343.82 

. P10,136.32 

P4,332.34 

P4,179.40 

• :;' · To.ta!. 
i 

'·-· . .··y ''"~l-···:=~~:!~!!:· 

2
1-1·t:~ 
,0 

.• "··~ ·-·-.;-··: ..... ":'.·-. ·--··-· ·:··- .. - .- ... ':. ..... .' ••• :~:.-:.,.. ... ·.; ••••.•••• -·-·· .••.•• ·.:·--. -- ···- ·-·--- -···-·-···-··----·- ... ·-··-·--.. -·-·· ___ ,_. :,.;1 •• ::.:· .... , ••. - -·-·· -·-··--··· - . 

Note 10 

t 

.,. ;" 

-Deposit·of Collection with Authorized Government 
Depository Bank · 

These are credit advises representing transfer of funds to JRSP 
account 3472·1001-80 (JRSP): · l 

.r 
JEV 2009-06-017048 
JEV 2009-07-019557 
JEV 2009·11-037143 

Total 

14 

P1 ,400.00 
116,446.00 
270,051.09 

· . P387,B97.09 

---------­. ----------



: : ;·"·\'! 1: ~<· ·.-

',J. • .... 

.. ~. 

Note 11 Subsidy Income from the National Government 

This account includes receipts of the following 

Account. 651 ·003 - Notice of Cash A:location (NCA) 
Account 65i·004 -Tax Remittance Advice (TRA) 

P24, 732, 161.85 
11,27 4.401.86 
62,889,368.96 

( 2i ,547 ,978.63 ) 
· Acc;ount·651·0.07 - Non-Cash AvaHment Authority (NCAA) 
Unutilized Notice of .Cash Allocation · 

Total p 77,347,954.04 
';'~:;'.:"!T~::: ====::;:==;:::=~===· 

Note 12 : Payrnent of Prqfesslonal Services 

This represents fees for professional se.rvices rendered in the 
renovation/construction ·of Lapl.!·lapu City _and Angeles city Halls of 
Justice. · · · ··· 

Note i3 Direct payments 
. . 

; -· · • . The following direct payments were not taken up in the books 
·due to non-availability of Non- Cash Availment AuthoriW (NCAA) 

No,.· .. ' ·date . · 
WA.· 112: 9.17.09 
WA-1i3. 10.23.09 
WA-115 i0.30.09 
WA~ 117 12.04.09 

. Total 

Payee .· . : Amount 
Indra Sis.temas SA .· P.8,582,641.64 
lnd.ra Sistemas S.A •. ·. '2.488,927 .57 
Indra Sistemas S.A '4,235,944.36 
Indra Si~ternas S.A. . 1 1,6(37,011.89 

. ,~ .... ~~'t';·,.~>~:; :.:.~ ~ .. ~ ;:·; .;·::-::-.:! ·'·~:-~.'~·~' : •. .,.;..' .• ~ . .';·:.:"'·;;;-~ ........ .;,,o.;.;;;.;.;;,;;;,.o:;~---:..,:.1· 

· · l . P16,£!74,525.46 
=-=.=====~=== 

,, .......... ·-·-·~- .~ ... ~ .. -:· .· ... ~ ·::-:· .. ,._., .... · .... .. . ·!: ...... ·'··:· ... 1,. ':'"""' .:··-· ":"":' .... "-:-.--: : .. · ··.·-:.·;· . ..::....·7 •. .:.· .••.•. . ... ~ 
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EXECUTIVE SUlVIlVlA..R Y . .. . . . ~ :· .. :.;· . . .. : 

.!:•.·>: ... .:r ··;;.., ... t .. ·.~1 .... ,.'·. '.~:·~·:.~;:/~\'. :~·.// 

Introduction . . 
;r,:'',•' 

1. The Supreme Cour.t of the Philippines entered into a Loan AgreemeRt (No. 7191-PH) 
with ·the World Bank in the amount of _USD 21.9 million with the objective of 

. , .. •;assisting the Supreme Court in developing a more effective and accessil:>le Judiciary 
that would foster public trust and confidences, through the implementation of its 
Action Program forJu~,ipi~~ Refonns (Ar.JR.). · 

. . ·~·· . ' . . . : .::.' 

·· '2. The Project consists of the fol~owing components: 

- f 

·. "· 

a.. Improving case .adjudication and access to justice. This component is 
intended to improv~ court efficiency through modem case management 
techniques, planning and tools. It als.o t,iims to formulate .alternative 
m~chanis.m:s·and to test mobile courts to address affordability constraints 
arid to ~prove access to-justice by the poor and_ disadvantaged . ._. · 

b. Enhancing institutional integrity. This component is intended to.result in 
the judiciary adopting a comprehensive and synchronized. approach to 
strengthening the integrity infrastnicture of t~e judiC:ial system. This 
approach involves gender-sensitive institutional and 'proceclural reforms, 

. civil society education· and information, a.nd private .sector ·and iJ1ter-
.· .. · a&ency .collaboration. · · · 

. ·. . . . . ·' ... --·.".· ~ ·· .. , ..... ,.,.,_ .... ____ ., ... ..:.._ .• -:.!.•··-~ ....... : .. .:.-. 
c. Strengthening the institutional"~capacity-of'l\le"JiiClicia~y. This eomponent 

would strengthen· the institutional capadty of the . Supreme Court to 
nianage the whole Judiciary by setting up il decen.tralized ·operational 
~tructi,ue and. making the. investme.nts necessary to upgrade ·,,the: 

. managemeilf' and technology systems and physical facilities that are 
essential.to the JUdiciary's ability to carry out its services. 

d. Support for the ref~rm of the judicial system .and Program Management 
Office. .This component will assist tln developing .support for the reform 
process, ensure that judges and othelstakiholders are able to participate in 

· the. ·development of modernization ideas and implement key reform 
activities. ·It will also provide .assistance to the Program Management 
Office j_nfacilltating and coordinating the implementation of the APJR 

3. The project is being implemented for six years, effective December 4, 2003 and 
closing date on Deceinber 3l, 2009. However, with the recent approval of the 
project's extension for _another -18 months until 30 Jun(;l 2011,. the JRSP's 

i 

---------------·-
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implementation period has been extende,9.-seven and one·'half (7 V2) years from the 
. ''· .~ 'ii.'.d:\oai1 "s:effective date ·of 04 Decemher 2,093. 

4. The COA-SC Audit team composed of Atty. Lour.des B. Lim, Supervising Auditor; 
Ms. Narcisa Reyes, Audit Team Leader and Ms. Eden Patano, Team Member, 
.conducted an annual ~audit of the accounts ~nd opera.tions of the Project. . 

. ,,.;;: ... 

·Finaneial Highlights 

5. Presented below are tJ,1e fin~.nc.ial. highlights for CY 491.0. 
' . ' 

(in millions a'r PhP) · 

· ~.~·7:.~~;ar~i~~l~.r~·-: :····.·,· .. ~:·: :: . _:·•'" ... -:: :!: ::.~.J·_):t:~~;··_:iJ;~~;J .>-·L·)'..i~ti~:'.~'.'1~1.:.:i_~·~~~~:·:: .· 
Subsidy :£ncome (Net) · · · · 

Notice of.Cash Allocation . · 19.63 . · 
'Non~Cash A~ai1iliehfAuthoritv 36;24 · 

14. 46 ., ' '36o/c_ """' '•., ' 0 

62:89 ' (42%) 
Qperaiionallncoriie ··. - c: --~~ ~ - ----~l------SS.54 ·. 77.36. ·1 - (28%) · 
Ex'oenses~(inclusive cof Deoreciation) -- ~ :-:· T ~~70.·s4. ,' '·,, '63.48 · I . :(12%) 

Excess o:f Incoi:ne'over Exoenses · I · ·<15 :3m · n:ss- ·:i <210.23%) 

Assets ·I 34L92 ''· i 3.57~60::-1~ ~(4%). 

Liabilities·.· I · . 36.25 .. · 36.19.' ·1 ''0.17% 
· · 1 Equity · • · 1 .·_ 3os.67 · ~321.'Ai" l'-{so/o) 

·" Alloirn~nt . · 
Go;p· 
Loan Proceeds 

-. ... . "I l.~1 . I (100%) 
I . '-" 

.... '"''"""'··~-·· ........... 3s~1--··-- ... -.. HOO%) 
. ,.- ~·; ... : : .. ' ' t ' 

Scope of A.µdit "' 

6. The ~\ldit povered the:4>perations for' the_ ,caleµdar ·' ·Y~ar :2010. 'T.h,e. aud.it ()Pjycti~es 
were.to a.s~rtajn, Wh¢tl;ler fipancial,statem~J1t.S pr~~~ntJ~irly the fin~ncia~ po~ition and 
results . of operations for the ·year then· ended al}d .to deiern1i.ne .· eoniplianC:e with 

' existi1,lg'la~s. ruies and .regulations. . ' ' . ' . 

Audit ()pinion ig J!'iIJ.an~i~l Sf,atements 
i 

t 
7. The Audit.or rendere.d a qualified opinion on, tlw fairness ofpresentation of the 

. Project's financ~al stat~m~n~s. a$ stated in the attacliedA4d~t ,g¥ftificate. · 
. . . . ;:, .. ·. .. . .. . ' . ' . ' . · ... ' .. ··. ··: .. ~ .... .. . . . ·. : . ' .,. .. . . . 

"' 

Summary ·of Observiiti~ms and Recoµim,endations 
. ' ... ': .. ·,.. '• .· . . . 

8. The slow/low avaihn~nt/utili~ation· rate of th.e loan f~r the Judicial Reform Support 
. Project (JRSP) ~e~ulted in the paymeiit. of 'comITiitmerit_· fees totaling to P 
1,079,393~31 for CY io10 for the unwithdrayvn ·principal amount of the IBRP loan 

11 
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by the government. The governmeD;t.paid accu111ul~t(!p .. :c_qpunitrpent ,fees. of 
.. ''"""'·'···,,.,.,,,_.,;,,,:·,IJiS$314;08B:OJ,or::Pl5,860,265.76fc:ir.t~t;: year 2004 - 2010. 

2 c ,--8 J 

We recommend management to immediately det~rmine the needed budget for the 
remaining activities to complete the project component ancl.$.turn. ~~.cess of-the . 

... ,,ieede.d,.bJl.dget to avoid .adpitional incuriel1ce of commitment fees. Improve project 
monitoring and construction supervision to 'hasten the project completion and to 
ad~ress the delays or any problem in Project·.· impiement,ation . immediately. 

,, ,,,,., -Management is ·also advice for future loan agreement to fast .track the 
implementation of activities as· scheduled in order to minimize incurrence of . 
commitment fees/ any qther l_osses. ·.,, ,,,,,~:,-.., ,,-.,., · · 

9. The.existence of discrepancy of P40,893,091.88 in reporting the bal_ances of the PPE 
accounts between .the actµal .. P.hysical .couqt .per Inventory Report submitted foi CY 
2010 an:d the accounting ~ecords in _the Property, Plant.& Equipment (PP~) account as 

·December 31, 2010 casts doubt on the reliability 1\nq accura~y of the ac:count and 
contrary to··S(!ction 12 of the tv!aimal on the 'New Qoy('.rnmerit Accoun.t~ng System···· 
(NGAS), 'Vol. IL' .. ,..~.,. :·" . . .. .. . 

We recommend Management ~o (a) exert more .extra effort to trace and investigate 
the causes of .the discrepancy ~nd make adjustments~ when necessary. Ensure that 
actual reconciliation of accounting and· property records be undertaken to present 
correct balances of the .PJ>E accounts in .the Jinan~ial statements; (b) R,equire the 

·Property Division to (i) submH to the· Account.ing Division tht;: copies of the 
corresponding Invoice Receipts for ·Property. transferred to Appellate Courts duly 
acknowledged by those Courts for proper dropping from the books; (ii) exclude 
fr9m ·the Inventory Report those assets uith fi)ore th~n ~~~X~'~"~~!Y!~~~!?J~Jife but · 
small enough to -be ·cqnsidered as PPE;uas~prcfvldea"'iinder COA Circular 2005-002 · 
and transfer/includ.e them in list.of item covered by Inventory Custodian Slip (ICS};· 
(iii) update its PC for each type. of PPE .as required .under Section 43, paragraph 4 of · 
the same Manual, Vol.'.. L to facilitate re9qnciliation of recards; (iv) prepare and,, " / 
submit the prescribed · RPCPPE properly cl~ssj,fied by . type .in accordance with 

: Section 66 (as instructed in Appendix 63) of th,e M~m~al on NGA.S, Vol.·n. 

10. Various furniture a11d fixtures purchased from the loan proceed. thru direct payment 
totaling P42,545,713.30, hut are still in\ the supplier's war~ouse, were erroneously 

· recorded in the books of accounts as a debirto Other.Assets account when it should 
have been recorded as a debit to Items in Transit{code Z84) contrary to the provisions . 
of COA Circular No .. 2004-08 dated September .20, 2004 ·thus, affects thy ·fair 
presentation of the ~s~ets in the financial .statements. · · · 

We recommend that the Chief Accountant prepare the necessary adjusting entries 
td correct-the deficiency noted for proper and fair presentation of the accounts in the 
financial .statements and to observe strict adherence· to COA Circular No. 2004-008 

· dated September 20,. 2004, updates of the NGAS Manual Volume III. 

iii 
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.:.. ... .. •' " ·'·. · ... ~ ... , '··". ,,., . .' ·:•.:-. ·~·'.:'·" ._,: '··: ·.~ .- . ·. :' ; . 

/·<11~'iifh6("igp'~frs::.:ahd. niainte~ance expenses :ofthe'·moto~ vehicies of the project totaling to 
· ·'· · · P157,l39.00 were notrecognized in .the books of accounts of the JRSP during the 

year; resulted in the understatement of the said expense account for the year ended 
December.31, 2010 that.affec~ the fair presenta~ion of the financial stat~ment. 

. .. . •. '. ;. '. { ',• • ·. '.: :· : : ' ,: ' .. •' • r ·'. ~ ~, -<. '. 

We recommend management to require the accountant to recognize in the JRSP fund 
the related repairs and maintenance expense charged against the SC-General Fund 

... ,,·,ri;.•1otaling·_td'.'Pl57;i39.00 .for Jair .presen~ation of ·the said .accoµnt in the financial 
statements. · · ·· · · · · · · · · · · · 

. ·:,.·! ·' ' • ' • ~ _1 "· .... 

Sta,tus.of Implementation of Prior Year's .RecoJnmeQdation · 
. . ·,· .. · '·. •' ,. t· • • .• .• 

12. Th~ audit reconun~ndati6ii ·for.CY 2009 to ilpmediately reso.lve the aforementioned 
iinpl~m~ntation issues an.d implement t~e r~foqns ~Ad measures i11stitutedduring the 

· year tof~sHra('.k the procurement of works, good~ ~ng .services and fm.ally, to stop 
th~ incµrren_ce of commi~ent fees was partia.lly .ilnple.mented. · · ·· · 

.·· ,• .• . '• , I • , '· 

... 

". 

... 
l .. ·~·tt~·~~~- .. --~'"'"~-"-·-c"····--~~-····~···-·-'·· ,, 

• ••• ~ ........ ! ...... ~::· ., 

:··· ,.,; .. 
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A. Introduction 

, ...... ,.i>" A Loan Agreement. (No. 7191-PH) ~as' e~tered' ih~J:·:;~;, the G~~e;~~ent of the 
· '. ···\Philippines::with'Ihe World Bank to finai1ce the Judicial Reform Support Project (JRSP) 

iii the amount ofUSD 21.9 million, which took effect on December 4, 2003, with the 
objective of l:IS$isting ·the Supreme .Court of the Philippines in developing a more 
effective .and ac.cessible Judiciary that would foster public trust and confidences, through 
the implementation of its Action Program for Judicial Reforms (AP JR). The Project aims 
to improve the deHvery of judicial .. ~etvice:s .. and the administration of justice in the 
country. It seeks to improve case adjudication· efficiency and access to justice, enhance 
the integrity of the Judiciary and strengthen the capacity of the Supreme Court to manage 
the Judiciary. · ·· ··· · 

The original closing date (Dece1nb~r)J; 2009) was first extended for 18 months 
until 30 June 49ll .. ~d .then by 12 inonths to June 30, 2012. The JRSP's implementation 
period has been extended eight and one half(8 Yi) years from the Loan's effective date of· 

04 December 2003. , . ''. ·~ :t ?: 

. . On July I, 2011, th:i amountof US$500;-000;~o:was cance11e'dTrorrl'theloa~;:a~'o~nt 
ih order to focus on S!lpport on priority 'wrap-up' ~.tivities.to facilitate achievemerit,of 
the. Project development·objective, strengthen and sli~t;:iin project results and impact, and 
ensure compliance with social and environmental safeguards. ' 

. . • ' . . .. ' ."; : •. \.:l/~:·f··:•··/ ; .. " .. '.;' ~' 

The Pr9ject's four co~ponents consists of (a{·improving· case ~djudication and 
access to justice; (b) enhancing institutional integrity; (c) strengthening !he institutional 
capacity of the judiciary; and (d) support for the reform of the judicial .system and 
Program Management Office. . · ' \. 

. ~ 

The COA-SC Audit team composed of Atty. Lourdes B. Lim, Supervisin& Auditor; 
Ms. Narcisa Reyes, Audit .Team Leader and J\1s. Eden Patano, Team Member,~ifonducted 

. ~~1 ~~nua) ~U,~it?f tp_e accounts and operations of the Project.·'·" _,... .: · · f. 
: •.: 

B. Financial/ Or.~rational Highlights 

Presented below are the comparative financial highlights for CY 2011. 

(In millions of Phil) 
O/o 

Particulars 2011 I 2010 I Inc./Dec. 
Income .. s ,.J.J8,46 .. t, ... /jf .•••. ,,ss.8.8·:l:>iJ):lQ%'··:. 

; ..... ,'..:~e%p~irs~:'{H1Ef~iye:o·f Depreciation) 
Excess ·of Income over Expenses 

··;·.:: · ·-· "''·'·r54:s1' "'"'~'18 '718% . 
(16.58) (15.30) 1.08% 

- ------·----------- ---------- ·--

... 

''·\'"'.'•' ··(·', ··,\.,, .., 
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..... . Particulars 2011 2010. Inc./Dec . 
.. ·.,:.·.· , ... ,. 

'" . ~ •;" ~.: .. ),;. .. Assets-·'····""·'·· · ,.,., '343.39 341'.92 4.29% 
Liabilities 86.00 36.25 1.37% 

Equity ........ -... ... . , :"i 257..38 ... 305.67 ·,. 05.80%) 
. ·~·~ ·. '·~ ., 

Pl;e~-ented· in Annex A is its acco.mplishment report during the year. 

C. Scope of Audit 

The .audit covered the accounts anloperadons for the calendar year 2011. 

D. Audit Opinion in Finan~ial Stateme~ts 

· A.n adverse opinion was rendered-on tlie:fairness of presentation of the Project's 
financial statements .in view of the followfP,S .. accounting .errors and deficiencies, shown in 
the Analysis on the Effects of the Misstatement on)he Financial Statements marked as 
Annex B arid summarized below together ~itµ recoitii_nendatioris: , 

u.~,.u--~:~ Costof ~~7npleted Hall of ~usti~~- ~OJ)\A'th-~'amo~nt --~{ p9-g·5 i's,666~·89 was 
not transferred to Office Building accd.ul}t; while cost of on-going major 
renovation7 .rehabilitation of PHILJA Traii{ing Center and another HOJ in the ·· 
total a.mount of Pl04,286,669J7;w.ere err.oneously recorded as Repairs and. 

· Maintenance ...;. Office Building· resulting ·~n the net understatement of the · 
Construction in Progress-Agency Asset account by PS ,9.71,608.28.(0bservation 

. No. 6) 

·We: recommended that Management {a) require the Acco~~'th~g Division to 
analyze and monitor the Construction in Progress-Agency Assets account and 
make the corresponding necessary reclassification of all complete.i:l 
infrastructure projects supported with certificate of completion .:"i°nd other 

_pertin. entJ.locuments; and (.b) require. the .Chief Accdi.i1itant t6 proper~rreclassify 
the Repairs and Maintenance - Office.Building expense account to nonstruction 
in Progress -Agency Assets account for fair presentation of the said accounts in 
the financ~al statements . ... 

o.Y~c{, • There is difficulty in ascertaining the accuracy of the PPE, excluding 
Construction in Progress - Agency Assets account, with net book value of 
P 108,024, 125.00, as the submitted Inventory Report only shows a list of 
unclassified PPE; hen.ce, comparison between the balances per books and the 

. report cannot be obtained. Moreover, provision for depreciation on depreciable 
·fi,\,·.·~·.!· ""·' 11°'" ,,:.;. 1,,,<,i,~~-~!~.;.W~~-.:''In~pequate, .... contrai:y.;to .se~tion .. · t5>.f ~r~ :f\11~n~Al"':M:~;il1:e ·.'New. 
1
,'"'"· • ,:.,,>. ·.: 'GoverWiriel'it Accounting System (NG~S)~ Vol. I. (Observation No. 5) -

ii 

·:.· 
'·' 

: ~- 1 • 
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We r~com~ended that Management (a) complete the, conduct of physical count 
of all PPE funded by World Bank and submit report the1~eon with.the items 
properly-classified by type, in ~ccordance with Secdori 66 of the Manual on 
NGAS, Vol. II; (b) require the Accounting and Property Division to 
continuously exert extra effort t~ revie.w, analy;ze_~nd expedit~Jhe _reconciliation 
oftheif:records and prep;:ire the appropriate adjustri1ents when necessary; and 

, ';·•~Mi\1~~·;_:.: • .... ·• (c)' re-quire the Chief Accountant. to properly compute the provision for 
depreciation, prepare a correct schedule of depreciation on all depreciable assets 
·and make the necessary adjustments in the. books to come up with a more 
reliable and accurate valuation at year-end. , 

,. .. · 

E. Other Observations and Recommendations 

The other audit observati9ns noted ·are as follo"Ys: 

1. 4rocurement of IT equipment in CY-.20 l l:totaling P.3,850,257 .87 was not included in 
the JRSP Implementation Procurement Plan contrary to the agreement between the 
Supreme Court and the World Bank. Purchases of IT Equipment were done mostly 
through shopping instead of ·competitive --p~blic bidding. Moreover, lack of 
standardized technical specifications :01/the VArious procurements ofJaptops and 
notebooks·r~sulted in significant variation--in·pri~rs:-·---~~----·--~~"""·"-'--"·'-"·'·''j" _, __ .. ,_ .. ~, ' . . ' 

~.1- ' ' 
We recommended that management (a) require PM.O to (i) stop the practice of using 
the loan proceeds without prior appr()y;:tl/no. objei;:tion letter from the _World Bank or 
which are not agreed upon in writing betWeen th~ SCP and World Bank; (ii) return 
the total amount equivalent to the procured IT equipment arid various expenses not 
related to project component/project development objectives; (ii) to effectively plan 
their procurement needs and (b) require PMO and the BAC-APJR to adhere to the 
World Bank's procurement guidelines taking into consideratiort. open competitive 
biddfng and procurement by bulk to save on cost. J · · . 

- ~ 
/ . .. ~~ 

. 2.17arious expenses amounting to 1!3,038,812.17 incurred.were.not re~~ted to the 
- · project/program 9bjectives and not agreed 'tlpon in writing with the Wprld Bank. 

Further, the honoraria totaljng to P.50,400.00 of resource speakers wJi_s charged 
against the Loan Proceeds, contrary to the Section 2 (c) of the Loan Agreement. 

·--.. 
We recommended that Management (a) stop the practice of using the loan proceeds 
without the prior approval/no objection letter from the World Bank or which are not 
agreed upon in writing between the SCP and World Bank; (b) return to the Loan 
Proceed the total amount e~pended for various expenses and honorari_a and furnish 

.~ .. r::"·, ... 

'· 

the Supervising Auditor, SCP, a certi_fie-d listings of refunds made; (c) require the 
Accountant to properly charge the unrelated JRSP expenditures to the savings of the 

.If;:•:--"-' ·:·1 .. ;;_J.:.9Mr\',$,g~neralnfund;- and (d) subm_it/attach .origin~! ~qpies'ofatt~ndance'i':~heets- of.- ... 
. ... . . · .. ·.·•1·~., .. ~··,,:1,,. • .,."·~::1:,,:.~~1 ... :, .. 1 .. ... ,.r,~,:·· ... ·.· ... ·: .. . .. . ......... , ............... · · 
- -· · ··-· - · · ·actual partiCipanfa"in 'various trainings, 12rice quotations of bidders, summary of 

technical evaluation, BAC-APJR Resolutions on the awarding of contracts; and see to 

iii 
- .--·-·- ----------·- ------ .-.. -·--------· .. ·-·· 
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iL Lluit c;i:igl'nai supporLing documents are c;)1i1plete in all.disbursement transactions of 
· '··· · the"Joan proceeds to establish the validity of claims. • ...... 

3. /6~t ~-;·~~~ ,.;~ur contracts for tri-media monitoring services entered into by the 
Supreme Court and the Mediabanc Manila Monitoring S.eryices lrc;:., tw.o contracts 

: ·.: amountin:g to ·p 195,000 .and P250,000 wer,e )rregula~ 41:(¢.j<:J the absence :of a signed 
· " · ,,, :.' .. e:·ontratftc) cover the undertaking. Contracts. were signed two to four months after 

consultancy services had been rendered. Moreover, weakness in the internal control 
was noted as the duties/responsibilities of the end~user/requester, BAC-AP JR Chair 
and officer authorizing the contract.extensions are lodged to only one person. 

We recommended that management require (a) the SC- Program Management Office 
(PMO) to ·Clarify the sequence of events with regard to dates the contracts were 
signed and as to the Certificate of Availability of Funds and charging of funds and 
obtain No Objection Letter (NOL) from the WB for the contract extensions of the 
MediaBanc Manila Monitoring Services, Inc. with SCP; and (b) the Judicial Reform 
Program Administrator to ensure thl:lti:to r~troactive contracts are signed/awarded out 
of the JRSP Loan Proceed or any other funds. · 

We also recommended that Management_,d~vel9p measures for consideration of the 
SC to ~trengthen control pa1ticularly on 'the segtegation of functio~s/duties of high 
.officia('s• as. BAC-APJR Chair, approvit1gl6t1Hiqfliing'·'t)ffi6ef<of'cot1t1'acCexfonsions 
and th~ officer authorizing the payments. · ·:. f · · ·l 

.~· ,, 

Payment of P982,960.00 to twenty cgntrac~ual personnel under retroactive Contracts 
I .. '' of Services of the Lapu-Lapu Trial Courts; were ·~ot duly supported with individual 

work accomplishment report to establish that •1services were actually rendered. 
(Observation No. 3) · 

,• ... 
,We recommended that Management require the Ass~tant 'Regional Court 
?\dministrator for Fiscal Management and OIC, RCAO 7 i to submit the original 
Report of Disbursement with attached paid payroll duly acknowledge~· by the 
contractual employees, individual accomplishment report vis-a-vis the ;individual 

.. . work plan an.9. certificate of services rendered. / "~ 
: ~t ' ' " ' 1' 
:._µ1,...oJ 5. The'. Judicial Reform Support Project - ·Government of the Philippih~s (GOP) 

Counterpa11 Fund temporarily borrowed from the Fiscal Autonomy (FA) Fund the 
amount of PIS0;'000.00 for the conduct of the Media Forum on Judiciary Coverage 
held on March· 30, 2011 but the same was refunded twice resulting in the 
overstatement of traveling expenses in the same amount. {Observation No.4) 

.·. ~A 
~-1) We recommend Management to (a) return to the GOP Counterpart Fund the amount 

refunded twice to the Fiscal Autonomy Fund; (b) determine. the temporary 
borrowings ~nd refunds/returns made. to set.up ~he. C()IT<;:~~)i,a,p_ili~y,j)i)he. poo\\,-s.of the . 

. <~P·'.:/Q'0'1:\:.chui1ie·rpatt'Fu.rt'd' 'to facilitate the detei:;rJiriatiori ·cir the'- exis'tinf(oalan'ce of the 
borrowings; and (c) henceforth, stop the•'practice of borrowing funds from other 

iv 
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"'-c :, The• above observations and recommendations were di.~cussed wiih th~ concerned 
officials.of the agency. Manag((ment's comments were incorporated in this report, where 
appropriate . , ..... . 

·.···:·· ",•1~!1'·'.'.~: :1 .. ':y,i .: ., ,. '· . . ' •• 

.. ,';,;_;, 

·~, 
:···::i~ : ~- \' ,., ' ... , .. 

F. Status of Implementation of Prior. Year's Recommendation 
.. . 

-Out of the four audit recommendations embodied in the Prior Years' Annual Audit 
Repor~, tlweewere fully implemented and one was partially implemented . 
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CERTIFICATE OF CLEARANCE 

::-_ -.r;.~".i~-~J DAlEC-~.:~ 
TIME: I 11+\A.. 

. Pa1&~J · ... 
'"' ··- -··--KJ-~4~--· -

January 7, 20<Y8 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 

This is to certify that Ms. EVELYN TOLEDO-DUMDUM, Judicial Reform Program 

Administrator in the Program Management Office, is hereby cleared of all accountabilities herein 

enumerated insofar as this Court is concerned. 

Date of Birth: 03-09-55 

Comment Signature Date 
,,,. 

' 

1. As to the purpose of clearance 
RESIGNED 4fwvi v l 0~~'!11Jl_!Jj\A v 
effect'ive Febniary EDEN T. CANDELARIA 01-07-08 

•' 
19, 2008 (COH) Deputy Clerk of Court and 

Chief Administrative Officer j/ 

2. As to ID card issued 
l1l / .J/fi da II' N ({If ~--- .,2 • :J 3- CH/ 

FLORDELIZA S. CRUZ QJ-G-f-G.8 
ltJ:?.$!;. In-Charge 

' 
',.\::.'\<.·:;··· .. .··· I 

.. •' '• ,, '. 
'• 

htc, 3. As to leave without pay (L WOP) 'IM")u... !/t/;r 
J!r~t~v 

GLORIA P. KAZILAG 
Chief, Leave D~vision -

I 

4. As to pending Administrative case: 

a. For Lawyers 
Office of the Bar Confidant ----· 

In-Charge 
1~fL --

~LEEN 
/V 

b. For All other employees '•' 

' 
BALBIERAN-TAW 

' ... ·.· 
'11 

/,Chief, CID (CID, OAS) 
{. )' )\' 1 I I : \ 

' 
·""' ~ \ .. 

,., 

.f?L~ 
5. As to statement of Assets and Liabilities I'{- '- :s:i~. .~.'-' {;r>''·"~:n I - 1/-ij(;'-

\ .. ~ .. ,.' ...... 
I It'~it,,iVR:e<wrds~Control 

91'.lt.1n.ll'!'....i eo1~:~t>~vi~fon!~1-::,;,,c~ 

6. As to service obligation rendered in {f).p._ 1,.__~/l,,,,,..--scholarships and study grants 
" r 

(c/o Pers01mel Development Conunittee - ~AS) AILEEN BALBIERAN-TA W 
Spcretary, PDC 

(., 

Pf e-M e.- £ e,,ru 
FELIC~CA 7. As to property accountabilities 

~~ Chief, Property Division 07 F'f8 261 

- over ple.ase~ 

r' 
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8. As to books and periodicals A.l"'.i~ . 
~,·k.·Wi-

~, MILAGROS S:'ONG: · 
Chief, Lib'~~~·~;~er~ice,~1'· . 

'·, .. 

9. As to travelling expenses ~ ~
ap~~ .'(,X-L"'· ~ 

ORACION S.Y!L -- yifl/H"' 
Finance 0 fficer 

.1¥\~- s::'.Al~ fJ:: ;}_) q<~t' -
•
1'ro. ~~~6 t11J2f6tJtr~ing: · 

a) Salary overpayment 
b) Undeducted leave of absence ·-· ···· ..... i, ,, ... '-\~ 

c) Last salary received ---SOi.V\ · l .. :1\1 '}O()J.. ~,. ;),J.:;Tiin. 'Af~1.M f Jm~1. ·1 -_ cfoJ; I If ARACEilI 

d~ L 11 . d . r1 •l1r .1;;z,) 
oA\'i. ast,a ow1ance1~ce1ve -·-ro~ (i/.,f ./IL."'-.· .,Jl->·~··v~U:-'. ·:i-,,l. ·. 
,, .. q"\r \/.!< or .. ~/\11) !,JI 1)'UO-<--n>i l\(1i."· ._; I V'I 1'·" ,·Jr~1 •r 1,·11;)' -1 

, ", ., . 'f • , ; I . r1 I 
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f~F.,50;-0 11. As to the following: 
a) Cash Advance 
b) Accounts Receivable 
c) Accounts Payable 
d) Bond 

12. As to records and other accountabilities 
in employee's office 

l~. A':> to ol;ili-::Jions in the SCSf qft-/~. . ,, .. ,· ·p;:·:,' 
-72\~) I ','..\\I j', '"''---'"".)' l .. 
V'V \ ~ -y/{) • ''' . 

~~. ~ 
LIL~~ADO ~/JD[Jf 

Chief Accountant 

JP#ft<S 

~~i 

14. As to obligations in the SC Multi- J~' 11(1/:if ~ ~: ~ 
1
1! ) 

Purpose Cooperative Development, Inc. ·-·---·-:~-;MEMBER '"iA~-~10,$!;) In. H:J:JNJ~Z, ,}{,, -1 ;og 
NOT - <Vluut}l>&tltJl.!r: <;~fovtPG 

15. As to obligations in the SC-Motorc 
and Computer Acquisition Progra 
(MCAP) 

16. As to obligations in the Computer 
Acquisition Program (CCAP) for 
Justices, Judges and Lawyers 
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APPLICATION FOR LEAVE t/.J-- l~ \l> 

.--------~-,..-----~- -~. NAME I 1. OFFICE 

Pr()gram M<;inagernent Office _____ L EVELYN TOLE:DO-DUMDUM 
3. DATE OF FILING POSITION 4. SALARY (Monthly) 

15 February 2008 Judicial Reform ~ 25 967 00 

L -rfE1~1;~r~.~~m~~p1~~fkr10N , . 

5. A) TYPE OF l_EAVE 6. B) WHERE'LEAVE WILL BE SPENT 

oVacation 

0 To seek employment 
O Others (specify): 

0 Sick 
0 MC\ternity 
¥'Others - Terminal Leave 

6. C) NUMBER OF WORKING DAYS 

APPLIED FOR: --------

INCLUSIVE DATES: ------

(1) IN CASE OF VACATION LEAVE 

Within. the Philippines 
Abroad (Specify) 

(2) IN CASE OF SICK LEAVE 

0 In Hospital (Specify) 

0 Out Patient (Specify) 

6. D) COMMUTATION 

N TOLEDO-DUMDUM 

!'---------DETAILS OF ACTION ON APPLICATIO.N j 

6. A) CERTIFICATION OF LEAVE CF~.EDITS 
As of 

7. 8) RECOMMENDATION 

----· 

RE 

Vacation I Sick l __ Le~vd· 

\ Days \ Days Days Chief Justice 

7. C) APPROVED FOR: 

I 
___ days with pay 
--- days without pay 
___ others (specify) 

DATE 
~-~---~-~ 

----

EDEN T. CANDELARIA 
Chief Administrative Officer 

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY 

0.ARICHET. 
Clerk of Court En Banc 

Supreme Court 


